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Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid motive
batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products. These batteries are widely
used in electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-purpose electric vehicles.

Headquartered in Changxing, Zhejiang Province, the Group’s manufacturing facilities are
strategically located in regions with higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries,
including Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”).

The primary market of the Group features top electric bike manufacturers and its
secondary market is supported by a nationwide distribution network covering all
provinces in the PRC. For the primary market, the Group supplies original batteries to
most of the well-known electric bike manufacturers in the PRC. The Group has achieved
total cadmium-free production by the end of 2013, in fulfillment of its corporate social
responsibility as a green enterprise.

BEBHZERARAR(AAE ERANBARGRE ~EE) T ENEHESTHE
MR F BN R EMERERNRNERHEE ERnTERANESBETE - BB =&
ERRHRRESES

FEEAKRER RIS EARHEMNE (THE) T8 REM £ ERFSIR M DM
HINHE N EMTRESNEE O LR IEF IR D 2R IE NS
F2EE D

FEE—RHENEERF OERRESBITERRE M _RHHND HEERIER
PEEEEE —RTEAH AEEATEAZHNENESBTEEERRMR
KEBM-AEFEN T =FEEZAER2AEREE BT REEX VU

Bffe




innovative Product TEGHNOLOGY
Leading Industry DEVELOPMENT

sy mmg e TERER

4

Leading Growing
Player In China L § | Market Demand
RETTRAEE n I TEERBERR

’ ? Advanced

4 Technology
Bl

Leading Extensive
Environmental- HER Distribution
Friendly Process BER BRER Network
MENBERIE EEE EEE XA 7 RS

Diversified
Product Portfolio —r

ERESZEt
=




CONTENTS
B 8%

Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Awards

Chairman’s Statement
Management Discussion & Analysis
Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report
Directors'Report

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

NC]

MRz

518
EE
BE

E=RaREEAR

X
e
B

:\'/T\
:\'/T\ e
o VT\ e

I‘/—J—\

-t-

175

wE

EREEXi

E/I:Hf&d:
ehE
R Gy

EERELEMEEKER

AR
EREEx
AREMER
&M BHm&MT
BREE

79
81
83
86




CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
00951

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhou Longrui
Ms. Yang Yunfei
Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
Mr. Ng Chi Kit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Wang Jigiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zhou Mingming
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 18, Chengnan Road, Huaxi Industrial Function Area

Changxing County

Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza

28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Construction Bank, Changxing Jie Fang Dong Road Sub-branch
Bank of China, Changxing County Sub-branch

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong law
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

As to PRC law
Zhejiang S&P Law Firm

As to Cayman Islands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LFEH

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100, Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chaowei.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CONSOLIDATED (RMB'000) e ARETT)
For the year ended
31 December

BET-A=T—RILEE

0 2020
—EEF
000 RMB’000
3 AREFT
Revenue WA 29,488,819 27,304,556
Gross profit EH 3,324,497 3,297,333
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company A2 &) & A 1S 516,269 720,397
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted FRAEF -EARNEE RMB0.47 RMBO0.65
AR®o047k | AR¥o0657T
Proposed final dividend per share BEERARARE HK$0.087 HK$0.117
0.087 &JT 0.117 7T

REVENUE (RMB in million) BAARBEET)

2021

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

(RMB in million Proportion of Total Revenue)

Li-ion Battery
EHTEM

0.83%
o g——
0.52%
a1

Electric Bike Battery

Wy A BRI G B 5
(AR BELEERALLS)

Electric Vehicle Battery and Special-
purpose Electric Vehicle Battery

EHHTHREHRAEEHEE

27.76%

1o N B
29.49%

o5 I B2

Renewable Materials

EHATESL A A
54.39% 17.02%
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59.42%
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GARNERING AWARDS FOR
OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS
BEER EBEEHRR

AP 5
FHRERRES
FORTUNE

NATIONAL MODEL ENTERPRISE OF FORTUNE TOP 500
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY CHINESE COMPANIES
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Advocate GREEN ENERGY
perfect HUMAN LIFE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHSE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” oreach the RN AZERXAQFEE((EE))e((EEg]) -
“Director”) of the Company, | am pleased to present to shareholders the & AIREMAREEZAEEBHE T - —F+=
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the A=+—HIFFEE ([REE ) 2 2 ELERE o
“Year”).

During the Year, the Group continued to adopt a prudent business AF[E » ANEBEFERAEBRNKCERE - TH
strategy, enhanced its core competitiveness and maintained its steady IRESZOBE - 25 FREETRE T EKE
business development. The Group’s performance highlights are as follows: BIE -

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company reached . RAREA ANELFELEARES 16187T ©
approximately RMB516 million.

Our industry leadership has long been highly recognised by - TEELAMURASIEREERERNS

authoritative institutions and the industry at large, consistently [ERT] - BN A ZERZ BB A K B
placing us on a number of well-known domestic and international MR REBETERE - HAf - REBERASF
Chinese enterprise ranking lists. During the Year, the Group again EERNE [2ERFTRMEE 50058 | B8 &
made it among the “Global Top 500 New Energy Enterprises” (& Bk EEN T PR TR REMITE
#TRE R % 50058) and for the ninth consecutive year, placed first TR EIFE (I WAREPEREER
among the “Top 10 Enterprises of New Energy Battery Industry in RESE T -_—FENFRREEETE
China’s Light Industry” (P BI 88 T 3 3R B ITE T8 b %), Bl REeEERaES -

and also ranked on the 2021 “China Brand Valuation List” (47 B 53 i
fB{EFHERS) of the China Council for Brand Development, marking
a new high in brand value.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group continued to run an innovation-driven business,
developed innovative research projects and continued to improve
its core competitiveness. Boasting excellent technological innovation
capabilities and achievements, the Group has passed the evaluation
and review and continued to be awarded the title of “National Model
Enterprise of Technological Innovation” (B SR #1783 /R &3 1 % ).

The Group experienced stable business development during the Year,
mainly attributable to the continuous upgrading of electric bikes and the
sustainable development of on-demand delivery business, thereby
supporting the steady growth of the electric bike market and the demand
for lead-acid motive batteries in the PRC. In addition, the gradual rollout of
various new regulations and industry policies for relevant electric bikes not
only brings positive impact to the electric bike market, but are also
conducive to the consolidation of the industry in favor of leading players.

During the Year, drawing on its leading technological edges and with
support from long-term customers, the Group was able to continuously
and steadily develop its lead-acid motive battery business. The Group also
continued to strengthen its different sales channels, deepen its brand
building and actively carried out product marketing and promotion to
enhance its brand influence and consolidate its market share.

Moreover, the Group pressed on with technological, product, production
and management mode innovation, transforming and upgrading its
production and manufacturing systems, making them better in terms of
digitalisation, intelligence, scalability and standardisation. It also actively
pursued research and development ("R&D") of new products with the aim
of raising production efficiency and opening new room to grow for its
business in the future.

On behalf of the Group, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
shareholders, our customers and business partners for their unwavering
support and trust in the Group. | would also like to thank the Board,
management team and our staff for their exceptional contribution. In 2022,
we will continue to focus on technological innovation and strive for even
greater breakthroughs and achievements in the new energy field, thereby
making greater contribution to the society and shareholders.
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The Group will strive to achieve higher profitability by
increasing operational efficiency. It also resolves to attain the
strategic objective of “maintaining leadership in talent and
technology, product quality and cost controls as well as
market branding”, accelerate its entry into the international
market, actively identify high potential projects in the electric
vehicle and new energy segments and reach the goal of
“shaping technological development and creating a new
benchmark for production model”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
THEBMRE S W

Strategically located production facilities
to seize market opportunities

REEEENRR BIGTHRMER

The Group’s production facilities have been
strategically located in regions with higher
demand of lead-acid motive batteries

REEREERBEZIDHRIEE HE

Hebei
ik

Shandong
113

Anhui Jiangsu
Zii L&k

Jiangxi Zhejiang
iLd L

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of lead-
acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products,
which are primarily used in electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-
purpose electric vehicles.

During the Year, the Group'’s total revenue amounted to approximately
RMB29,489 million (2020: approximately RMB27,305 million). The Group's
gross profit was approximately RMB3,324 million (2020: approximately
RMB3,297 million). Overall gross profit margin decreased to approximately
11.3% (2020: approximately 12.1%). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB516 million (2020: approximately
RMB720 million).

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Electric bikes used in multi-scenarios drive continuous
market growth

As one of the important means of transportation for people, electric bikes
stand out with advantages of being economical, flexible and efficient,
environmentally-friendly, less prone to traffic jams and easy to park. It is
widely used for personal travel and on-demand delivery. Market research
shows that in terms of on-demand delivery, more than 4 million of on-
demand delivery riders in the PRC use electric bikes to deliver takeout and
fresh products to 500 million people. During the Year, new national
standards for electric bikes continued to be implemented, which brought a
positive impact on the electric bike market. In addition, during the
COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), the public paid attention to social
distancing, and electric bikes became an important means of
transportation for daily short-haul travel, further stimulating the sales
growth of electric bikes. According to the data of China’s Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology, the current ownership of electric
bikes in the PRC has exceeded 300 million. The market expects the sales
volume of electric bikes in the PRC in 2022 will grow by approximately
14.9% year-on-year.

Steady development of electric tricycle and special-purpose
electric vehicle markets

Electric tricycles — small in size, easy to maintain and to repair, and
inexpensive — have been widely used for short-haul transportation in
households, urban and rural areas, factories and mining areas,
environmental sanitation and community cleaning, etc. The booming of
e-commerce in the PRC under the Pandemic has continued to drive the
demand for electric tricycles, large electric tricycles and special-purpose
electric vehicles for short-haul transportation of goods, including courier
services, and aiding warehousing and logistics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THRBHWRESH

Lead-acid motive batteries market remained stable

Currently, lead-acid motive batteries are still the main type of batteries
used in electric bikes, accounting for approximately 90% market share. Due
to its mature technology, low price, high recyclability and high utilisation
rate, and since consumers of electric bikes, electric tricycles and electric
four-wheelers for the elderly are more price-sensitive, the overall market
has remained stable. In addition, lead-acid motive batteries need to be
replaced regularly, about once every two years, thus the replacement
market is huge and continually supports the demand.

Industry policies favouring leading enterprises

Since the "Safety Technical Specification for Electric Bicycles” (( B &) & 17
B ERITEE), the "New National Standards” (¥TEIIZ)) officially took
effect on 15 April 2019, the safety performance requirements of electric
bikes became more stringent, strictly regulate the production specifications
and riding of electric bikes nationwide. The New National Standards’
mandatory requirements for safety, lightweight and functionality of electric
bikes favour leading enterprises which are large in scale, possess advanced
technology, and have complete qualifications and numerous channels.
During the Year, the transition period for electric vehicles not meeting
standards in various regions, such as Beijing, Shanghai and Zhejiang,
expired and the transition period for other regions, such as Shandong,
Jiangxi and Guangxi, will expire between 2022 and 2024. Upon expiry of
the transition period, non-compliant electric bikes will not be permitted to
travel on the road, which will create greater demand for electric bikes in
the replacement market and in turn directly boost the electric bike market.

The China Bicycle Association issued the “Collective Standard Regarding
Food Delivery Vehicles Part 1: Food Delivery Electric Bicycles” ({525 5 F
BEIED - HNEEHHBEITE)EEIZRZE) on 1 July 2021, which was
officially mplemented on 1 September of the same year. This standard
clarifies the relevant standards and requirements for food delivery electric
bikes. It is expected that the implementation of such standard will promote
the development and replacement of food delivery electric bikes.

Improved standardised management of lead-acid motive
battery products

During the Year, the Group led the formulation of two national standards,
"Technical Specifications for Evaluation of Ecological Design Products-
Battery Products” ({ L RERRFTE Ml BT R & — BMEm)) and
“Technical Specifications for Recycling Treatment of Waste Lead Storage
Batteries” ({ B o & &b 3 A4 2 32 H1l7 #R #6 ), and participated in the
formulation of the international standard “Lead-acid Starter Batteries Part
2-Kinds of Products and Specifications and Dimensions and Marking of
Terminals” ((BB)RSHBEE ST E 25D — EMREREN IR TR
<F+ #Z 52 ). The two national standards, which were officially released
during the Year, have driven standardisation of management and building
of relevant system that covers the entire lifecycle of battery products,
improved the overall standard of the industry and led the green and high-
quality development of the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Steady development of battery business

Lead-acid motive battery is the Group’s core product. By continuously
leading technological innovation in and high-quality development of the
industry, the Group has maintained its leadership in the lead-acid motive
battery industry and seen steady business development. Revenue from
sales of lead-acid motive batteries for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB24,225 million, accounting for approximately 82.2% of the Group's
total revenue. Among which, revenue from sales of electric bike batteries
amounted to approximately RMB16,038 million, accounting for
approximately 54.4% of the Group's total revenue, and revenue from sales
of electric tricycle batteries and special-purpose electric vehicle batteries
amounted to approximately RMB8,187 million, accounting for
approximately 27.8% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group is also engaged in the sales of lithium-ion battery products,
which deliver excellent performance and have received professional
recognitions such as the “National Torch Plan Industrialisation
Demonstration Project Certificate” (BIZR N fEFTBIEZE L REIHEE FE).
Revenue from sales of lithium-ion battery products for the Year amounted
to approximately RMB246 million. The Group will continue to improve
product technology and put in its best effort to manufacture lithium-ion
batteries with better quality and higher energy efficiency.

Leading industry position well-recognised by the market

As a leading enterprise in the new energy industry, the Group's industry
position has been widely recognised by the industry due to its mature
production craftsmanship, advanced technology and solid foundation.
During the Year, leveraging its strengths in the new energy sector, the
Group made it again among the lists of the “Global Top 500 New Energy
Enterprises” (& Bk 37 82 JR & 3£ 5005%) and the “China Top 500 Energy
Groups” (FFEIEER (52 )500 38 ). Actively pursuing technological
innovation and intelligent manufacturing, the Group was awarded a place
on the list of “Top 200 Smart Factories” (&5 8¢ L& Top 200).

During the Year, the Group continued to retain its place among the “Top
500 Chinese Enterprises” (FFEI{b% 50054 ), “Top 500 Enterprises of
China’s Manufacturing Industry” (747 B & 3 % 7 % 5005%) and "Fortune
Top 500 Chinese Companies” ({BfE ) # B 5005%), and won a place
among the “Top 500 Chinese Private-owned Enterprises” (71 B R & 1> 2
50038 ), the “Top 100 Enterprises in China’s Light Industry” (P BIEE T2 H
3 1& %) and the “Top 100 Science & Technology Enterprises in China’s
Light Industry” (FF BI &8 T 2 BHE B 9870 2%), and for the ninth consecutive
year took the top spot on the list of “Top 10 Enterprises of New Energy
Battery Industry in China's Light Industry” (4P B 8% T 3 %788 R E 0173
TR EE).

Moreover, with outstanding company strengths and brand influence, the
Group was listed on the 2021 “China Brand Valuation List" (7P Bl S4B E (B
155) compiled by the China Council for Brand Development, marking the
rise of its brand value to a new height.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THRBHWRESH

Adhere to innovation-driven development and boost
industry development

The Group has always adhered to innovation-driven development, and by
establishing various R&D platforms, attracted talent in various areas and
developed strong technical strength. During the Year, the Group’s R&D
expenses amounted to approximately RMB929 million, approximately 3.2%
of the Group's total revenue.

The Group is a technology leader in various sectors of the new energy
industry. Armed with excellent technological innovation capability and
related achievements, it passed the 2021 evaluation review and continued
to be awarded the title of “National Model Enterprise of Technological
Innovation” (B ZX # 1i £ %7 7~ 5 7 ). In addition, the Group is also a
National Model Enterprise of Intellectual Property (BdZR KN4 E 1 R &6 10
%) and a National Model Enterprise of Green Supply Chain Management
(BRFAREHEREIRREBEE).

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had more than 23 renowned domestic
and foreign experts and established R&D platforms, including the national
recognised enterprise technology center, the national accredited
laboratory, the national environmental protection engineering technology
center, the provincial key enterprise research institute, the academician
workstation, the national post-doctoral scientific research work station, and
the Pollution Control Engineering Technology Center of the State
Environmental Protection Lead-Acid Battery Production and Recycling, as
well as R&D centers established overseas.

Continued to deploy distribution network and strengthen
brand image

The Group continued to implement its proven strategic deployment,
placing production facilities in regions with greater demand for lead-acid
motive batteries, including Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui,
Jiangxi and Hebei provinces in the PRC, so as to reduce storage and
logistics costs and enhance operational efficiency.

The Group has built a nationwide sales and distribution network in the PRC
with full coverage of primary and secondary markets. In the primary
markets, the Group maintains long-term cooperation with a number of top
electric bike manufacturers and has a dedicated department to provide
comprehensive sales services to major customers. In the secondary
markets, the Group has an extensive distribution network covering all
provinces and regions across the country and runs service hotlines
nationwide, providing a comprehensive sales and service system that
covers services ranging from online to offline, delivery to installation, and
pre-sales to after-sales services.

In terms of market promotion, the Group's battery products sweep the
nation with the challenge of endurance in various environments,
demonstrating the high quality of “CHILWEE" battery products. Moreover,
the Group has retained renowned movie star Mr. Donnie Yen as its brand
ambassador for the 17th consecutive year and organised live-streaming
product launches during the Year to consolidate its brand image.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Future development strategy

Looking ahead to 2022, the PRC economy will continue to recover.
However, the pace of consumption recovery will still be affected by the
Pandemic prevention and control policies. Facing the continuous
challenges brought by the Pandemic, the Group will continue to closely
monitor the changes and development of the market, actively adjust
marketing and production strategies and look for opportunities amid
challenges. At the same time, the Group will continue to adhere to
technological innovation and green development, honoring its corporate
mission of “Advocate Green Energy, Perfect Human Life” and leading the
sustainable development of the industry.

In the future, the Group will persist with building brand reputation, draw
on its strengths to enhance brand power, create cutting-edge quality with
innovation and offer services to enhance consumer experience.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB29,488,819,000 in
the Year, which has increased by approximately 8.0% from approximately
RMB27,304,556,000 in 2020. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to an increase in sales of renewable materials.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately RMB3,324,497,000 in
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 0.8% from
approximately RMB3,297,333,000 in 2020. The Group's gross profit margin
in the Year was approximately 11.3% (2020: approximately 12.1%). The
decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to the increase in the
proportion of sales of renewable materials which has a relatively lower
gross profit margin.

Other income

The Group's other income amounted to approximately RMB473,528,000 in
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 46.8% from
approximately RMB322,508,000 in 2020, which was mainly due to an
increase in government grants.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses amounted to approximately
RMB839,687,000 in the Year, representing an increase of approximately
16.8% from approximately RMB718,945,000 in 2020, which was primarily
attributable to an increase in staff costs and transportation expenses. For
the Year, the distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue
were approximately 2.8% (2020: approximately 2.6%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THRBHWRESH

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were approximately RMB514,724,000
in the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 16.0% from
approximately RMB613,105,000 in 2020, which was mainly due to a
decrease in travelling and consulting expenses resulting from cost saving
measures.

R&D expenses

The Group's R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB929,292,000 in
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 8.4% from
approximately RMB857,364,000 in 2020, which was primarily attributable to
an increase in R&D expenditure on lead-acid batteries and other new
technology products during the Year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 13.4% from
approximately RMB371,669,000 in 2020 to approximately RMB321,846,000
in the Year. The decrease in finance costs was primarily due to a decrease
in interest expenses on medium-term note and corporate bond.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, the Group's profit before tax decreased by
approximately 26.4% to approximately RMB784,617,000 in the Year (2020:
approximately RMB1,065,559,000).

Taxation

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by approximately 26.8% to
approximately RMB249,532,000 in the Year (2020: approximately
RMB341,053,000). The effective tax rate was approximately 31.8% in the
Year (2020: approximately 32.0%). The decrease in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to the increase in income tax deduction granted to subsidiaries
in R&D expenditure during the Year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In the Year, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB516,269,000, representing a decrease of approximately
28.3%, from approximately RMB720,397,000 in 2020. The decrease was
mainly due to a reduction in other gains and other losses caused by loss on
fair value of financial assets during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB1,501,470,000 (31 December 2020: net current assets of
approximately RMB644,490,000). Cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB2,860,613,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB2,552,548,000). Net debts, including borrowings, lease liabilities and
deducting cash and bank deposits (including restricted bank deposits),
were approximately RMB2,150,287,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB2,414,359,000), which were mainly used to finance the capital
expenditure and daily working capital of the Group. Borrowings were
denominated in RMB, USD or HKD, of which approximately
RMB4,148,530,000 bore interest at fixed rates and approximately
RMB4,698,121,000 were repayable within one year. The Group adopts
centralised financing and treasury policies in order to ensure that the
Group's funding is utilised efficiently and it monitors its interest rate risks in
a conservative manner.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 1.12 (31 December 2020: 1.06) and gearing ratio (net debts/
total assets) was approximately 10.7% (31 December 2020: approximately
12.6%). The Group had sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. The current cash
position enables the Group to explore potential investment and potential
business development opportunities to expand its domestic market share.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group's operations are mainly conducted in the PRC and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the Directors are
of the view that the Group’s operating cash flow and liquidity are not
subject to significant foreign exchange rate risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THEMWR S H

Pledge of assets

At the end of the Year, certain of the Group's assets were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of
the assets of the Group pledged at the end of each of the financial years is

WEER
RAFRGERE  FTAKEEECHFEM - £

RARERRRITRENER NEVHFES
Ry AKECEREENREAENT

as follows:
2021 2020
—E—%F —ECTREF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT
Buildings BF 648,808 862,668
Right-of-use assets FREEE 89,844 119,629
Deposits for borrowings BEERE 43,904 79,986
Receivables at FVTOCI BRATEET AR M2 E W
JE U 3R 1,413,237 631,655
Restricted bank deposits FIRFHIERITER 1,143,032 1,332,206
Inventory FE 133,852 -
Capital commitments BERIE
2021 2020
—B_—%F —ZT-THF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Contracted but not provided for: EEEEE S 3-
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment  — UWEE % - iR KRR G 112,888 194,512
— acquisition of intangible asset —WEBEEE 7,690 8,025
— capital contribution to associates — mEERAREE 6,400 23,200
— capital contribution to a joint venture —H—REEEITE 174 22,000

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: Nil).

Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 13,062 (31
December 2020: 15,105) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong. During
the Year, the total cost of employees amounted to approximately
RMB1,565,955,000. The Group sought to further strengthen staff training by
offering focused training programmes and study tours to management
and professional technical personnel, and disseminating the latest
information of government policy on the lead-acid motive battery industry
to staff. The Group continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also provided
competitive salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be fully
dedicated in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year, nor
was there any plan authorised by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year, except
for the deviation as stated below.

Code Provision C.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximises efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as awhole.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of
the Directors, senior management and relevant employees (who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information) of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

THRBHWRESH

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. Its primary duties
include, among other things, the review and supervision of the Group's
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system.
The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr. Lee"),
Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lee has professional qualification
and experience in accounting and financial matters.

The Audit Committee has met and discussed with the external auditors of
the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
results of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee considered that the
consolidated results of the Group for the Year are in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that appropriate
disclosures have been duly made in accordance with Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules in this report.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members") will
be closed from 6 June 2022 to 9 June 2022 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting, the shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
No.183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2022.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.087 per share for shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members on 17 June 2022. The Register of Members will be closed from
15 June 2022 to 17 June 2022, both days inclusive, and the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around 15 July 2022. The payment of
dividends shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company expected to be held by 9 June 2022. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
deliver share certificates together with transfer documents to the
Company'’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m.on 14 June 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (BBABR), aged 53, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for the Group's overall strategy
planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received a bachelor's degree
in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (fL) B &5 EZ2FE) in July
1990, and has over 20 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry.
Mr. Zhou is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr.
Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui (A &8 ), aged 83, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the technical aspects
of the production process. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in January 1998. Mr.
Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the
Group and through previous employment. Early in 1994 and
since then, Mr. Zhou published several professional articles in the field
of lead-acid batteries on various magazines such as Batteries ({ & B 11, )),
International Power Information ({ BB Z )R %15 ) and Power Technologies
(CFEIRIATY), etc. Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First
Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee (FE—fEEE T hEELT B2
BllZE{£Z B) by China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (FF B & T
17 B &) in August 2008 and a member of National Lead-acid Battery
Standardization Technology Committee (& Bl S5 EE BMIZ AL HAlT & B
&) in July 2007. He is the father of Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang
Xinxin and the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He
is also a father-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei (l8&R), aged 79, is an executive Director of the Group.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s procurement
and building. She has been with the Group since January 1998. Ms. Yang
has worked in several battery manufacturing factories, responsible for
manufacturing and overall operation of the factories and worked for the
establishment preparation of the Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich
experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the Group and
through previous employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou
Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all
being executive Directors. She is also a mother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a
non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREHEAR

Mr. Yang Xinxin (###7), aged 55, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the discharge
of Mr. Zhou's duties in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in the
management of sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary of the party committee (EZ Z50) and
deputy head (Bt &) of Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy and
Hydroelectric Power (4TI & 7K FI7K & &))RI5% 51 F7), and had served in
such positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (8§ &)
of the People’s Government of Anji County, Zhejiang Province (#T/ T & %
#H %A RBUE) between June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang was the
deputy director of Water Resources Department of Zhejiang Province (4
JTAKFEE) between August 2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a
professor-level senior engineer (ZUE i 4% TF2EM). Mr. Yang obtained a
bachelor degree from Anhui University of Science & Technology (%2 32
T KE), formerly known as Huainan Mining Institute (ERIIEZEZ2BR), in
July 1988 and a master's degree from Zhejiang University (37T AE2) in
March 1991. Mr. Yang is an elder brother of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the son of
Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is
also a brother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (753 ), aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms. Fang received a
bachelor's degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (1) il
&3 KE2) in July 1990. From August 1990 to October 1998, Ms. Fang was a
teacher at Hongxi Middle School ({1;Z A £2) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
Ms. Fang is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang Xinxin, all
being executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang (GE##38), aged 82, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 50 years of experience in
the field of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr. Wang
has been working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics
Technology Group Corporation (FEIE FEHZEE AR E -+ /\FFTA
since October 1962 as a vice-chief engineer. In addition, Mr. Wang received
various awards of national and provincial levels for his achievements on
development of new battery technology, such as the first class award on
science and technology advancement (B2 /i3t 25— 48) from the
former Ministry of Electronics Industry (presently known as MIIT) on his
research on lithium rechargeable battery technology in October 1999. In
view of his contribution, Mr. Wang was awarded a “Celebrating the 70th
Anniversary of the Founding of the People’s Republic of China”
commemorative medal in 2019. Mr. Wang received a bachelor's degree in
electrochemistry from Fudan University in 1962, and went to Stanford
University in the United States as a visiting scholar on government
sponsorship from 1982 to 1985. After returning to the PRC, he received the
title of professor and was mainly in charge of new battery technology
development. After his retirement, Mr. Wang has continued to assist China
Industrial Association of Power Sources (A Bl{t 22 B4R T RITER D)
to organise various international and domestic technology exchange
activities, including China International Battery Fair (FEIEIFR BB E 2
BT R E) which is held biennially.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (EXFRBA ), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from the
Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in Engineering in
1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (&2 K2 since 1994, and is
currently a Ministry of Education Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor (#
B ERT2ERIEHUR). Prof. Ouyang is also a Standing Member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUAHEEHEHEEFFHZE B). Prof. Ouyang
also served as independent non-executive Director of Sinotruk (Hong
Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808) and Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 3898), both being companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from July 2007 to December 2015 and from August
2017 to March 2018, respectively, Shanghai Diesel Engine Company
Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (/&5 m # A {7 R 2 B]) and Baic
Bluepark New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600733) (3£ /2 EE A
FoeREH A BBR A 7)), both being companies listed on the Main
Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May 2012 to May 2015 and from
November 2018 to August 2021, respectively, and Chongging Changan
Automobile Company Limited (Stock Code: 000625) (E & &% /38 i {7
BRAF]), a company listed on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange from May 2012 to March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREHEAR

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (FE# ), aged 67, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor's degree in
arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the Kingston
Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his postgraduate
diploma in business from the Curtin University of Technology in Australia in
February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 29 years
until 2009 and had held key leadership positions in the development of
such firm in the PRC. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered Accountants, Australia
and New Zealand, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society
of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-
executive director of West China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233), China
Modern Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Retail Holdings
Limited (formerly known as GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 493), NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
NVC Lighting Holding Limited) (Stock Code: 2222), Yashili International
Holdings Ltd (Stock Code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 451), WH Group Limited (Stock Code: 288), all being companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since July 2010, October 2010,
March 2011, November 2012, November 2013, May 2014, and August 2014,
respectively, and Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd.,, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2611) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601211), since April 2017. Mr. Lee also served
as an independent non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 966), China Environmental
Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1237), CITIC
Securities Company Limited (Stock Code: 6030), Tibet Water Resources Ltd.
(formerly known as Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code:
1115) and China Rundong Auto Group Limited (formerly known as China
Greenland Rundong Auto Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1365), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from October
2009 to August 2013, from July 2014 to September 2015, from November
2011 to May 2016, from March 2011 to February 2020, from July 2014 to
December 2020, respectively, and Sino Vanadium Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Toronto, Canada, from
October 2009 to December 2011. Mr. Lee was for 10 years a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in
the PRC.

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021

FEEBEE om AEAEEBUIERNTES -
FHER—NNZF L AEmH Kingston University
(B1%8 A Kingston Polytechnic) X 22487 » H14
B — N\ FE = B R M Curtin University of
Technology B ERESUR - HE_ZTZTNGF - it
EEBRET RSB ZERAENTF - B
FIERPBEEBEELIZREAC - TAERK
BELBERMSTEMAEEE  BAF M
BRI STMASEE BT ARSREA
28 BEESHIRASEE KRMEMERAm
REGE - FEEB-_FTZTFLH/ ZT—F
F+A - ZT—F=A ZFT—Z-F+—H-
—E=F+—-A ZE-HFRARZZE-NO
FNARRDFIEEFBEAIBLARERAR (RHK
5% :2233) c PRIBRBEZERBR AR (KRG K
F1117)  REZEZERERAF(FIBEES
BERBR AR (RHONKR - 493) - FTEIEFE
AR AR (S TRAERARAR) (RHR
5% 1 2222) ~ FELTFIBBIER B R A E (BRH R
1230) - BEFMERIERBR 2RO AR :
451) - BEMNEIBEBR AT (RMHRSE - 288) (395
REERFIER L2 AR 2B IEMITES - U
MEZZ—+FUNARETRRELHEFRNE
RARIZEIIEBITES - ZRARERFTER
(B RSE - 2611) R EBBEHFR S (RERE :
601211) £ - ZHETTR_EZNFTRAE=ZE
—=FN\AHH —ET-EHF+tAE-T—1F
NWAEE  ZE——F+—HAZZF—-RFhaH
HE —E-——F=AFE_ZT_ZF_AHH -
—E-NEFLtAZEZZET+_AHMESRIEE
FEBIR TR IER AR A E (RDRHE - 966) ~ F
RIEEYERBRAA (ORI - 1237) - REE
HRMDBR AT (RO : 6030) ~ AEIKEIR
BIRAE (RIFBER 5100 KEREBRBRAR) (B
HRIR 1115 RABEERABSE B R A A (7]
PR ERTBEEEERAR) (RO
1365) (B AR MER L2 AR BB ILIEH
TES UERZZBEZNFTAZE=ZT——F
+ = AHAMIYE (T Sino Vanadium Inc. (— KR INE X
ZRERAFXPABER LT ZAR - RIHREE
SVX)M I IEITE S - TEECEHENEE
FRARBGHEEEZBETSE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#8), aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Group on 2 December 2010 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 February 2017. Prior to that, Mr.
Ng was the Group's chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is an Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the
Assurance and Advisory Business Service Department of Ernst & Young. Mr.
Ng has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng has
been an independent non-executive director of Great Wall Motor Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 2333) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601633), since
May 2017, and Immunotech Biopharm Ltd (Stock Code: 6978), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since June 2020 .

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (FREEZE), aged 48, is the investment director. Mr. Chen
graduated from the University of Science and Technology of China (-9 Bd#:}
ERITAE) in 1995 and obtained a Master of Business Administration from
University of Science and Technology of China in 2005. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has since 2011
position as the investment director.

held his current

Mr. Pan Xuexiang (B2 §¥), aged 47, is the marketing director and is
responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands management
and products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
economic management from Hefei University of Technology in Anhui in
June 1997. Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009 and has held several positions
including deputy director of sales channel department and marketing
director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREHEAR

Mr. Leung Wai Yip ({23§), aged 46, was appointed as the Group’s chief
financial officer and company secretary (the “Company Secretary”), on 2
December 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the financial
controller and the company secretary of Tiangong International Company
Limited (K ZEIFR BBR A 7)) (Stock Code: 826), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to November 2010.
Prior to such appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal auditor of the Swire
Group and was previously a manager with the assurance and advisory
business services department of Ernst & Young, Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Leung graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and an Associate Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has been an
independent non-executive director of HPC Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1742), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
April 2018. He also served as an independent non-executive director of
Miko International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1247), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December 2013 to February
2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company’s
operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group's business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code of the Listing Rules throughout the
Year, except for the deviations as stated below.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision
F.2.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the
Board and executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive
Director, were unable to attend the Company's annual general meeting
held on 10 June 2021 due to other business commitments.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decision and
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily operations of the Group's business
to the management. The Board exercises a number of powers which
include:

formulating long-term strategy

approving public announcements

approving financial statements, including interim and annual results
approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects
authorising significant changes to the capital structure and material
borrowings

any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant general
mandates
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT

ERELIWSE

making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and
reviewing dividend policy

approving appointments to the Board

setting the Group remuneration policy

reviewing operational and financial performance

reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk management

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are held
when required to discuss significant events and issues. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing agenda for Board
meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14 days’ advance notice,
and all Directors would be served with an agenda with supporting papers
at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so as to ensure that there is
timely access to relevant information. The Group ensures that all the Board
members are informed of the Group's latest developments and thereby
assists them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the
Company’s expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees are
taken by the Company Secretary. Such minutes of the Board and the Board
committees, together with supporting papers, are made available for
inspection by any Director following reasonable notice. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor of
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group; the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the
development, review and monitoring of the code of conduct of the
Company’s employees and Directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), one
non-executive Director (Ms. Fang Jianjun) and four independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee
Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi Kit who was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an independent non-executive Director on 10
February 2017). Among the executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Mingming is the
younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are both sons of Mr. Zhou
Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms.
Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming.
Biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at the date of this
annual report are set out on pages 25 to 30 of this annual report.
Independent non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of
the members of the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
come either from the battery industry or have related professional
background, bringing valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration.
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BOARD MEETINGS EEE

During the Year, the Board has held a total of four Board meetings forthe AEE  EHEe@ BT HMNAEETES S S =

main purposes of formulating business development and prospects of the ZB2 A THREIAEENEKLRE LIS - BEM

Group, reviewing and considering the financial and operating ZEEME N EEXRIH -

performance.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings are set out below: BREEREZTSERMHFELENT ¢
Attendance/Number of

Board Meetings

Name of Directors EENE HERY, EETTERS

Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIRARA 5 A& 4/4

Mr. Zhou Longrui AR L& 4/4

Ms. Yang Yunfei HBERL T 4/4

Mr. Yang Xinxin B A 4/4

Non-executive Director FERITESE

Ms. Fang Jianjun FEELT 3/4

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUERITES

Mr. Wang Jigiang EHER A 4/4

Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 BR = 20 4/4

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai EN e 4/4

Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBEE 4/4
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ERELIWSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
asawhole.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions of the
Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
during the Year are required to retire at the first annual general meeting
following their appointments and new Directors appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy during the Year are required to retire at the first
general meeting following their appointments, and in both cases, the
acting Directors will be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. All
Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every 3 years at the
AGM, subject to re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed
for a term of not more than 3 years.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed of the
requirement under code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code regarding
continuous professional development. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Year is as follows:

ERELIWRSE

EFRRSRERTR

ERRIIBHERE - ARARRBAMEESF2H
FESXZR URRLABEHEHMBLKE &
FEMBLEEATRIR TR EC14GER
FESXERNATE - ARAIARRESRREM L
T AR Bl DA N B33 P BR B AR TE M SR B R AR -
NHERERETRIFNECEERTER  URTHE
HREMPEEAFHRNEM -

REERENLE  EENAFEEZEINHT
ZR

Type of Continuous
Professional Development

Programmes
Name of Directors EElE FESERRTRIER
Executive Directors BMITESR
Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIRARE St &= AB
Mr. Zhou Longrui BREHm L E AB
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ T A B
Mr. Yang Xinxin o Eiik bt A B
Non-executive Director ERITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FREELL A B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRITES
Mr. Wang Jigiang A Fiibietas A B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN BR S 2 A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHRETE A B
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBRAE A B
Notes: Hiat -
A: attending training sessions and/or seminars A: LSRR ST e
B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and ~ B: B RIF B _F 74 Rl R B i A B E L R AT R A

other applicable regulatory requirements
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the audit
committee (the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) for overseeing the particular aspects of the
affairs of the Company. All the Board committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s
website “www.chaoweicomhk” and the website of the Stock Exchange and
are available to the shareholders upon request. All the Board committees
would report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. He has professional qualification and experience in accounting
and financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include reviewing
and recommending for the Board’s approval of the interim and the annual
financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; and reviewing and
recommending to the Board for approval of the external auditors’
remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out as follows:

ERELIWRSE

REE BEFEHEEZZEGSRNBELEIIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee Meetings

HERY EZERE

Name of Directors EElE 14 PN
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TREEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR, 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 55 B e 2 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBSESE 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
which included the review of the interim and annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, in which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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ERELIWSE

During the Year, the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group were reviewed and discussed at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee also assessed
the performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The Directors’ attendance of the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

AEE FHEZEERNE LEAMTRAKEE
ELEMEEABNFMGE - FTHEZBEINT
ERTESORI MERTESHREE KK
K BEEHEFMEZESSRNBEREINLT

Attendance/Number of

Remuneration Committee

Meeting

HEXE FHEAS

Name of Directors ExHa TRRE
Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIBABA ST A& /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai B EE /1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR TEE 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to set out the basic
principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of the Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience, which are
the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and shall
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy in selection of
the Board candidates. Board nomination and appointments will continue
to be made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to time
while taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitoring the progress on
achieving these measurable objectives. The review of the Board Diversity
Policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has considered the Board
Diversity Policy and whether the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. After due consideration, the Nomination Committee has
concluded that based on the Company’s existing business model and
specific needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year.

Board nomination policy (the “Board Nomination Policy”) is in place to
ensure that all nominations of Board members are fair and transparent in
order to facilitate the constitution of the Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that is appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures:
The nomination procedures to select and recommend Board candidates
could be summarised as follows:

1. The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of an individual
pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Board Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy, and the independence of an individual for the
position of independent non-executive Director.

2. The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation to the
Board's for consideration.

3. The Board shall consider the individual recommended by the
Nomination Committee pursuant to the Listing Rules, the CG Code,
the Board Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

4. For casual vacancy and addition of new Directors, the Board shall
confirm the appointment of the individual and the new Director
shall be subjected to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the next annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

5. For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Board shall, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, recommend
the retiring directors to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The appointment of retiring Directors shall be subjected to
the approval of shareholder at the annual general meeting.

6. The Board reserves the right to make final decisions on the matters
in relation to the selection and appointment of Directors.
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Selection criteria: R
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination RFHLEEZFREABSELGE  IEEZLE@8E
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate: BTIHEARERSZE

Reputation for integrity; BEEE

Accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

Commitment in respect of available time;

Merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy (as adopted
and amended by the Board from time to time), including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, independence, skills, knowledge
and length of service;

In case of a candidate for an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors as set
out in code provision B.3.4 of the CG Code and in the “Guidance for
Boards and Directors” published by The Stock Exchange; and

Board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other 1EREZE @B MIEEIZB TR RMEE AT
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate,  BIFJIES| MIRE @ ZEEIMEMAEZERNEEI IR
subject to the guidance and requirements of the Listing Rules and the CG =~ ZERABEE MEM AL -

Code.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out as follows:

REE BFRHERELZESSENBEAHIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Nomination Committee

Meeting

HEXS REZAE

Name of Directors EEga -4 PN
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIBA AR 5 A& Il
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FAREEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR E /1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which were prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set
out in the independent auditor's report on pages 72 to 77.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the Company Secretary, reports to the chairman of the
Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Leung also
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training during the Year .

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
shareholders, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are featured
with a defined management structure with limits of authority and well-
rounded policies and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management and internal
control covering all material controls, including financial, operation,
compliance and internal controls as well as risk management functions. In
addition, the Audit Committee will review and evaluate the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group at least once a
year to ensure that no material internal control loophole exists.

The Group has an internal audit department (the “Internal Audit
Department”), which is responsible for the internal audit of the Group,
independent assessment of risks, and internal control procedures and
systems, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department assesses the risks to which the
Group is exposed, and formulates an audit plan on that basis annually, so
as to ensure that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The annual
audit plan will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The
scope of audit review is determined based on the risk assessment results
and special reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern to
the management or the Audit Committee. During the Year, no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified. All of the
recommendations from the Internal Audit Department will be properly
followed up to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year. The Board
and the Audit Committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of our accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting staff, and their training programs and budget, are
reasonably implemented and the Group has fully complied with provisions
of the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in
general for the Year.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable. Before inside information is fully disclosed to the
public, such information is kept strictly confidential. The Group has further
enhanced the procedures with the establishment of a continuous
disclosure policy and provided with relevant training to all relevant staff of
the Group. The Board considered that the procedures and measures in
relation to the handling and dissemination of the inside information to be
effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group's external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee
pre-approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the audit
services.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services was
RMB2,400,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services, namely review of
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2021, was RMB840,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Own Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director has been
given a copy of the Own Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied with the
Own Code and the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the Year. The
Company will notify the Directors and relevant employees of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company's securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and the senior management recognise the importance of
communication with the shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial
performance information to the shareholders. The senior management also
maintains close communication with investors, analysts and the media by
other channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings.
The Group has set up its own website “www.chaowei.com.hk”, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated information on
the Company to investors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s AGM provides a useful platform for direct communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2021 AGM was held on 10 June 2021. The attendance record of the
Directors at the 2021 AGM is set out below:

ERELIWRSE

BRRAE
AARIMREBTAGAEETTEREREER
RBET—EZTANFE -  ARABRBRERS £
MEBEEE ETAMNEERREREARER -

TE - FERRAFAREER T =_—FA
+HEBRT - EERN T —FEREREAEHN
HERREEE ST

Attendance/Number of
General Meeting

Name of Directors Exga HERE BRAERH
Executive Directors BMITESR
Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIBRBA 55 A& 0/1
Mr. Zhou Longrui [EReiR & /1
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ T 1
Mr. Yang Xinxin o Eiik it 1/1
Non-executive Director JEBMITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FREELL 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BWIERTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang A Fiibietas 1/1
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN BR S 2 /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHRETE 1
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGRE /1

Code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision F.2.2 of the
CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the Board and
executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive Director, were
unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 10 June
2021 due to other business commitments. As such, Mr. Yang Xinxin, the
executive Director, took the chair of the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2021. The Board considered that such
arrangement was sufficient to ensure that a member of the Board was
available to answer any questions at the annual general meeting held on
10 June 2021.

The Company’s external auditors also attended the 2021 AGM.
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ERELIWSE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company to allow the shareholders to share the
Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is
subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the members of the Group; the Group's liquidity position; the Group's
expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

The Company'’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph K of the CG Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board. The
written requisition must specify the business to be transacted on the
meeting, which shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may
themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are
as follows:

Address: Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)" enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to the
Board in writing for the Board's consideration not less than 7 days prior to
the date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph “Procedures
for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to submit this annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which have been audited by
the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales of
lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 53 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the business review of the Group for the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Review” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
An indication of the future development in the Group’s business is shown
on page 19 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the Company’s and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 78 to 219.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 78.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.087 per share for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021, which shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be held on
9 June 2022. The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around 15 July 2022.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 50 and 51 of the consolidated financial statements
for risks and uncertainties.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB5,059,000.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
approximately RMB1,089,772,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS =F

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:  RARFEERBEERNFRBAP AL 7ESNT ¢
Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Zhou Mingming JARARR S A&

Mr. Zhou Longrui EBEm &

Ms. Yang Yunfei ZESi i

Mr. Yang Xinxin TSR A
Non-executive Director FHITESE

Ms. Fang Jianjun HEELZ T
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFERTES
Mr. Wang Jigiang FHER T E

Prof. Ouyang Minggao &R 5 B = U

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEELAE
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE

The Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of ~ EZEIRIE AR ARG S IEMA KR FE 8918
the articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The non-  FESER - IFNTEE LB UIIERITEENE
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are  {E{EERA3F -

appointed for periods of 3 years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr. Wang AR QAT R EET#ER L4  BISHASHIE - =86
Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi ~ #15e& R R EH £ ANB T ERE - BB L
Kit and the Company considers each of them as independent pursuantto TR BIF3.13{§ - R ATR A AEEBI AL ©
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Company’s articles of association provides that the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the time being
of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of
them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects
belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in
the execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
PROVIDED THAT this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive in the shares (the “Shares”) or debentures of the Company
or associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/
or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are set
out below:
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Long positions in the Shares RERFE
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
in the Company/
Associated
Corporations
Number of BRFEAT
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares HH B R E B g
E=lR S ERNHE :3vd | gHEsit
Mr. Zhou Mingming™M@e@ Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 37.68%
("Mr. Zhou") interest in spouse and beneficial owner
JEIRA AR % A ee XL EERD  EBERREREAA
(TAFLED
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation, 416,084,500 37.68%
FEE LY interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  REERRERERA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
AL L interest in spouse and beneficial owner
REEEELD  IEERRERERA
Ms. Yang Yunfei?” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
BERLZLO interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEELD  REESNERERA
Mr. Yang Xinxin® Interest in a controlled corporation 21,000,000 1.90%
SRR E® and beneficial owner
RIEEERRREREAA
Mr. Wang Jigiang® Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
TR TEEO EmBEAA
Prof. Ouyang Minggao‘'? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
X (5 R m 2R 10 BEHEAA
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai'" Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
FEEEED EmBEAA
Mr. Ng Chi Kit? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%

KB

Emfa A
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Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

4

5)

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State Investments Limited
(“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares held by
Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC) Limited (“Jolly Pride”)
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In
addition, pursuant to a trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries
dated 30 May 2014 and 13 October 2014, entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in
favour of 49 individuals who are employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly Pride Trust
Deed"), the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to
the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate in
shareholders meetings of the Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees and
shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr.
Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all
the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested
in 111,637,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai Xiang”) and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and
150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to
heron 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 111,637,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in the 1,360,000 Shares
directly held by Mr. Zhou, and in the 242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500 Shares which Mr.
Zhou is interested by reason of his being the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
20189, respectively.
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(©)

7)

8

©

(10)

(11)

(12)

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy Investments
Limited (“High Joy”") and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500 Shares held by
High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares
and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options
granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In
addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”) and
500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the
exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is
also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of
High Joy and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him
upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and
25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng Limited (“Tong
Sheng”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
Mr. Yang Xinxin is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Wang Jigiang is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000 Shares
which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April
2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the
Group.
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Approximate

Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
2iE B ERHHE EHn#AE EEEHESLLE
Mr. ZhouM@e® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
B 5 A e interest of spouse and beneficial owner

R LE gL  EEERREREAA
Great State® Beneficial owner 242,145,000 (L) 21.93%
wFO EREAA
Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 58,942,500 (L) 5.34%
HEO EHEAA
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
HEErz L interest of spouse and beneficial owner

R LE R  EBERNEREAA
Bai Xiang® Beneficial owner 111,637,000 (L) 10.11%
BEFO EnlEEA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%
JERElR e E© interest of spouse and beneficial owner

R LE R  EBERREREAA
High Joy®© Beneficial owner 32,137,500 (L) 2.91%
SE32 EnlEA
Ms. Yang Yunfei®” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%

BERLL?

interest of spouse and beneficial owner

REprEEs  CERENESHERA
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Approximate

Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding

E1 57 HaKH B fn 8 B BiESva St

Shiny Century” Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.28%
ACERO BEERAA

Tianneng International Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 111,680,000 (L) 10.11%

Holdings Limited® and beneficial owner
REEEER R ERERA
FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial owner 55,304,000 (L) 501%

BEmEAA

(L): Long position

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

4

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is therefore deemed
to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to the Jolly
Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall
belong to the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all
other rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate
in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees
and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride,
Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of
all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may
be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou,
pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares directly held by Mr. Zhou,
and in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018,
21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang
Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang
Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century and 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of
the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares , 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

Tianneng International Investment Holdings Limited directly holds 56,680,000 Shares and is
interested in 55,000,000 Shares through 37T K E Bl#T 1% & & H B R 22 &] and the entities
controlled by it.

)

©)

)

8)
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Director to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management are
set out on pages 25 to 30.

2010 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7 June
2010 (the "2010 Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on 7 July
2010. The 2010 Share Option Scheme had a term of 10 years and expired
on 6 July 2020. No further options can be granted or offered but all
outstanding share options granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the 2010 Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the movement of share options granted under the 2010 Share  ANFERIFE T —TFEERET 2R HOERE

Option Scheme for the Year are as follows: HEE ST
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Price per asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Category and Share 1January during during during during  31December
Name of Participants Date of Grant (HK$) 2021 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2021
NZBI-F NZBI-F
BRITER -A-H +ZR=t+-A
BEEZRURLA LLiLE (¥7) ARfTE FERERY FEREAE FERCHA FERCEN 3
Directors
L
Mr. Zhou Mingming 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
RRBRE ZZ-/\mARAY
21 December 2018% 304 350000 - - - - 350000
it Sy It:2 gy o s
25 March 20199 309 150,000 - - - - 150,000
ZT-N\FZAZTRRY
Mr. Zhou Longrui 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
REhit “Z-\EMARAY
21 December 2018% 314 350000 - - - - 350000
B\t Azt-Re
25 March 20199 309 150,000 - - - - 150,000
ZE-AFZAZHERY
Ms. Yang Yunfei 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
BERL 3-N\FmARAY
21 December 2018 3114 350000 - - - - 350000
B\t Azt-Re
25 March 20199 309 150,000 - - - - 150,000
ZT-N\FZAZTRRY
Mr. Yang Xinxin 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Lk “Z-\EMARAY
21 December 20182 304 350000 - - - - 350000
it Sy It:2 gy o s
25 March 20199 309 150,000 - - - - 150,000
ZT-N\FZAZTRRY

ansrenancn  ooes NN
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Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Price per asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Category and Share 1January during during during during 31 December
Name of Participants Date of Grant (HKS) 2021 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2021
RIBZ-% RZBZ-F
BRITER -A-B tZA=1-H
SATEARKA BHAH (#T) AX{TE FEECHNY FEEEAE FERCHA  FEECEN AF{THE
Ms. Fang Jianjun 4 April 2018 433) 500000 - - - - 500000
TEERL —E-/\FMARA"
21 Decerber 2018% 3014 350000 - - - - 350000
- NEtzA=t-Be
25March 20199 309 150000 - - - - 150,000
ZT-NEZRZTRAY
Mr.Wang Jigiang 4 April 2018" 4332 250000 - - - - 250000
HERTE —5-\§mAmAY
21 Decerber 2018% 3114 250000 - - - - 250000
- NEtzA=t-Be
25March 20199 309 100,000 - - - - 100,000
ZT-NEZRZTRAY
Prof, Ouyang Minggao 4 April 2018" 433 250000 - - - - 250000
BERRHR —E-/\FMARA"
21 Decerber 2018% 3114 250000 - - - - 250000
2 N\E+ZA-t-AY
25March 20199 309 100,000 - - - - 100,000
ZR-NEZRCTRREY
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai 4 April 2018" 4332 250000 - - - - 250000
Xy ZT-\EMARAY
21 Decerber 2018% 3114 250000 - - - - 250000
ZF-N\Etzfzt-Ae
25March 20199 309 100,000 - - - - 100,000
ZR-NEZRCTRREY
Mr.Ng ChiKit 4 April 2018" 4332 250000 - - - - 250000
REGRE ZZ-\EMAMAY
21 Decerber 2018% 3114 250000 - - - - 250000
2 \E+ZA-t-AY
25March 20199 309 100,000 - - - - 100,000
ZR-NEZRCTRREY
Employees 21 December 20187 3114 33,000,000 - - - - 33,000,000
1] ZB-\EtAZt-A?
25 March 20199 309 29500000 - - - - 29500000
ZZ-NEZAZTRAEY
Total
it 69,900,000 - - - - 69900000
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Notes:

(1) Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates
of the share

options:

Performance

target:

2

)

Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share
options:

Performance
target:

3

Nl

Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates
of the share
options:

Performance
target:

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on4 April 2018

() 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 4 April 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 4 April 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during

the validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the
date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2018

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during
the validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25March 2019

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25 March 2020

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25 March 2021

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during
the validity period of the share options.

The closing prices of the Shares on 3 April 2018, 20 December 2018 and 22
March 2019, being the dates immediately before the dates of the share
options were granted, were HK$4.32, HK$3.04 and HK$3.09 per Share,

respectively.
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The fair value of the share options under the 2010 Share Option Scheme in
aggregate was estimated at HK$121,403,000. The estimated fair values of
the options granted to the Directors on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019 were HKS5,266,000, HK$2,981,000 and HKS$ 1,266,000,
respectively. The estimated fair values of the share options granted to the
Group's eligible employees on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25
March 2019 were HK$43,636,000, HKS$35,769,000 and HK$32,485,000,
respectively. These fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model
and the values of options are subjects to a number of assumptions and
with regard to the limitation of such model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

—E-THFERESIETERENATEG K
fAFT/A121,403,00087C - RZZE—N\FMAWA -
—E-N\F+ZAZF+—BEZZE—NEF=A
T tTRAHRAEZESHEENBERENGET A FED T
75,266,000 7T ~ 2,981,000 78 7T K2 1,266,000 7 IT ©
RZE-NEFWAMHE - ZE—NFE+=HA
—t+—HBEE-NAFZA-THHARAEEA
EREERINBRENGTATFES A
43,636,000/ 7T * 35,769,000/ 7T M 32,485,000/ 7T ©
ZERNTFENFRAZBARAGE - MEBRES
BEEXZIERERR - WEABEX ZRHIEH -
ZEA S ASBROT

4 April 21 December 25 March

2018 2018 2019

—N\F Z=—\F —NF

MAMH +=—A=+—H =AZ=+H%HH

Grant date share price B A ERE HKD4.183 HKD3.05 HKD3.09

4183 T 3058 7T 3.0978 7T

Exercise price B HKD4.332 HKD3.114 HKD3.09

433287T 31148 7T 3.0978 7T

Expected life T8 HA4F 5 8 years 8 years 8 years

84F 8% 84

Expected volatility ?E,Hﬂfﬁmg 475% 45.8% 45.6%

Dividend yield B g & 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%

Risk-free interest rate #aﬂiﬂﬁ GRS 1.84% 2.00% 1.50%
During the Year, no share option under the 2010 Share Option Scheme had ~ RAFE - BB T - FERETEIE TV

been vested or exercised. As at 31 December 2021, 69,900,000 share
options granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme remained
outstanding.

The table showing movements in the Company’s share options held by the
Group’'s employees (including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries) and valuation of the share options are also set out in the
section headed “Share-based Payment Transactions” under Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. The accounting policy adopted for the
share options is also set out in Notes 3.2 and 43.

2020 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Since the 2010 Share Option Scheme expired on 6 July 2020, the adoption
of a new share option scheme was proposed by the Board and approved
by the shareholders on 10 June 2020 (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”).
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The purpose of the 2020 Share Option Scheme is to give the eligible
persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Group and help
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to the
Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions, attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining ongoing relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group, and in the
case of executives, enabling the Group to attract and retain such
individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past
contributions.

The Board may, offer (a) any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position
in any member of the Group (the “Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of the Group (collectively, the “Employee”), (b) a
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of the Group, (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the
Group, (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group, (e)
a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee or
contractor of any member of the Group, and (f) a person or entity that
provides design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the Group,
who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute
to the Group, options to subscribe for Shares on the terms set out in the
2020 Share Option Scheme. The amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKD1.00. Details of the 2020 Share Option Scheme were provided
in the Company's circular dated 29 April 2020.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of 10 June 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), being
110,412,697 Shares, which represented about approximately 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company's issued
share capital from time to time. No option may be granted to any person
such that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company's issued share capital from time to time, unless the approval of
the Company’s shareholders is obtained.
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set out in
the 2020 Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit, including the
time or period before the right to exercise the option in respect of all or
any of the Shares shall vest, provided that such terms or conditions shall
not be inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of the 2020 Share
Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2020
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant under the
2020 Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the 2020
Share Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days after the offer date. The
exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  theaverage closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

The 2020 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Adoption Date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.

No share options were granted, cancelled or lapsed under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme during the Year.

Apart from the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the 2020 Share Option
Scheme, at no time during the Year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year save as disclosed under the sub-
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 52 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a part, during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the employing company within 1 year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed Shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year except for the deviations to the code provision C.2.1,
C.1.6 and F.2.2 of the CG Code. For details, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on page 31 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. For details, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 36 to 37 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group emphasises the importance of personal development of
individual employees. The Group has in place remuneration policies to
ensure providing adequate rewards to employees with recognised
experience for the assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other
benefits including bonuses and shares as incentives.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. The Group always strives to maximize customers satisfaction
and to add value for our customers. The Group identifies areas for
improvement. Customer’'s complaints once acknowledged and reported
will be dealt with timely, fairly and diligently.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is as follows:

4.16%/12.27%
16.62%/35.90%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the Year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021

fERTATH
FrimBEdRE TR TRMGEC2 Qe
F22{R5N  ARBERAFREEBTEEEATA
BB STARX - BRFBERLHAFHRENH
MEREARE -

BRERE
ARAERIBRERS - BHHEHSHNAS
HEGAEEY BB O EAREBRESS
—F

BEARERHEERME

AEERASFARENEARE AEEREH
PSSR - MERIE R 50 2 528 T A R B 7% L B
BENEAGRAUERES - ARETEMHEAM
B - BIRIEAL KA 52R -

AEBRBEZERETFPEFRIEAR KAKE—
BEHNBEFERME  REFPEE - AEEH®
BEGUCE 2 HE CEREVERZ BPRHFH
GER - AP RIERBRUEIE

FEERRHER
TBEPRMEARNAFEARGASEFE N
REBEOERT

BREP/HER
hREP /et

416%,712.27%
16.62%,”35.90%

MEEE RENBBASIREEMARBAR
A AR 5% DA _E B E R AN 2 B B R AR 6 JE AE ] By
BRZEFETREP LU ARSI -



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
During the Year, the Group achieved 100% cadmium-free production and
has fully applied cadmium-free enclosed battery formulation process.

In parallel with enlarging its economic benefits and continuously
enhancing production technology, the Group has adhered to its
environmental protection philosophy of minimizing consumption of
resources, pollution and emissions. The Group continues to advocate the
harmonious and symbiotic relationship between business and the
environment to fulfil its long-term goal of “green production”. To guide the
lead-acid battery industry towards green, healthy and sustainable
development, the Group has united enterprises both upstream and
downstream in a lead-acid battery industry alliance for promoting green
development and recycling during the Year. Through a series of activities
intended to improve the brand image, the Group has strived to become
the top green energy brand in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and the
Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC. The Group’s establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a member of the Group continued to be a party to the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
announcements and reporting requirements but exempt from
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of
all of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being
less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual cap amount exceeding
HK$3,000,000:

Purchase of battery production equipment

Chaowei Power Group Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Power") and Zhejiang Doulan
Intelligence Equipment Co,, Ltd (“Zhejiang Doulan”), a connected person of
the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules, entered into a
battery production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement”) dated 29 December 2015,
by which Zhejiang Doulan has agreed to supply batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities to Chaowei Power for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018, renewable upon
expiry (subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Zhejiang Doulan is
60% owned by Mr. Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of Mr.
Zhou and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Battery Production Equipment Purchase Agreement,
Chaowei Power agreed to purchase batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan from time to time
at price with reference to actual costs (including labour costs, costs of
materials, technology development costs, rental expenses and
depreciation expenses related to batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities ordered by Chaowei Power) plus
reasonable gross profit margin of Zhejiang Doulan, ranging from 20% to
25%, which is, to the best knowledge the Company, in line with the then
market practice as for the Company engaged in the similar industry and
with the similar scale, which shall not, in any event, be higher than the
prices of the products with comparable nature and scale charged by other
independent third party suppliers. For the purpose of ensuring the
consideration being fair and reasonable, the Company has taken into
account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar projects;
and

(2)  the historical price of similar projects procured by the Group.

For the 3 years ended 31 December 2018, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement are set at RMB80,000,000, RMB110,000,000 and
RMB150,000,000, respectively (tax excluded).

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 December 2015.

On 28 December 2018, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement by entering into another battery
production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement (2019-2021)") with Zhejiang Doulan for
another term of three years commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending
on 31 December 2021
the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected
transactions).

, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with

For the 3 years ended 31 December 2021, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement (2019-2021) are set at RMB40,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB50,000,000 respectively (tax excluded).
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Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2018.

On 17 December 2021, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement (2019-2021) by entering into another
battery production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement (2022-2024)") with Zhejiang
Doulan for another term of three years commencing from 1 January 2022
and ending on 31 December 2024, renewable upon expiry (subject to
compliance with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding
continuing connected transactions).

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2024, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement (2022-2024) are set at RMB40,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB40,000,000 respectively (tax excluded).

During the Year, purchase of batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan amounted to
approximately RMB25,128,000, which is within the 2021 annual cap of
RMB50,000,000.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 17 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other transactions set out in note 52
to the financial statement constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)~ onnormal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 66 to 68 of this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION
Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively the
"Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the Year, each of them
has complied with the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the Controlling Shareholders
in favour of the Company. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time) being referred
by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders for the Year
and considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed
of Non-competition during the Year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
A financial information summary of the Group is set out on page 220 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except for service contracts with the Directors or persons engaged in full
time employment of the Company, no contracts concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, during the Year and as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
31 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIAZHENERE

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 219, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MREFXER BNEFRTEERBBRERNG &

Warranty provision

We identified warranty provision as a key audit matter due to the Our procedures in relation to warranty provision included:

significance of this provision to the consolidated financial
statements and the management’s estimates involved in
estimating warranty provision at the end of the reporting period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the
time of sale based on cost incurred on the past warranty claims
and unit sales history and further adjusted to reflect actual costs
incurred when information becomes available.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of warranty provision are
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

R ag i 0

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies
used by the management for estimating warranty
provision;

Testing the underlying data and challenging the
assumptions used by the management based on past
events in estimating warranty provision and changes
in market conditions; and

Reviewing the adequacy of warranty provision,
including verifying the actual warranty cost incurred
subsequent to the end of reporting period and
comparing to the warranty provision made at the end
of the reporting period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIAZHENERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021

Hft ®W#
BERREEHEMENAE - HENERER
FREER T BIEAE M HRER R AR B R

=

BPUGREMBREANELALEREEMER -
BT SR A BB AEAT A RE SR o

IRMABREAMHEHRERME - RAINEERH
BHEMEN  EEREMEMNIEREAMBHRE
FRMBEHEENERBRENT  RETHM
ERERRA - WEPIERANEG TERBEME
BBEEXRERRL - AAREEREEE - A1
g =

EFREERAITHESMERENRE

EXABRBERMBREERREFB(ABED)
MIRBERTE  REEERAFOEEPBEHRE -
ANAEEERA/VENAMEE  BRESY
BHANGR I FERRFRERERNEASH
ARERAL ©

REGEMBRERE  EFAENE EXEN
SELEREN  BREWER) BREKERRN
FR-RIBEEHRKE BEEEFBRAFILLEE
kBRI 2 SN B ELAD AT AT HO% - & RIZRERA DASE
BREQEMHEDE -

ERATBEEE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIAZHENERE

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor's report is Kay Man Wo, Dick.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEREAMEZENER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—Ft+-_A=t—RHLFE

0 2020
: il Sk 5
Notes 000 RMB'000
Bt 5 i ARBT T
Revenue WA 5 29,488,819 27,304,556
Cost of sales SHE RN (26,164,322) (24,007,223)
Gross profit EF 3,324,497 3,297,333
Other income H A 7 473,528 322,508
Other gains and other losses Hoh Y as K H A S 18 8 (74,197) 215,710
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEHER X (839,687) (718,945)
Administrative expenses THAX (514,724) (613,105)
Research and development expenses e (929,292) (857,364)
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FAHRZ EESEENIE T HY
loss model, net of reversal SEEE - BB E 9 (328,515) (157,922)
Finance costs Bh & k2N 10 (321,846) (371,669)
Share of losses of joint ventures BihEe e EEE (1,987) (15,420)
Share of losses of associates FE(LEE N T EE (3,160) (35 567)
Profit before tax ik 75 51T 1) 11 784,617 1,065,559
Income tax expense FriSfif = 14 (249,532) (341,053)
Profit for the year FRFIE 535,085 724,506
Other comprehensive income (expense):  Hfth 2 EURES (Bs) ¢
Items that may be reclassified subsequently — H &3¢ & B #5748 BIE 75 1
to profit or loss: HA :
Exchange differences on translation of BEFINETE TS RER A
financial statements of fEHER
foreign operations 3,593 (81)
Fair value gain on receivables at fair BATETAEMEE
value through other comprehensive Weas ([T FERTA
income (“FVTOCI") 3 J‘@aaﬁ”ﬂlmj ) B
MR IA FHEH&Z 526 238
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently ~ B &1 Ajf-_ﬁ%ﬁ i W= EiEdi)
to profit or loss: EH :
Fair value loss on equity instruments RAFESFAEMEZE
at FvTOC| LIéz S TEM
NEEEE - -
Other comprehensive income FHEMEEWS
for the year, net of income tax MR EH 4,119 157
Total comprehensive income fortheyear FFRAZHEIT R 539,204 724,663
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT E(RFEAFHE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIE/ZS DN 516,269 720,397
Non-controlling interests e 18,816 4,109
535,085 724,506
Total comprehensive income for the year AN A EFEMRERN 2 E W
attributable to: 4aFE
Owners of the Company RARIEA A 520,388 720,554
Non-controlling interests PR e 18,816 4,109
539,204 724,663
Earnings per share BREAF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —ERR#EE(ARET) 15 0.47 0.65
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBIRAE
At 31 December 2021
RZZB-_—%+-A=+—H

0 2020
Notes B’000 RMB'000
BaE R ARETFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R M RE 17 4,773,860 5,106,963
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 536,178 500,194
Investment properties WE Y 19 1,650 40,058
Goodwill EES 20 49,447 49,447
Intangible assets mEE 21 205,582 247,192
Interests in joint ventures REE DR 22 72,134 147,243
Interests in associates PN /N] e 23 43,089 57,260
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BRATEAEMEE
WSS T A 24 5,300 5,300
Loan receivables JEUSE 25 44,928 41,794
Deferred tax assets R IBE B 26 579,629 513,895
Other receivables H b e U 5108 30 11,154 48,090
Amounts due from related parties JiE Uk BA B 05 SR IE 52 18,616 133,085
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ity e =Y S
plant and equipment FrisiE® 240,855 158,429
6,582,422 7,048,950
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 27 3,923,961 3,425,070
Loan receivables JEUE K 25 35,039 34,725
Trade receivables FEUNE FBE TR 28 2,205,165 1,938,261
Receivables at FVTOCI BAFESAEMEE S
B FE W kIR 29 1,660,973 1,087,511
Prepayments and other receivables TR SRIE B B At W R IE 30 1,464,904 1,302,702
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEG AEBE
profit or loss ("FVTPL) (MR A TFERFAERE])
& EEE 31 214,500 275,123
Derivative financial instruments PTTESRTI A 32 1,392 -
Amounts due from related parties JfE U BE Bt 7 FR0E 52 91,761 215,860
Restricted bank deposits Z R &I SRITIF 5K 33 1,143,032 1,332,206
Bank balances and cash RITAEREIRE 33 2,860,613 2,552,548
13,601,340 12,164,006




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MERAER

At 31 December 2021
RZE=Z—F+=-A=1+—H

0 2020
< —E-FTF
Notes 000 RMB'000
B 5E R ARETFIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REHER
Trade payables FES B 8RR 34 2,711,383 2,633,901
Bills payable FEt =i 35 1,869,391 1377478
Other payables and accruals H b e FOA M BB A 36 1,456,679 1,516,464
Contract liabilities AHBERE 37 564,883 182,463
Warranty provision RSB 38 541,830 484,240
Tax liabilities RIEAE 232,054 392,338
Lease liabilities HE&E 39 a8 4118
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) BB 5 SR IE 52 25,088 21,168
Borrowings ETE 40 4,698,121 4,907,346
12,099,870 11,519,516
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEESH 1,501,470 644,490
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,083,892 7,693,440
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BER G F
Share capital A% < 42 74,704 74,704
Reserves HiE 5,523,236 5,117,385
Equity attributable to owners of RNAREE AEEER
the Company 5,597,940 5,192,089
Non-controlling interests FEERR 53 782,745 832,515
TOTAL EQUITY HEs 6,380,685 6,024,604
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAMR
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIRAE 26 20,877 14,979
Lease liabilities HEAE 39 4,022 4,463
Borrowings BE 40 1,451,348 1,383,186
Deferred income FEEUTA 41 226,960 266,208
1,703,207 1,668,836
8,083,892 7,693,440

FISEEFE20EFEMNGEVERERER S
T FZ A=t HESTeHERRETE
WHTIEERERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 219 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2022 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhou Mingming Yang Xinxin
FEIBARA L]
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

BE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeRERED=R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FLRNAABKES
Equity
attributable
Statutory Share Exchange tonon-
Share Share surplus option FvToCI Other translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve  eamings  Subtotal interests
BATE
HAKf
2ERE FithiEg
k¥ RINER EERBHE WREGE B RtEE RERT Mt BEE #it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTT ABRTT ARRTR ARRTT ARRTR ARRTR AERTRE ABRTR ARRTT ABRRTR
(notei) (noteii)
(:5:41] (Bkii)
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-f-H 74,704 408,237 1,032,169 66,235 (21,799) 297,829 (2437) 3,337,151 5,192,089 832,515 6,024,604
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - - - 516,269 516,269 18,816 535,085
Other comprehensive income EREM2 NG
forthe year - - - - 526 - 3,593 - 4119 - 419
Dividend paidtoownersofthe ~ BRARARAARS.
Company (note 16) (Hizk16) - - - - - - - (107479)  (107,479) - (107479)
Dividend declared to non-controlling  [3EHARIER E RS
interests - - - - - - - - - (35,451) (35,451)
Recognition of equitysettled share ~ FAVARIEEE MR A
based payments ERHfE - - - 2332 - - - - 2332 . 2332
Capital contribution by non-controling FEFE R+ &
interests - - - - - - - - - 2,011 2,0
Acquisition of additionalinterestsin BB KB A TR MERS
subsidiaries - - - - - (9,390) - - (9,390) 2,359 (7,031)
Disposal of non-wholly owned HEFLEHBAT
subsidaries (note 46 (Kizt40) - - - - - - - - - (31s05)  (37,509)
Transer to esenves N - - 104101 - - - - (104100) - - -
31 December 200 HoE--ETCA=t-H| 4704 48237 116210 68567 (21273) 288439 1156 3641840 5597940  TALTAS 6380685
At1 January 2020 R-Z-F%-f-H 74704 408237 859219 76,143 (22037) 306871 (235) 2834406 4535187 880,803 5415990
Profitfor the year WA - - - - - - -0 7397 4100 724506
Other comprehensive income EREM2ANE(RR)
(expense) for the year - - - - 238 - (81) - 157 - 157
Dividend paic to owners of the BRAAAREARE
Company (note 16) (Mtz16) - - - - - - - By @) - B
Dividend declared tonon-controling ~ [3EERER E Rk S
interests - - - - - - - - - (113,727) (113,727)
Recogniton of equity-settled share AR ENRA B
based payments EROAR - - - 843 - - - - 28473 - 28473
Cancellation of equity-settled share ~ BUBRIEEEARD B
based payments ERBMZ - - - (38381) - = = 38381 = = =
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEFEARERS ¥+
interests - - - - - - - - - 62926 62926
Acquisiion of additional interestsin -~ IREERHBA REVESMER
subsidiaries - - - - - (9042) - - (9042) (4,000 (13042)
Deregisterof non-whollyowned ~ BUEEE2 ENEBAA
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (16) (16)
Acquisition of anon-whollyowned ~ WE—FE2ENEBAR
subsiciary (note 43) (Pi3E45) - - - - - - - - - 2167 2167
Disposal ofanon-whollyowned ~ HE-FHEZEHBAR
subsidiary (note 46) (Bizk40) - - (14) - - - - 14 - 3 yi3)
Transfer to reserves N - - 173074 - - - - (1307 = = =
At31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-A=1-A 74,704 408237 1032169 66,235 21,799 297829 437) 3337151 5,192,089 832515 6,024,604




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeEREBDR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(i

(ii)

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of profit after
taxation reported under the relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC
to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous year’s losses, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between the fair value of the
consideration paid/received and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/
disposed to the non-controlling shareholders; (i) debt waived by a related party; and (iii) paid-
in capital of Chaowei Power (as defined in note 53) transferred during the reorganisation
made on 9 March 2010.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AeEBeRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

0 2020
: —ECEF
000 RMB'000
= ARBTIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRI
Profit before tax B B BT A1) 784,617 1,065,559
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income FESA (74,201) (74,043)
Finance costs B KA 321,846 371,669
Share of losses of joint ventures EIE & & REEE 1,987 15,420
Share of losses of associates JE{G B & A R &R 3,160 35,567
Impairment losses on investment in associates KRB &R R RRE RREEE 19,169 -
Impairment losses on investment in joint REECEMITERNRERE
ventures 63,648 =
Inventories write down FE MR 7,401 =
Fair value losses (gains) on financial BEAFEFABENESHEE
assets at FVTPL " A F{EEE (Yas) 57,578 (284,151)
Fair value gain on derivative PTES BT AN AFERE
financial instruments (1,392) =
Realised gain on derivative financial TTESm T ENE#R WS
instruments (115,075) =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE&ZEEE
plant and equipment 27,591 34,380
(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (W) B8 (13,480) 10,486
Loss on modification of a loan receivable BT —IBEKE N EE - 14,655
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYESE 18,109 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MR NMRETE 662,774 541,430
Depreciation of investment properties KEETE 645 3,558
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 41,610 41,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 14,000 14,368
Deferred government grant recognized BRI RE I 47 B (51,111) (45,396)
Loss allowance recognized on: AT FIBERA EERERE
— Trade receivables — EE SRR 47,756 68,432
— Other receivables — E b B FRIE 59,890 18,474
— Loan receivables — B E - 42,936
— Amounts due from related parties — PR RN 5 ROR 220,869 28,080
Equity-settled share based payments VARG HE 45 E DA RR 0 AR BT B T 3K 2,332 28473
Operating cash flows before HEESEHAINCERERE
movements in working capital 2,009,723 1,931,508
Inventories e (704,925) (763,231)
Receivables, deposits and prepayments FEMGRIE ~ e RTE IR (1,036,230) 178,711
Amounts due from related parties FE BA S 5 kIR 7,423 641
Trade payable, bills payable, other BB SRR - BN -
payable and accruals E b fEFIE K BT B 1,155,729 487,180
Contract liabilities BHEE 382,420 (497,868)
Warranty provision 1R 57,590 (10,162)
Amounts due to related parties JE 15T A 75 k1B 3,757 1,934
Cash generated from operations ZEMRBESE 1,965,487 1,328,713
Income tax paid B FTEH (469,652) (130,584)
Net cash from operating activities BETDRESHRE 1,495,835 1,198,129

AP ——



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FElaiE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

0 2020
- —TTHF
Notes 000 RMB'000
Bt 5 = ARBT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BB EE
Government grant towards purchase of 5 B R B RO BT 48 B
equipment 11,863 32,107
Interest received B UF B 68,628 75518
Purchases of property, BEWE  BELE&E
plant and equipment (888,207) (538,912)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE MR E
plant and equipment F1S 5008 119,894 33,772
Proceeds from disposal of SR E Y EERIE
investment property 19,654 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEMZ ~ BB Mk
plant and equipment ZikbE-&n (82,426) (158,429)
Purchase of an investment property BE —IHIEEMHE - (266)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BEEAEEE - (37,909)
Proceeds from disposal of right of HEFAEEEMSHKIE
use assets - 16,485
Net cash (outflow) inflow arising from UWEE—K M B A RIEAER
acquisition of a subsidiary B& Ot RAERE 45 (13,267) 850
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR ATERIA 46 44,527 6,517
Investments in joint ventures REEhENRE (500) -
Investment in an associate R—REEE R AR E (1,274) (1,700)
Proceeds from disposal of interest in & —REEE A R s
ajoint venture FrfS 3R 11,000 =
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BER AT ETARR
e EE (367,368) (485,727)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEERATER AlER
assets at FVTPL B B & B PTIS 5RIE 370,413 646,534
Deposits placed for investing in derivative ~ BtIRELTE SR T EENR
financial instruments EOPER (194,000) =
Purchases of equity instruments at FVTOCI B B2 A F(EET A H b
FHWEERT A - (1,800)
Restricted bank deposits SR FIERTTIF K 189,174 (698,867)
Payments of loan receivables TEUWE 0 (313) (7,798)
Placement of deposits for borrowings GFREERZRS 36,082 (24,024)
Repayment from loan receivables FEWE FE K - 8,169
Advances to related parties [m) ARG 5 AR (15,184) (52,943)
Repayment from related parties AR 7 18 3E IR 25,459 -
Net cash used in investing activities KEEZHTAE S % (665,845) (1,188,423)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeEanE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HIEFE

0 2020
L q —ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iz . ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R R E

Proceeds from borrowings BEMMEHKIEAE 3,687,826 4,632,120
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (3,707,814) (2,432,188)
Repayments of corporate bonds BELEES - (417,804)
Repayment of medium-term note EEPHER - (649,890)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (4,498) (6,205)
Interest paid EARFLE (350,170) (386,753)

Dividends paid to the owners BERNAREHEE ARE
of the Company (107,479) (83,083)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = {5t FEF5 IR HE XS AR B, (35,451) (113,727)

Capital injection from non-controlling SEERAERITE

interests 2,011 62,926

Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

Deregister of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries

W —RETB A RIA

REIMER (7,031) (13,042)
BUHFEMIER BB A R
- (16)

Advance from related parties R B BEEE 7 2K 7,054 =

Repayments to related parties B2k Pageen (6,891) (7,036)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities g & &8 (FTH) T8R4

R 49 (522,443) 585,302

Net increase in cash and ReRBASSREYBMBE

cash equivalents 307,547 595,008
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYRENRIBEEED

of the year 2,552,548 1,958,428
Effects of exchange rate changes b = F B B 518 (888)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the ERHRERRESZEY -

year, represented by bank balances DSRITHGBRASRT

and cash 2,860,613 2,552,548




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m
lill]\

SMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EES

1.

—E-—F+-_A=1+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 7 July 2010. The
address of the registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1205 Cayman Islands, and the address of its principal place of
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is No.18,
Chengnan Road, Huaxi Industrial Function Area, Changxing County,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“‘RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
most of its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and sales of lead-
acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related
products.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the
costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale” when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendment to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS Standards

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

/
/
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

/

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EES

3.
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R —H+A=+—RHILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

1, 2 or 3 based on

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction- by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to
be a business and no further assessment is needed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSUMBERENELERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Bk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued) EBEOIKIEEE (&)
Asset acquisitions WhEEE

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the International
Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
September 2010).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)

3.2 FESBE(ME)
EBEHANEEE (B)

Business combinations (continued) HEELG(E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and AUEE B HY - PTURES AT 35 Bl & 2 M BT

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except AEAGEREAFERR M

that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12
Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which
(@) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSMBBRENELERIES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Bk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFHBE ()
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued) EBEOIKIBEE (&)
Business combinations (continued) HEELG(E)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHMBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash- generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash- generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFHBE ()

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate or joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the current period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFHBE ()

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A receivable represents the Group'’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Warranties

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets unless the warranty provides the customer with a
service in addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type warranties).

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received:;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHMBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever: the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSMBBRENELERIES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Bk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFHBE ()
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor KEBERHAA
Classification and measurement of leases HEZHKGE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. The leases for which the Group is a lessor during the
current year are all classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHMBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group's interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e., RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes, including state-managed retirement benefits
schemes in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For
share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Share-based payment arrangements (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGAMBEERNELERTES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FHEE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)
Taxation (continued) HE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary EEFRIBE B TIGLRAK B R 7 & B &
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and RAZIREMEERE L EREER
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the EEM TR E=EER . EHAERLE
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary S | TR = %E 2 B O] R R =R
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will Al B R 2 B QIR AN - ZERE
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets FERBEN AR TR EREELR
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with REHIBEE  ERNERHAERTA
such investments and interests are only recognised to the TALAEN AR E R =5 L TEst &R el
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable B R ol B R A7 o

profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the RIERIAEENRAENSRSHR
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it BiZ o WA ERIRER BAERTIAE -
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be LAM Bl 2 0k 2 o B EE ¢ AIEIREE
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. HIBEEMEREE -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates REHHEEERBERBRERENR
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is EEMIABE B E(REDE)
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) BN EEAEREREEFEARNN
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end AT EARETE -

of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects BERIBEEEREENGZ - REX
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in EERGREAKRTEF W A HEE
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, BENBEREOEREANBREER -

to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Temporary difference arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modification that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and the deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
When current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than construction in
progress. Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes (i.e. construction in progress) are
carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MAGAMERRNEEREERS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BB (§8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)
Intangible assets (continued) BEREE(E)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination REL IR R & E T
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are EEEHPKRBENEFLEELEBES
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially HER - ROZERARKERBBHAOA
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is T EERGRIEEKA) -

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in LT HERE  EBEHPRENAES
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at HEEERTHNETREERESING
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated WEEREENMBEREE KA
impairment losses on the same basis as intangible assets that ZEH I R 2EREBE R o

are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no B EENHERSTETERKEE
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. A BN 4 R AR AR R 25 B U FERR ©
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible BUBMRELEEMES 2 WE ME
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal B RREEZ N EMSERIEFENA
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised EEEMEZEZBE EEERHEE
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. R IERIER o

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use YE BERREG EHELEERE
assets and intangible assets other than goodwiill FEEERE (BERI)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the RI|EHAR - AEBZEFEEGRA
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right- FRFHNYE  BEMRE - FH
of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to HEE EBREEMEREE UEBTE
determine whether there is any indication that these assets ZEEEACEAMURBEEETR
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, M REMEBETR - BlSHarE
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in BEMAWE 2  WEEREEE
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). (nAE)BIEE -

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, ME - BMELEREG FRAEEERE
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated FEERT U E S ZEERIEHE o fHA]
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the Wel A REEBIEET  AEEE
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the BT ZEEMBNRSEEEMNA]
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the el e%E o

asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
(or cash generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUMBBENELEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Bk (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)
Inventories 7B
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FERKANAEEFENBEE A
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, B - ApEEEMA R (IER) "
directs labour costs and those overheads that have been BYETRAUARSBFEXEREGME
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location FENEAERIHNEMER - K AL
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average IR AR E o A IR FER AT
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling EBRTAGTTIREERTRA -

price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions B

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present MANEEREFEEMBAAERES
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is FECERRETE) MAKE A LARE
probable that the Group will be required to settle that TREEBEZE TSR S2{hET
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount Al & R s B4 o

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of EErhBRBEEZ AR KT EEHE
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at & WBREEENSELANRREER
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks BIRBEEMEREFELDORER
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a e WEtEERBEITREETAGE
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle RenEste EREEAXRTHSE
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value MEMBEE(WEESHEETYES
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of K)o

money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty RIEREEAEFEHEMNEE HEME
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for mZEHNRELRES EEEKAN
sales of lead-acid motive battery products are recognised at REBERNHEBHREEHEE
the date of sale of the relevant products, at the Directors' best AEBEFETE R WREMGTER
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's Bl o

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/Dividend income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCl") if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)
(i) Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these receivables are recognised in
OCl and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in profit
or loss with corresponding adjustment to OCl without
reducing the carrying amounts of these receivables. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortised cost. When these receivables are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income and other gains and losses” line item in profit or
loss.

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()
T A (&)
TREE(E)
EREEN I BREEE (B)

(i) PDER/EAFEFAEMEZEK
A FE YRR
“ﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%kﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

SR EURIENERRERRES
& BB R EOF B UK
AR BRER ° 7% F & WA
HEMNMAEMEHNEMEH
W FERR I R A FERT A H A
EHEWKEFFBEERT R - RER
BRERER  YHEME2EK
smIEHAEEE - MM %
FRKFANEREE - RNBSE
REZFLREE ZFRWFOR
RN T B BN B R R
MEEER - EBURRERZERE
WoRTRRS - FERTR B At 2 E s

R R R EIREN DB

£i8z o

(i)  HEEREAFEFAEMEEK
mRESTA
BAFEFARMEEK R
m TAREDHEREAFER

HERAFEEFMELE W
E&%EFE@EEWm¢$
R ARBAFESFARMER
WafE#+ Rt BATURE
Al - BRI EHBETE
E’\ﬁ’%ﬂx$&§1§i¥ﬁ DERER

- BREEERERRF -

BN B U B B2 R A
S RERERTEREZREE
Bz AR BIEE R SR
BEBERZIEE W R Z 35 K
Ko REFFABREAZ [EAUK
AREMUEE R EE| B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSUMBERNELERIES®
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FHE (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EEEFHBE ()
Financial instruments (continued) SHITA(E)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOC! or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other income and other gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, receivables at FVTOCI, other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for
debtors in severe financial difficulty and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(if)

(iiif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables and receivables at
FVTOCI are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHMBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FESFBE(E)

Financial instruments (continued) ST A (&)

Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) ZEEERE(E)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued) v) TEHEEBEMNI=RERE)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into REESERI(EHIEAERIE -
consideration the following characteristics when 15 E B LA T2,
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status; EHERAROR

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For receivables that
are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of these
receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the
FVTOCI reserve in relation to accumulated loss
allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGAMBEERNELERETES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FHEE (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EERHHE(E)
Financial instruments (continued) 2ET A (E)
Financial assets (continued) EREE (&)
Derecognition/maodification of financial assets AR NEGT 2 BB E
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the rEEEEREEERBE S RNE
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or #OHE T e R &H—fﬁ MEERZE
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the EFTA N BRI Rk & O shEE
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If i = H%,ZZJJ;EE A&
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks Eo MASEWARERNEREAE
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the TR BRI D B N B - I A&
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in FIEEENEE  IIAEEERER
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to BRERREENASAINNEER
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards HEAaE  MASBNREE#HZESD
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group RIEENFTAENR KNS AR KO
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises W AEBBEERRAZEMEE
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. WA F AT TS RIERER —EA

EHREE -

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised RIETERREBHEK A BN SR EE
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and B EEREEHRD R EEKRKER
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is Mz @R ZEERERER o

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of receivables that are measured at FVTOC, KIFEREAFEFAEMEZE K E
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the sHE R EUEIER - SLRTRNIRAFEE
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. STAEM 2 E WS FEE R WSk
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On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument RILERAEER IR ERREER
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure ANEEFAEMEE KRS ENETS
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated TERER  LAiRZAFET AR
in FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is e mW R A 2T R EET
transferred to retained profits. BN EEE - BEEEREFE -
A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual MEAREe mEET EE AR
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified. NIEE] » BIEA S BMEERSIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2 EERATBR ()

Financial instruments (continued) TET A (&)
Financial assets (continued) T EE (&)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets (continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. REGSHMESRERNEERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT M (i)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 FE®ATBR (W)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables and amount due to related parties are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instrument
The Group enters into a derivative financial instrument to
manage its exposure, to commodity price risk. Further details
of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 51(e).

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss unless the derivative is designated an effective as
a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Warranty provision

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months starting from
the sales of all lead-acid motive battery products. Under the terms of
warranty, the Group undertakes to repair or replace the battery free
of charge in the event of any malfunctioning within the warranty
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sales of all lead-acid motive battery products based on cost
incurred on the past warranty claims and unit sales history and
further adjusted as required to reflect actual costs incurred, as
information becomes available. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised provision for warranty amounted to RMB541,830,000
(2020: RMB484,240,000) and details are disclosed in note 38. In cases
where the actual cost incurred on the warranty claims are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of estimated costs related to product warranty, a
material reversal or further provision of warranty provision may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further provision takes place.

Estimated loss allowance of financial assets

Management of the Group estimates the amount of loss allowance
to 12-month ECL on financial assets in both trade and non-trade
nature (including other receivables and non-trade amounts due
from associates, joint ventures and other third parties).

In determining the ECL for these financial assets, management of the
Group has taken into account the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example the Group
has considered the consistently low historical default rate, financial
position, as well as pledge of assets of the counterparty, equity
interest and undistributed retained earnings in these entities and
expected future earnings that would be distributed by entities,
based on which, management of the Group has assessed that
whether these financial assets have any significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Such assessment of the credit risk of the
respective financial instrument involves high degree of estimation
and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at the end of
each reporting period is disclosed in notes (25, 28, 29, 30, 31, 33, 52)
to the financial statements.
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WE - MIREHRELENERRADRKZ
RIEH - Sk EE RN A B ARE BERR
BHEFTARAER] - B e EA B AR D L,
E—DRHRREREE R EE s —
TR A MBI IB R N RER -

ETHEENRAEEERRE
AEEEEEBEFAESIFESEREE(R
BEMERFERERBEAR  AEEE
KEME=JTHFEE SR 11218 A A H
EEBRBEER -

REETZSeREENTRBEEBER &
SEEEECHBERAEENERIAE
HER(ER) - flmn - AEEEEE—&
BREMELEZHE  FHRR - ARRZH
FHEEER RAFERBNBENADE
MRE BN AR E RS T 2 M IEHIR R
@ AREEEERUTEZREEREEN
EERRE VI ERIAKRR R B REZEM -
HHEEERTACERRNFHEERSER
A RTHEEN - EERARIRSRENNE
HigmTa s - AIRE AR IR EARIE
ERSRERER S HREARKME -

AEESHEERSREHRNEARESD B
B BRI FE(25 ~ 28 ~ 2930 ~ 31 ~ 33
52) I EE o

annranarcn  ooen S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets of RMB579,629,000
(2020: RMB513,895,000) in relation to allowances for ECL and
inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision, tax losses and
other temporary differences have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of
RMB1,819,402,000 (2020: RMB1,695,095,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisation of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are more or less than expected, a material
adjustment of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such an
adjustment takes place. Further details of deferred taxation are
disclosed in note 26.

4.

MEEHAGE G FIREERD
FERIF ()

A TFTREERHEERE (])
TEREET BEEE
R-ZZE-—F+=-A=+—8  E@EHE
EEERTFERE  BETRA  BitEAK
B BEEEREMEREEARTHE
BEARES79629000T(ZTE_FF : A
R ¥ 513,8950007T) E &R & B ISR it 3= 1
R o AR AITERIAR R FDERIR - Bt I &
PLAB) AR IAE 18 A R 1,819,402,000 7T (=
T T F : AR#1,695095000 7T ) FERIE LT
REEE - BEHBEERGERFEGRT
RAREBHFTEMRRAEME o MELERD
BERARRAERERZ%D  AEEHRBEE
Er gt EARAE  mEBAEBNIED
FARIENIBRER - BEECEHIENE—
F BRI 26 5 -

REVENUE 5. I{tA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) EFRSHKARIF
customers
0 2020
Z —= —ng
B’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARBTT
Types of goods HaRER
Lead-acid motive batteries SHEL®) S B
Electric bike battery BEETEEM 16,038,462 16,223,934
Electric vehicle battery and BEESMNERAR
special-purpose electric vehicle battery EH)EEM 8,187,069 8,053,844
Li-ion batteries SEEE T EM 245,914 141,016
Renewable materials Al =AM 5,017,374 2,885,762
Total Hat 29,488,819 27,304,556
0 2020
g ZETHF
B’000 RMB'000
R AR¥ETTT
Timing of revenue recognition T R2 M A B 5 )
At a point in time R — A2, 29,488,819 27,304,556
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion
batteries and other related products to customers. Revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been delivered to the customers’
specific locations (delivery). Following the delivery, the
customers have full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, have the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bear the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers
All batteries and related products are delivered within period
less than one year. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis by products.
No other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group's results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented. No segment assets and liabilities, and
related other segment information are presented as no such discrete
financial information is provided to the CODM.

Geographical information

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are from
customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Most of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
The following illustrates the revenue from customers which
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

5.

6.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

WA (#8)
(i) EREVZEVRE

AEBREFHENKS HED 8
BFELMEMERER - WARE
mEES R EERER  NEM
BEREREPHEENME (M) - ZfF
SRR BPAIZRRBEREEES
AREREE YAEBEEmZE
ZEERERBEIIBRZAR

(i) PEEFEFSVZBRTEHNRESD
X HRE

E2REBREFERBR —FARN -
HINBPR I 5 3R 5 AR RSB 1 S5R AT ST AF -
WEREDEZZFARTHE N
1B e

EESE
AERTELERRA(ZELEREAD
MITHRARRENEN T BIEERD IR E
IR mIE AN ITRTE o B AR E B8
R RIS IASN » B & 4R (At {8 Y B
BEF  -ANESREBIEREE 2
BEPRMWEMEEN - ANTEBEERRA
WEEBIRHOMEERARE  ARHEMD
HENDHER - Rt R B2 BERMEE
£t o

wECERH

FA - AEBERE D IMBUAR BT B
YHWEP -HEAASEREERMEL
B REBEAMOIFRBEEIURTE -

FEEFRRHA
AT &R B BRI B AU 10% A LAY
BEPEHWA

Customer A ZEA

0 2020

: —EEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

= ARMF T

N/AMN® 3,023,479
*ﬁm (B&E)

Note:  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.

Bitet : AEBFHCA L 28 B BN EE AR A 10% AL ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

7. OTHERINCOME 7. HkA
0 2020
: —ECEF
000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Government grants AT B

— income related (note) — Y AABRE (B RE) 318,710 183,310

— asset related (note 41) — BEMAR (fisE41) 51,111 45396
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A A B HA 71,066 73,378
Interest income on loan receivables JEURE ZR A F B U 3,135 665
Rental income HE2HA 6,107 6,238
Others HAh 23,399 13,521

473,528 322,508
Note: Htat -
Government grants mainly include various government subsidies received by the Company’s BT B 3 61 457K 2 ] [T /B 2 5] 4% BR 2 (B 45 5 B Jrf 1
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies for various purposes including enterprise BE B IEEEDEER  ERE  RIREEEER
expansion, technology advancement, environmental protection measures enhancement and ERHEEZERHN ZHK#H R —F R
product development. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to —E—FFI—A=+—HEUBRRERNZZ/H R
these grants and subsidies that have been received and recognised as at 31 December 2021 P BT AT S 2 R E AR B B R I
and 2020.
8. OTHER GAINS AND OTHER LOSSES 8. HfuhRHAMESIE
0 2020
: —E-TF
000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Fair value (losses) gains on financial assets BAFEFABRNEREER

at FVTPL (note) NE (E1E) s (FEE) (57,578) 284,157
Fair value gain on derivative financial TSR T ANAFERS

instruments 1,392 -
Realised gain on derivative financial instruments TS T ARND SRS 115,075 =
Loss on disposal of an investment property HE—TBRENEER (18,109) -
Loss on disposal of plant, machinery and HEBE - #E RS EEE

equipment (27,591) (34,380)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries (note 46) HENB AW (B518) (FizE46) 13,480 (10,486)
Net foreign exchange loss SN SRR (3,124) (3519
Impairment loss on investment in associates B & R AR A HR BB

(note 23) (% 23) (19,169) =
Impairment loss on investments in joint REEtENREMRERSE

ventures (note 22) (BFzE22) (63,648) =
Loss on modification of a loan receivable BB E TR EE1E (3 25(0))

(note 25 (b)) - (14,655)
Depreciation of investment properties BREMESNE (645) (35558)
Depreciation of property, plant and EEHESANDE -

equipment generating rental income B E R EOmE (1,687) (686)
Donations B (5,059) (6,144)
Others Hith (7,534) 4,987

(74,197) 215,710
Note:  The amount mainly represents fair value loss on the Group's investment in equity Wiet - Z2EFBEAEFBREE - LERFIEFK

securities listed in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT 9. FHEHEEEEXTHREESE (M

LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL BRim )
0 2020
i ==
B’000 RMB'000
e ARBTT
Impairment losses recognised on: AT B IBERRRERRE
— trade receivables — BIE SRR 47,756 68,432
— other receivables — Efth fE W 5RIE 59,890 18,474
— amounts due from related parties — R UL AR T B 220,869 28,080
— loan receivables — EER - 42,936
328,515 157,922
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 December FRBE - —FR-ZF_ZF+_H
2021 and 2020 are set out in note 51(c). =+ —B I FEAREEF BT
51(c) °
FINANCE COSTS 10. MERF
0 2020
i =t
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Interest expenses on: FEFRX
Bank borrowings RITEE 341,542 317,988
Corporate bond EEH - 21,456
Medium-term note PR - 40,457
Lease liabilities HERE 380 653
Total borrowing costs BEKAERE 341,922 380,554
Less: amounts capitalised in construction B RIERETEAH
in progress =N a0t (20,076) (8,885)
321,846 371,669
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December BE_ZT-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE - #
2021 arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by RERZEERAERE —REERE Tk
applying a capitalisation rate of 5.34% per annum (2020: 4.88% per BEREEMYS34% (S _ZTF : FEL
annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets. % 488%) ERNMEEELLEETH o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

FRIAIFIRA
MBLATFIBER IR GEA) TRIS R :

0 2020
5 ke 22
000 RMB'000
2 ARMETIT
Salaries and other benefits costs e R EMER KA 1,346,406 1,320,850
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINEAIFT SR (B EED
(note i) 60,563 28,983
Labour cost (note ii) 2B TS (Bt =) 156,654 177,061
Share-based payments LARRAD /2 ERE R T 3K 2,332 28,473
Total staff costs (including directors’ BETITRARE(BIEESHE)
emoluments) 1,565,955 1,555,367
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories B RN FEERERMERERE (1,197,889) (1,191,441)
368,066 363,926
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 41,610 41,611
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 « /= MR ETE 662,774 541,430
Total depreciation and amortisation WE R EEEE 704,384 583,041
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories B RN EERERNMEHEE (374,972) (367,063)
329,412 215,978
Depreciation of investment properties REMERTE 645 3,558
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14,000 14,368
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &2/ X T E /K A 26,149,399 23,473,747
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR < 3,850 3,850
Research and development costs recognised RARAZH KA
as an expense 929,292 857,364
Gross rental income from investment properties 1% & ¥ 250 & 42Uk A - (4,430)
Less: direct operating expenses arising from B EEHSAEIREME
investment properties generating rental BRI EEELHT
income - 1,521
- (2,909)
Notes: Mt
(i) During the current year, pursuant to the notice released by the relevant PRC authority, 0] RAFEE - RIBFIGEH EB AL BB AR
certain subsidiaries of the Company have been fully or partially waived to undertake a5 TH1 B 2 7l B 2 E1 2k 555 3 B 75 Z AT
a number of social insurance totaling approximately RMB371,000. BIREE - HERERIBARKE371,0007T °
(ii) The Group has entered into labour dispatch agreements with several service (ii) 7R (B £ 22 53 13 AN B HR (R 25 T & R B AR 7 i

organisations providing labour resources to the Group. FT37 88 TRE ez ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EEREETHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors during the AEBRFERNRES I MOMMESFBOT :
year are as follows:
Salaries  Contribution
and other to retirement
benefits- benefit  Share-based
Fees in-kind scheme payments Total
FeRAfM BT UkinE
e EWEd HEHE  EROAR #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTr ARETT ARETT ARET:H
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z_—F+-A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) [EIBRBR % 4 (Pff3E) - 1,223 1 1 1,245
Mr. Zhou Longrui Bk 35pidaa - 350 - 1 361
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZL - 350 - 1 361
Mr. Yang Xinxin o EiE b - 2,023 16 1 2,050
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Ms. Fang Jianjun HEERL 350 - - n 361
Independent non-executive directors: ~ BILFHITEE :
Mr. Wang Jigiang TERTE 420 - - 8 428
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B[S AR S 2 420 - - 8 428
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FRELE 420 - - 8 428
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGRAE 420 - - 8 428
Total st 2,030 3,946 27 87 6,090
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZE+A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) JEIBRBA 5 4 (FffsE) = 1219 7 214 1440
Mr. Zhou Longrui B E - 360 - 214 574
Ms. Yang Yunfei PERZT - 360 - 214 574
Mr. Yang Xinxin ki - 2115 6 214 2335
Non-executive director: FRTESE:
Ms. Fang Jianjun HRERT 350 - - 214 564
Independent non-executive directors: ~ HIFHITEE :
Mr. Wang Jigiang FERTE 420 - - 139 559
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BRI A = s 420 - - 139 559
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHELE 420 - - 139 559
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBFAE 420 - - 139 559
Total st 2,030 4,054 13 1626 7723
Note: Hist -

Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above also include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

JEIBEBASE A TR 23 A R B R TTICAB L » T X AT 3 2 B
B IVHE R I ETTIRABEL ATHE R AR TS ©

BRBAIERERAT / 2021456% AEY)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were paid for their services as the Directors.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two directors (2020: two directors), details of their
emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining three individuals for the year (2020: three individuals) are
as follows:

12.

13.

EFRERTHRARH® ()

EXFIRBTESHERREFREEELAR
ARAKEER 2 HRARSMS » EXXPT
TERATEZRBYFATESTHENES
BEEE=BHMmMA

A BB R Bl B R & I IS 3R MY
43 o

IEREFALTHHE

FR - ARENLEESHFALEBEREE
2T MAEZF) HMFEH
REXKMEI2- FR - HBTI=ZBAL(ZF
—TF ZBADHBENT ¢

0 2020

. —T_THF

RMB’000 RMB'000

R ARETTT

Salaries and other allowances e N E b ERL 4,233 4,152
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFI IR 15 24
Share-based payments LARS 17 72 EERE Y A 5k - 67
4,248 4,243
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=t+—HIFE

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. ARREHFALTHES ()
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The number of the highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

MerEA THREN RS HEESEHIIM

within the following bands is as follows: o

Number of individuals

ANEL
0 2020
g —E-TF
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 78 7T 2 2
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 /& 7T & 2,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 78 7T & 3,000,000 77T 2 2
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 43 to the BB RERT B ST B H N AR & I i R MY

consolidated financial statements. F¥43 o

FAAKBAYENEEIARTHHAL
XANBE - (ERIMARR A S B 1) 82

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BhSKEBER IR - £ - BIEESWEEW
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year. < o
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRiGIRAX
0 2020
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Current tax: RIAERFH IR -
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH 291,104 285,304
— Under (Over) provision in prior years — BEFEREETE (BERE) 2,919 (5177)
Deferred tax (credit) charge (note 26) EFEFLTE () F 2 (Mi5E 26) (44,491) 60,926
249,532 341,053

BIE(REAREFIBECEMGSRA) ([
FIS A ]) RIS EFMBHIEE HIEG) - R E
B B8 A &) B B 2R /5 25% o AR 75 C B B 2B A% K
ABEBECEMGHE TEREERRNE
M) BB EIZ15% M E B R
%% ST o mﬁﬂ%¢l¢¥% SHE - R

ARANETHEARERY Am TR EE
¥ BEFBEFE ﬁﬁ_f NEE-F
——F |F = (B E HREAR 15% BB X
BNFTSRR ©

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%. In accordance with the “Notice of the State
Tax Bureau of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise is subject to income tax at a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Company were qualified as New
and High Technical Enterprises in accordance with the applicable EIT
Law of the PRC and are subject to income tax at a preferential tax
rate of 15% for a period of three years starting from 2019 to 2021
according to the PRC Tax Law.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m
lill]\

SMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EES

14.

—E-—F+-_A=1+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to income tax
rate of 25 % for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 25%). The
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), Germany, Hong Kong and other countries had no
assessable profits during the year (2020: nil).

The EIT Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment relationship is
exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be
subject to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the
domestic law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at
10%. During the year ended 31 December 2021, withholding tax on
intra-group dividend amounting to RMB15,520,249 (2020:
RMB17,861,285) was paid by the Group to relevant tax authorities.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

14. FRSHRBAST (48)

BE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItFE ¥
REKZHEMH B AR EHRHRE A
250 (Z BT 1 25%) c AR T R HNE
BHBRRHS((ABHERAHRE]) BH -
BEBEMEMEREMAZHKEAR © FA
WEERRRAE(ZE_2F : ) -

TEMBIERTE  MXEFEEREBRER
HIERLE| 2ENE BRI AER
BETEH o BRILLASN  IRIEFIEIEAI KB A
B REBABIEN F5%E 10% 5 =R
BURTEAOEL o B AT © ANEEEIE 10% KT X
BmIEN - BE T - —F+_A=1+—
BILFEE  AEBERERARRA BB SR
BRI TR A R #15,520,249
TT(ZEFF : AR¥17861,2857T) °

FAMGRAX A REEBERE I EMEER
SmRFPHRBEATFEHRDT

0 2020
: il Sk 3
B’000 RMB'000
R AR¥ETTT

Profit before tax I EbE 784,617 1,065,559
Tax at the PRC’s statutory income tax R BUE TSR R 25% 5T &

rate of 25% B F T8 196,154 266,390
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted BV EPNGIE st ok i 375

to subsidiaries in research and development BT 1554 03 89 5 765 57 28

expenditure (156,800) (82,353)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N AR E

for tax purpose 15,997 18915
Effect of preferential tax rates on income of BERREETHEAA

certain subsidiaries NG (19,181) (13,241)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible AWEATLTE B8 N Al 055 B R

temporary differences not recognised EZENMIBTE 190,631 131,653
Utilisation of tax losses and deductible temporary 8/ FB LA 73 AR FE 327 18 &5 8 K

differences previously not recognised AMREREER (2,545) (7,308)
Tax effect of share of losses of associates JEIRERE R R E RS2 790 8,892
Tax effect of share of losses of joint ventures EIREENEBENRGTE 497 3,855
Withholding tax on undistributed profits LA B A Bl AR 5 B FE R

of PRC subsidiaries TR 21,070 19,427
Under (Over) provision in prior years BAEFERETR GBREEE) 2,919 (5177)
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAX 249,532 341,053

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. SEE7F
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RABER ARBRESRERNESER TR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following BLATEETE :
data:
0 2020
g —ETTF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted LB AREAR K #EE A M5 8
earnings per share (profit for the year R (RNARER AWML
attributable to owners of the Company) FERFE) 516,269 720,397
0 2020
—E_TF
000 ‘000
i TFh%
Number of shares e
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — Ht &I ZN N #55 B A
for the purpose of basic and diluted i = 9% AR N
eamnings per share FHEE 1,104,127 1,104,127
The outstanding share options of the Company did not have dilutive RARKRTECERESRAARBES
effect to the Company’s earnings per share during the year ended 31 T FERIZTEETA=T—HIEFE
December 2021 and 2020 because the exercise prices of these ZERBFWEEETE  RAZEEREC
options were higher than the average market prices of the TEEBRNZMEFE 2 AR RGN FHT
Company’s shares for both years. HERE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. B2
0 2020
4 —ETF
D’000 HKD'000
: T
Dividends declared for distribution REEEMREHNRE
during the year:

2020 final dividend — HKDO.117 per share —ETFRHARKE
— &R0117%8TT 129,183 =

019 final dividend — HKD0.084 per share —E-NERBEE
— &% 008475 T - 92,747

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of HKD96,059,000
(equivalent to RMB78,538,000) has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.

In addition, the dividend of HKD129,183,000 (equivalent to

RMB107,479,000) declared during the year ended 31 December 2020
was fully settled in cash in July 2021.
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RBEBRRE  EFEERBEE_T_—F
+Z A=+t BHBLEFERNRBPRKRE
96,059,000 % 7T (A8 & M A R # 78,538,000
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FAEE o

o BEZZT-EF+_A=+—HIF
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

17. 9% - BERRE

Furniture,
Plantand Motor  fixturesand  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
& BE
#F RERES RE  RERRRE EEIR @it
RMBI000 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000
AREBTT ARBTr ARETR ARETT ARETT AR®Tn
CoST BE
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-—F-H 2476635 3310746 385,068 275430 942132 7390011
Additions RE 41,057 179,784 23844 2,735 481,055 748475
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FHB AR
(note 45) (FizE4s) - 6,444 7220 7 = 14435
Transfers B 46,705 250,019 866 16 (297,606) =
Eliminated on disposals B 4 (21,349) (116,237) (51,084) (4925) (50) (193,645)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46)  {HE KB A 7] (Fifzk 46) - (39867) = = = (39867)
At 31 Decernber 2020 WZE-TF
+=A=+—8 2543048 3,590,889 365914 294027 1,125,531 7919409
Additions RE 16022 346,030 52,259 22903 396,273 833487
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 45) YeBE—K KB A Al
(BizE4s) 20731 - - 7,587 6,179 34497
Transfers B3 287825 222,005 5,259 1570 (516659) -
Eliminated on disposals T ER 8 (21,646) (308,788) (64919) (11,760) (17521) (424634)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 6)  tHEHTB A 7] (it 46) (15.238) (249667) (1,194) (1429 (137231) (404,759)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—&F
+-A=1-H 2830742 3600469 357319 312898 856,572 7,958,000
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=-ZF5—-H—A 701834 1,309,842 215967 171,252 - 2,398,895
Provided for the year FNEE 140,784 333,029 34986 32631 - 541430
Eliminated on disposals R Sl (3,949) (90,708) (26,466) (4374 - (125493)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46) &R B2 7] (FiE46) - (2,386) - - - (2,386)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFT
+=A=+—-H 838673 1549777 24487 199,509 = 2812446
Provided for the year EREE 153,257 425451 61631 2435 = 662,774
Eliminated on disposals B 1 5 (2.801) (209,351) (50,116) (6:882) - (269,150)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 46)  tH & Fi B A &) (FffzE 46) (479) (20631) (380) (440) = (21,930)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—&
+-A=+-H 988650 1,745,246 235622 214622 = 3,184,140
CARRYING AMOUNT fRmEE
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=1-8 1,842,092 1,855,223 121,697 98276 856,572 4773860
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF
T=H=+—8 1704375 2041112 141427 94518 1,125,531 5106963




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than MYE - BE KRR
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account of 9|\ R E R AFRISREERE
their estimated residual values on a straight-line basis at the A RNEE L RE

following rates per annum:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note

47.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain plant and machinery under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments. The
disaggregation of these machinery under operating leases included

4.75%-9.5% g
9.5% %5 K 2s
19% E
9.5%-19% R BEEE

47

FREERHBAA
AEERQEHERBE TRE MR
E-RNFRENEcF - HBEHERSR
ﬁ‘“fﬂ%’fﬁ%ﬂ © REFTARE kR
EIA M as < M R YRR AR E 2 £

within plant and machinery and the reconciliation of the carrying EE%ZEIJZZDT :
amount at the beginning and end of the period are set out as below:

17. %# BB R ki (48)
SEMIEE  BRERTE
B 5%

4.75%-9.5%

9.5%
19%

9.5%-19%

EEMNYE - BERREHOFBENHE

i

RER

RMB'000
ARETIT
Cost BE
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-—F—H—H
;k—ZE-—®F+-_RA=+—H 12,634
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 2,381
Provided for the year F R 1,687
At 31 December 2021 RZE—_—F+-_A=+—H 4,068
CARRYING VALUES HEE{!
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 8,566
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZF+_-_A=+—H 10,253

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. (EFHEREE
[ £ E i 3
R D00 R B'000 000
As at 1 January 2021 B-ZE_—%—HA—H
Carrying amount BRTEE 491,955 8,239 500,194
As at 31 December 2021 N_E_-—%
+=A=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 531,700 4,478 536,178
For the year ended B@E_E_—%F
31 December 2021 +ZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEER 9,639 4,361 14,000
For the year ended BE_ZT_ZTF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge nEER 9,618 4,750 14,368
0 2020
—ETTF
000 RMB'000
ARETIT
Expense relating to short-term leases HiD EAMH AR R A 2 26,903 5,134
Total cash outflow for leases (i) TREIR SR H A% () (31,401) (49,248)
Additions to right-of-use assets (iii) B AR & EE (i) 65,859 37,909
Disposals of leasehold lands HERE L (15,875) (16,485)
Eliminated upon termination of leases TSR ERFETEE - (1,598)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 18. (FHIEEE ()

Notes: Bt -

AEE L EEHEZ FH A EREGEET - K
BB HIR 7S 16 = 4818 A - 1 A1 6] 5l 2 22
B X BEEETRMEKR G - BEEMRR
G TR RER - AEBEREHZE
HEWETRRITEKZFH -

(i) The Group leases various offices and manufacturing buildings for its operations. (i
Lease contracts are entered into for lease terms of 16 to 48 months. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

(ii) Total cash outflow for leases included the repayment of lease liabilities and related (i) HEB S mHAAHEEIEEEHERERE1HE
interest paid, expense relating to short-term leases and expense relating to leases of FIE - BB EHR R BB R B EREE
low-value assets. BEMHARE -

(iii) Amount of RMB57,860,000 (2020: nil) includes right-of-use assets resulting from (iii) THEAANRKE578600007 (ZE-FTF : #£) £

EAREBEGELHEHERE -

business combination.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for its machinery, R B T HAET ST LA SE S0 T S5 B 1 S B
equipment and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2021, the ME - R—ZT——®F+—-A=+—08 %8
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term e % A IR ER S EITE S B BN S

leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above. AEHESRE

Restrictions or covenants on leases HEMRHIREH

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB4,463,000 are recognised with N FAE B E AR 4,463,000 7T E 88 F
related right-of-use assets of RMB4,478,000 as at 31 December 2021 FBHHEESEANRMBA478000TR T = —F
(2020: lease liabilities of RMB8,581,000 are recognised with related +-—HBA=1+—BBRA(—=—=F: B8

right-of-use assets of RMB8,239,000). The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's certain leasehold lands located
in the PRC have been pledged are as security for the Group'’s bank
borrowing as set out in note 47.
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BARKS581,000 TG AEEEAR
#58,239,000 TLHERR) - REHBEARBHEE
BEZEFRERSIN  BEHE T EINER R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HIEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. B ME
The Group leases out various offices and warehouses under AEERCEHENHEZEBRAERAE

operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically HMEBABAZNN - BEHEE—RYL A2
run for an initial period of 2 to 4 years with fixed lease payments. E4F  HENHREE -

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the properties at the end of lease term.

AER B3 4 (X A B B 2 B B N LR
THRAERESNEEERSBNREE
BEtE - BNE T2 RBREEERRE X
EHARBERRBEZSMROER -

RMB'000

AREFIT
COST BRE
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_TF—H—H 60,328
Addition NE 266
Exchange realignment PE X, 1,297
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_A=1+—H 61,891
Disposals & (49,959)
At 31 December 2021 RN-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H 11,932
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 R-—ZE-_FF—H—H 18010
Provided for the year FAEE 3,558
Exchange realignment PE 5, 2 265
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H 21,833
Provided for the year FREE 645
Disposals k== (12,196)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H 10,282
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 WN_EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H 1,650
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZEF+-_H=1+—H 40,058

The fair value of the sole commercial property has been determined
by the management of the Group with reference to valuations
carried out by independent professional qualified valuer not
connected with the Group. The valuer has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation for the property were determined
by direct comparison method based on market observable
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to reflect the locations
and conditions of the subject property.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the
prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best use
of the property is its current use.

E-HEANEATFEDNAEREEELS
ZHRAKEYEFENBLEXEERME
EETHMMERETE - 2 BAEMABSE
Big - BROG REMEORLmEET
B - MENBEIDRED S DELUMEN
AERXZERERLBOLEE - X IFHR
AR BRA BV R A B R AR

TG R T R BB A £ R AR

REEEMENHDTER - MEHRE LR
A AA MR -

BRBAIERBERAT / 2021456% ALY




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMEBERRM

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

Rt

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19.
Details of the Group's investment properties and information of the

REME (&)

RIMERR  AEEREMENFBERAF

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as BEERMNERET
follows:
0 De D
0 D
[H] 1B =
D00 D00
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 77 H Bl & g B W) 3 B8 i1 1,650 22,391
Level 3
fair value as at
Carrying 31 December
amount 2020
E3R
RN_TB_TF
+=—A=+—H
BRMEE M AFE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Commercial property unit located in the PRC £z F1 Bl & 7 R ¥ 3 B8 i1 2,295 24,054
Commercial property units located in Germany 7712 B 1 724 B ¥ 3£ B8 iz 37,763 36,032

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

Commercial property units located in the PRC

6.33%

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

GOODWILL 20. HE
0 2020
o — ? —_— 7 ﬂz
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
COST 5% 3
At beginning and end of the year REL) R F L 49,447 49,447

Goodwill of the Group resulted from the acquisition of subsidiaries
below in the past few years:

AEHE E’JF‘%E*ETH( BRBEBFREE T
MEA

0 2020

c —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

R ARBTFT

Auhui Chaowei (as defined in note 53) LR (& B KFES3) 14,956 14,956

Anhui Yongheng (as defined in note 53) LHEOoKE (FE& R MEE53) 9,342 9,342
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang I RE S XS (ExEMEES3)

(as defined in note 53) 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda (as defined in note 53) TLEROKE (ERAMEES3) 23,524 23,524
Qinyang Libiao (as defined in note 53) WS AR (& R FTEES3) 295 295
Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power Co, Ltd. M K EE X ER AR A 7 754 754
Total FEE 49,447 49,447

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above has
been allocated to the respective individual Cash Generated Units
("CGUs") representing six acquired subsidiaries that engaged in
manufacturing of motive batteries or accessories of motive batteries.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on each of these. The
basis of the estimation of the recoverable amount of each of these
CGUs and the major underlying assumptions are summarised below.

The recoverable amount of each of these CGUs has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets each of these CGUs approved
by the management of the Group covering a 5-year period, and
post-tax discount rate of 13% (2020:13%). The CGUs' cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2020:
2%) growth rate in revenue. The growth rate used is based on
management’s best estimation on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based
on each of these CGUs' past performance and management's
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of each of these CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

SETRENR - EIEBEESEERRN
KRZPNENXB N TR REN SR
W B A RENNREELEM(REE
HB]) REBE_T-_—F+A=+—
BIEFE AEBEEEEEXFHEEL
BUSBEXEBE - At ZFREELEN
FBAIRE AR EER T BEBRRMT M
R e

ZERSELEBMNSEMNAIKRESEETIER
STEEAEEMEBE « ZEEMAERA
EEEEEMILEZSHeELEEMNSEN
PHEECRERAFHE) MENRSREE
Al MATIRARBREETRER13%(ZF
TEF 13%) c REHRELEBEMNATUR
HEMIE SR E AIRIBERN (T F ¢
29%) WA REHE - IEAMNIERENE
BEHMABETE S RBANEMGETAK
f BT @EBEBITEMNFHRBER

cHTEFREEMNEMEZREZEAE SN
A/ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ%%&%ﬂiﬁﬁ
- ARG ENZERSEEBNSEDN
BERBAREREBHMSERNTELY - E12
BRE EHZEBRNSEAEEHTS
SRERCEABENSENREAERBK
ElESEE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. |LRE
Yangzhou Henan
Huaxiang Chaoli
(as defined  (as defined
MOLL GE SCPS  innoteiii) innote53) Total
wHER  AEER
(E®R (E®R
MOLL GE SCPS fskii)  BEES3) ot

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT AR%®TR ARETT ARETT AR%®TR
(note i) (note i) (note i) (noteiii) (note iv)

(agn)  (axa)  (aEa) (&) (MYEEW)

COST ;%3
At 1 January 2020, RZZZZTE5-A—H"
31 December 2020 and 2021 TE-TER

+=A=+—-H 23758 94776 47.435 184,199 32,969 383,137
AMORTISATION )
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF—A—H 13,068 23,694 11,859 2416 3297 94334
Provided for the year FRAE 2376 9,477 4,744 18,420 6,59 41611
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-Z&

+-A=+—-8 15444 33,171 16,603 60,836 9,891 135,945
Provided for the year FRBE 2375 9477 4744 18420 6,504 41610
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F

+=A=+—-H 17,819 4)648 21347 79,256 16,485 177,555
CARRYING AMOUNT IR E
At 31 December 2021 RN-E——

+=A=+—-8 5939 52128 26,088 104943 16,484 205,582
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZT&

+=A=+—-H 8314 61,605 30,832 123363 23,078 247,192
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's intangible assets
comprise:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
production of start-and-stop batteries for automotive
industries and a licence right to use the brand name of MOLL
(as defined in note 23) in the start-and-stop batteries to be
produced by the Group;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents and
know-how from two independent third parties, Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique (“SCPS”"), a French
company and GE Technology Development Inc. (“GE”), an
American company, respectively;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to lead-acid
battery recycling and lead production together with a licence
for lead-acid battery recycling and lead production through
acquisition of a subsidiary, namely Yangzhou Huaxiang
Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. ("Yangzhou Huaxiang”) in 2017,
and

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the Ni-Zn
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents
through acquisition of a subsidiary in 2019.

The above intangible assets have limit useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

useful lives.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

1. ERLRE ()

A B FR-_EBE_FEF+_A=1+—
B AEBENEFLEESHE

() AEERESMEE AR TERMN
REEMY  UWRAESERBIEEE
REEMERAMOLLAEEZE(TER
BIaE 23) 2 HFRFAE

(i) 2 BIK B MBI = 77 Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique
(Iscpsh) ( — R & B 2~ & ) KGE
Technology Development Inc. ([GE]) (—
KEB R F]) BB AE A E
MTREFEMZ  AREAZZFFZNR
BB R ATRE

(i) [0 W en BR T ot No A E B O AR B A E B
MkEXNHE - ERAR T —LFR
BEE KB AR (BN HERE
BEBERAR ([HMEM]))BUFH
=R E LR EERNFA
&

(v SREBBRMAOBREFERMERER
ME - ARRZZE-NEFRBUNE—
ZR P B X B NS O 2 PR FR RO R A

EEPEENAERFHER  SMsE

105 - ZF B EERBERIN A ERFH

ansranancn  ooen SN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. RAEELRPHER
Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows: AEBREELENREFBOT ¢
0 2020
5 ke 22
B’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARBTT
Cost of unlisted investments FE ETTIRERIB AR 174,586 184,060
Share of post-acquisition loss AU EE (38,804) (36,817)
Impairment loss on investment in joint REETENIRERRERE
ventures (note) (B &E) (63,648) =
72,134 147,243
Note: HfaE:
The Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the investments in joint ventures IR EE B LA 2N F(E Gt B AN 1R S A & D 2 A Y AT Y [o]
based on the fair value less cost to sell, which the management believes the approximate net SR TER  KEEHES S P EME LR ER &
carrying amounts of the joint ventures, having regard to the existing performance of the HBERAZ A S P ENREFERE - B EE
relevant joint ventures. Arising from this exercise, an impairment loss of RMB63,648,000 is B [ EE A YR B ETFE A IR B 63,648,000 7T B 51 A 2N 5 [# 7K
charged to the Group’s profit or loss for the current financial year. Bl E 1825 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HIEFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22. REBELEMNER (1F)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, details of the Group's major joint R-E - FR-_E-_ZEF+_HA=1+—
ventures are as follows: B AEBXTEZLEEZFBOT :

Proportion of nominal

Country of value of registered capital and
establishment voting power held by the Group
Name of entities and operation Registered capital asat 31 December Principal activities
R+=B=t+—H*&KE
BIREE FsERAFHEER
 { E4° FERR EREE ARRREOLE gy
0 2020
St 35
% %
Changxing Kewei Venture Capital PRC RMB100,000,000 57 57 Venture capital investment
Investment LLP (note) F AR 100,000,0007C BIXESRE
RERFAIZERE S B0 % (HE)
Zhejiang Pulangte Electric Vehicle PRC RMB150,000,000 48.33 4833 Technical service of new
Co, Ltd. (‘Zhejiang Pulangte”) H AR 150,0000007C energy vehicles
MIERESTEARAA e B BT AR
(T 8% )
Changshu Huaxing Chuangyi New Energy  PRC RMB100,000,000 56 56  Technical service of new
Technology Co, Ltd (note) s AR 100,000,0007T energy vehicles
FAERS R RRRERAR e B R AR S
(FizE)
Note: HiaF -
The Group holds more than 50% equity interest in the entities listed above and these entities REE A |k B G 50% A _FHIREE - 53’/7\55 EHEL
are accounted for joint ventures as the unanimous consent of both parties are required in key BREBAREFEE S — AT A REE10%E -
business decisions of the entities.
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in B E P RUERATT ARG E P BHE -

these consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the joint ventures mentioned R-EZ—FR-ZB_ZTFT_A=+—
above are not individually material to the Group. B BaEtEERERMSHLTERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. REELTIHER

0 2020
g —EEF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Cost of unlisted investments IE TR E KR A 142,033 133,875
Share of post-acquisition loss AR AR (48,189) (45,029)
Impairment loss on investments in associates  FAB & A A VIR & KR EEIE
(note) (P =E) (50,755) (31,586)
43,089 57,260
Note: HtaE -

The Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the investments in associates
based on the fair value less cost to sell, which the management believes the approximate net
carrying amounts of the associates, having regard to the existing performance of the relevant
associates. Arising from this exercise, an impairment loss of RMB19,169,000 is charged to the
Group’s profit or loss for the current financial year.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, details of the Group's major

associates are as follows:

Country of
Incorporation/
establishment
Name of entities and operation Registered capital
B B
RRzR REEFREER gEF
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL Germany EUR3,966,000
GmbH & Co. KG (‘MOLL")
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL B 3966000 BLTC
GmbH &Co.KG (TMOLL])
Hangzhou Hongxun Electric PRC RMB14,280,000
Technology Co, Ltd.
RN ZAENREARAR] RE AR 14280000 7C
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd PRC RMB86,000,000
("Zhejiang Shidarui")
MILEREHEARAT hE AR 860000007

(DT ])

7K 55 [B] L 23 T (Bt 5 B B AN 18 1 B BT 1R A R AT AR [T
DHEETTEN  KERHARERAANEERERE B
B ERBZ LA EN AR EFERE - Bt HEE
BT E A AR EETFEA K B 19,169,000 7T B AT AN E E A
B FER B -

R FR T _FTFF+_A=+—
B AEENEEHL NG ZFBAOT

Proportion of nominal

value of registered capital and
voting power held by the Group

asat 31 December Principal activities

R+ZR=t-H%KHE

FisERESHEER
PSR Ay LL 1 TEEE
0 2020
T
0 0 %
34.46 3446  Manufacture of start-and-stop
batteries
WERETD
29.97 2997  Development of energy saving
technology
R & B Rl
37.21 3721 Manufacture of electric vehicle
HEEHE

The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the associates mentioned above
are not individually material to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 24, RAFEHARMZAKSEHER
IR
The amount represents the Group's equity interests in certain SREASERATETE NP R IZA
unlisted entities established in the PRC measured at fair value, details ETIELTEEANIRE - FBEEHNMHE
of which are set out in note 51(e). 51(e) °
LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. EBEUER
Summary of the loan receivables are set out below: ERESREEHSIAT
0 2020
. —E_THF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Chisen Electric loan (note a) SRERER (MsFa) 26,927 26,927
Qinyang loan (note b) WEER (D) 44,928 41,794
Other loan receivables (note c) H &K (KiaEc) 8,112 7,798
79,967 76,519
Analysis for reporting purposes as: REWMEBZ DT
Current assets MENE 35,039 34,725
Non-current assets ERBNEE 44,928 41,794
79,967 76,519




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M B H R

i

For the year ended 31 December 2021

:I:—?

——HFFT_A=t+t—HLFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©

The amounts represent a loan to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., Ltd (“Chisen Electric”)
under entrusted loan arrangement through CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Trust’). The
entrusted loan is secured by property, plant and equipment and inventories held by
Chisen Electric and Chisen Electric Zhejiang Co., Ltd. (“Chisen Zhejiang”, the
immediate holding company of Chisen Electric), 98% equity interest in Chisen Electric
and 100% equity interest in Chisen Zhejiang, and guaranteed by the ultimate
beneficial owner of Chisen Electric, carrying fixed interest rate of 8% per annum, and

was expired in December 2019.

The Group is now negotiating with Chisen Electric to acquire the proprietary rights of
the collaterals to settle the outstanding loan receivable. Based on assessment of the
loss given default after considering the estimated realised amount of the fair value of
the collaterals by the management, a loss allowance of approximately
RMB42,936,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 20 September 2015, The Group entered into a long-term loan agreement with
Qinyang City Construction Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“City
Construction”), of which 49% share of equity is owned by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission (“SASAC") of Qinyang City. The loan is
unsecured and guaranteed by Qinyang Qinbei Construction Investment Co,, Ltd., a
company wholly-owned by SASAC of Qinyang City at a floating rate based on the
borrowing rate announced by the People’s Bank of China, and is repayable on a five-

year annual instalment basis from 2016 to 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group, City Construction and Henan
Yongxu Renewable Resources Co,, Ltd. (‘Henan Yongxu’) entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which, Henan Yongxu undertakes the obligation to repay the
outstanding loan of RMB56,449,000 to the Group. Moreover, the Group agreed with
the revised repayment schedule that Henan Yongxu will repay RMB60,000,000 in
total no later than 31 December 2025. The difference RMB14,655,000 between the
present value of the loan receivable based on expected repayment term using
effective interest method and the outstanding loan of RMB56,449,000 is accounted

for as modification loss and recorded in “other gains and other losses.”.

As at 31 December 2021, other loan receivables are unsecured, carrying fixed interest
rate ranging from 6% to 8% per annum and repayable within 12 months.
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25, FEUGERR(48)

Bzt

(@)

(b)

(@)

DERIERBEZE T E A B AT 55T BREL
RE|([FIElEE)ETEEERIHARA A
([EBERI)BEN - ZitERUEEEREE
B IEREGRARI([EBENT] BEEE ﬁﬁ?ﬁ
BERARDIFERYE  BERIERTFE

B TR 98% FR1E R B BT 100% ARHE(EH A ~ I
HEBERNZEE s EEAEER  1REEF
FlE 8%zt 8 » WER=F—NEF+=FFH -

7R 5 [F] 3 IF 815 7% T Rt BB 1R 1R e BT
TR U EREEREKEN - BEREEBA
= IR A FEA fém‘ A @ 3 & BEHE AP
BAREEHE  RBEE-—FT_ZTF+=-F=+—H
I FERER TSI B HIN R 842,936,000 °

REF—AFAA=1H  KEBL G T8 1T
BRREZFRARAA([HHER] T RAE
Bl - H49%REHE T H EEE S”E
ZEE([wETEEZ|)#R)RBHENL -
ARBEEI - WG T IERKREBR A
OblE B & Z 2 B AR 2 7]) (EHELR - %/E\f;z
FEIA RIRITAGE ) ZBERFIFE  RZF

—NFR_E_FTF | AFHRFREEESHE
Eo

R T _ZTF+_A=1+—HIFE K&
B - R R AEKEBEERERAR ([T
/ﬁyk,éaj) T as - BRI - KB R IE RIS

(B8R EE BN R 556,449,000 TTHIE F © Il
ﬁﬁ AL F R EASNE T B P B - & A 518H
R EG T ER - E-—aF+=-A=1+—H(&
BAHARKE60,000,000TT ° WA FRFH B BF R % B
TE B FE R E 5k B 73 21 ) FE R B 5K 3 (B K (538
E A R 14655000 7T 2 R4 2 58 R K EE B 5
AR 56449000 T tERIEIEBAARR + W AR
iz R E AR ] o

REF=-—F+=—A=+—H HMEKEX A
IR - LB FFIE 6% E8%EE RAR 1218
B AIEE -



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE T —F+_A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION 26. EIEIRIF
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and the AEBRFRERNELCHBEE (BE) X
movements thereon, during the year are as follows: HEHmT -
Allowance
for credit Fair value
losses and Deferred  Accrual and Tax adjustment Withholding
inventories income provision losses  onassets Tax Others Total
EEEHER ExER HEM
FREE  BEHA RBE HEER LTEEE bt Heth &5t
RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 A\—ZE-TF-A-H 156,916 41453 175771 193573 (4410) (8.250) 1309 556,362
Credt (charge) to profitorloss 3f A (318) B4 9936 (283) (15349) (49870) 381 (2700) (497) (60926)
Charge to other reserve MEEth e - - - - - - (229) (229)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A - - - - - - 3,705 3,705
At 31 December 2020 e
TZA=+-H 166,852 38620 160422 143,703 (4029) (10950 4298 498,916
Credit (charge) to profitorloss A (318) B3 74,462 (6,960) 16,221 (24,175) 7,734 (21,070) (1,721) 44,491
Repayment of withholding tax EE A% - - - - - 15,520 - 15,520
Charge to other AR A Z MR
comprehensive income - - - - - - (175) (175)
At31 December 2021 R-E-—%
+=F=t-H 241,314 31,660 176,643 119,528 3,705 (16,500) 2,402 558,752
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AR BBt B 5 s B e A RIER IR 45
reporting purposes: DT
0 2020
z : —TTF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARET T
Deferred tax assets LL%}EEIEEF 579,629 513,895
Deferred tax liabilities EERIREE (20,877) (14,979)
558,752 498916
Details of the Group's unused tax losses are as follows: REERBANTIEBEFBOT
0 2020
- —TTF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Tax losses already recognised as deferred BEHERARELETIEEEN
tax assets BiIA & 18 903,988 801,848
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets IR XERTIE & 2= B R R T IE E5 18 1,819,402 1,695,095

BEREBOEEERAT / 20214% MK




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

26. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The unrecognised tax losses will be expired in the following years:

26. RIERIA ()

REERH T IREE RN IA T FEZIE -

\ 2020

: —ECEF

B’000 RMB'000

= AREETIT

31 December 2021 —E-—F+-A=+—H - 41274

31 December 2022 T —F+=-A=+—H 147,358 154,875

31 December 2023 —E-=F+-A=+—H 125,678 125,678

31 December 2024 —EWNFE+—A=+—H 210,280 210,280
Expire during 31 December 2024 to MRZZBE_WE+-_A=+—RHAZF

31 December 2030 —E=FF+—HA=1+—H3H 1,336,086 1,162,988

Total @t 1,819,402 1,695,095
Note: /zﬁ,?f .

According to the newly effective announcement published by the PRC tax authority, tax losses
arising from those entities qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise can be carried
forward for 10 years. Accordingly, the expiry of the tax losses arising from those subsidiaries
qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise is extended to 10 years.

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to certain
tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

Where the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets for
deductible temporary differences. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has deductible temporary differences of RMB492,000
(2020: RMB13,374,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
RMBS5,053,284,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB4,614,102,000).
No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

INVENTORIES 27. KW
0 2020
B——* —FCFF
B’000 RMB'000
. ARETIT
Raw materials R 1,068,204 715,644
Work in progress EES 1,935,155 2,197,313
Finished goods BURK 920,602 512113
3,923,961 3,425,070
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in FERNBIEEMR R ] S5 R E TS ATE
respect of write down inventories to net realizable value was AEBERARK740100T(ZE - F :
RMB7,401,000 (2020: RMB nil). ARBET) -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. EWRZIER
0 2020
: —E-FHF
B’000 RMB'000
e AREFIT
Trade receivables — contracts with customers EWE SRR —BF A4 2,748,514 2,433,854
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (543,349) (495,593)
2,205,165 1,938,261
As at 1 January 2020, carrying amount of trade receivables from RZEZTF—H—H BFEHZERE
contracts with customers amounted to RMB1,820,586,000 (net of SERFEREE A AR 1,820,586,000 7T (1
credit loss allowance of RMB432,809,000). S EEE R AR 432,809,000 7T) °
The Group generally allows a credit period of 45 to 90 days to its AEE—RMRSHTHRINRHEFIRME
trade customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales on 4SZERNEER  BABHEURESET -

cash terms are required.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the goods delivery date, which is the
same as revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period

28. FEMGSE B ARSR (#8)

RIEHR  HREEERBRERNERE
R H Bk D TR E B H (B A TR
RE) 25T

is as follows:
0 2020
g —EEF
B’000 RMB'000
=1 ARMT
0-45 days 0-45 H 1,171,570 1,196,660
46-90 days 46-90 H 396,760 290,088
91-180 days 91-180 H 262,465 185,085
181-365 days 181-365 H 258,819 195,380
Over 1 year #1F 115,551 71,048
2,205,165 1,938,261

Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally assesses
the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate
credit limits. Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 51(c).

29. RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI

The balance represents bills receivables held by the Group which is
measured at FVTOCI since the bills are held within the business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Details of pledge of bills receivable for the Group's secured bank
borrowings are set out in note 47.
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HE—_ZT-_—FR-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—
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51(c) °
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RIA
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29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI (continued)

In addition, the Group has discounted certain bills receivables to
banks and transferred certain bills receivables to its suppliers to settle
its payables through endorsing the bills to its suppliers. These bills
are issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks with high credit
ratings, therefore the Directors consider the substantial risks in
relation to these bills is interest risk as the credit risk arising from
these bills is minimal. Upon the discount/endorsement of these bills,
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks (i.e. interest risks)
of these bills to relevant banks/suppliers, therefore the Group has
derecognised these bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's maximum exposure to loss
and cash outflow, which is same as the amount payable by the
Group to collecting banks or the suppliers in respect of the bank
issued bills discounted and bank issued bills endorsed, should the
issuing banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date, of which
amounted to RMB625,931,000 and RMB148,396,000 (2020:
RMB723,271,000 and RMB194,690,000), respectively. All the bills
receivables discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers of the
Group have a maturity date of less than one year from the end of the
reporting period.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows:

29.

30.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

BRoFEARMEKEAEL
IR ()

BEAN - REE B RIRTTRERE TRIKEER
BRAARERSERRAEHERERS
TREEBASNERNTE - ZEREH
BERULARGEENRZPHERITETX
SR RESRABAREXSRENRIBDRE
AN SRR EAREZRELNEERR
Hil - REZERBE BEK  AKEE
# % FRIRHBAE D B (BIFLE Ek) 8
ETBRT HER - AEAEEDKLE
ERZFREER -

I3

R-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 - nFEZERT
REEIEEREBERE  NEBASE
BRASRENSERBESRRAER ARIT
BITHE R KB B EMN AL EAUER
BITHIEREEEMNERSBIEEARE
625,931,000 7C & A R ¥ 148,396,000 T (= F =
T AR #7232710007T & A B #&
194,690,0007T) ° R¥EHR - AEBFAAELE
BIRAGIRITHE B E THRERMMEREE 2
BRI —F o

TR R IR B 2t FE U IR
BAHR R AR FB DT T -

0 2020

c —ETF

B’000 RMB'000

= AREEFIT

Other receivables H th fE W IR 1,008,615 755,981
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEE G (129,003) (69,113)
879,612 686,868

Prepayments to suppliers TR FE P Y SR IE 596,446 663,924
1,476,058 1,350,792




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

30. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. AMRER K MERIEA (1)

(continued)

An analysis of other receivables is as follows: Hih e IBDTAAT -

0 2020

: —ECTEF
B’000 RMB'000

R ARETT

Value-added tax recoverable B dEE Y 268,245 385,497

Deposits for derivatives PTET Ake 194,000 -

Interest receivable FEULHI B 6,425 3,987

Prepayments to employees m{E 8 TR IR 87,648 68,283

Prepaid service fee TEfS RS & 23,906 51,100

Deposits for borrowings (note i) EEHe (i) 43,904 79,986

Other deposits Efize 50,732 55,876

Amount due from a former associate JE U — S} AT EE 2 A R RIR 13,200 13,200

Amount due from an independent third party  FEMWCE 7 58 = 5 58 (FI=Eii)

(note ii) 206,559 -

Others HAh 113,996 98,052

1,008,615 755,981

Notes: Htat -

() The amount represents the deposits placed in the independent financial institutions (i) REEFHRB LB EN RS  REBIE
to secure borrowings from these financial institutions. BRI (B B 1EHELR »

(ii) During the year, prepayment to supplier amounted to RMB206,559,000 has been (if) ER - HREIE 7% B 12 KN £ F 8 = 77 A 17
reclassified to amount due from an independent third party as the supply agreement ET PUARLE  HFAENHEFHFTEARE
has been terminated on a mutually agreed basis between the Group and the third 206,559,0007T B E 5 XEF fEW B 5 =77 5(E -
party. This amount is current, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. BB REAE - Ta B RBEEKERE -

Analysed for financial reporting purposes: MRS BT ¢

0 2020
Z g TETF
B’000 RMB'000
K AREFIT
Non-current JEBNEA 11,154 48,090
Current BNER 1,464,904 1,302,702
1,476,058 1,350,792
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the years BHBE_ZT-_—FR_ZFT-_FTF+_H
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 51(c). =+—HItFEHEMERFIE 2 BEFNGEZ
FEERRMFES1(Q ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

. BAFEHARSHENEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

0 2020
000 RMB'000
= ARBTFT

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: 58 %'Hﬁﬁzpfﬁu‘l')\ﬁﬁﬁu‘l'iﬁ’]
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EE B LA E 47,983 178,988
Equity securities listed in the Mainland of China & B A 1= 1 B AR A8 3% 166,517 96,135
214,500 275123

The listed equity securities are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis, details of which are set out in note 51(e).

DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The company has the following derivative futures contracts
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They are marked

32.

EMBRAESRBELE T HEEEE A FER

& ARFBHENHIESE

TEemMTR

)o

RBEHR - RRBEATRENANITEM
HEAK - RIETEE  mtEEM K

to market with the resulting gain or loss taken to profit or loss. HEEFT AR o
= 1 ! B ’® B i B /3 5F
D00 D00 5000 000
2021 —E-—4F
Futures: HE -
Bought BA 135,564 1,392 - 1,392
Sold ufunt - - - -
Subtotal INE 135,564 1,392 - 1,392

BRENERERAT /



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

33.

34.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the Group.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.30% per
annum to 3.40% per annum (2020: 0.30% per annum to 3.50% per
annum) as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash comprise cash and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
which are held with banks and carry interest at prevailing market
rate ranging from 0.30% per annum to 0.38% per annum (2020:
0.30% per annum to 1.80% per annum).

RMB2,815,995,000 (2020: RMB2,504,229,000) of the Group's cash and
cash equivalents are held within the PRC banks and are subject to
certain restrictions based on rules and regulations issued by State
Administration of Foreign Exchange in the PRC.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles its trade
payables within 30 days (2020: 30 days) from the goods receipt date.

33.

34.

RRFABTERRBITEEBRAS

RBHIRITFFIEAEEEH T RITART
T AERAAKER LA TRENER -

R-ZBE-—F+-A=+—H  SEHIET
17 53R T 35 T R &4 030% 2 &4 340% (=
T-FFE : GEOWEREFEIS0%)ETE °

REZZEZ—F+-A=+—8 ' RITEHK
BemReRERHE A=A ARNRE
HAFSRABRK - Al TSR T A SRTT @ IR E B
MESNEGF030%EFF038B(ZT=_F
F: GF030%ETF 180%) 58 °

INE= [ A R#281599500070 (Z B Z B4 :
ANE#2,504,229,000 70) MR & RIBEEEY
FEHRABRET TSP REBERINEEES
BARR B AR RS TR

B8 5
ERNEBSEREEBERTHRZIERLIF
BRCAN - AEE AR E B EB#E30H (=
E_ZF 30R)NBFEEMNEZERR -

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the goods RIPLEHASK - FEATE BRI INS B BAEBR
receipt date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: O -

0 2020
5 ke 22
RMB’000 RMB'000
K ARBTT
0-30 days 0-30H 1,632,812 1,400,763
31-90 days 1-90 H 682,191 779,650
91-180 days -180 H 57,448 148,183
181-365 days 181-365 H 72,444 79,844
1-2 years 1-24F 140,043 119,168
Over 2 years B2 F 126,445 106,293
2,711,383 2,633,901
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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35. EfIRE
RIEHR - BNRBZE L RN RES

BILLS PAYABLE

The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: iU
0 2020
5 —B_FF
3000 RMB000
R AREFT
0-90 days 0-90 H 759,431 172,135
91-180 days 91-180 H 1,096,460 1,103,325
181-360 days 181-360 H 13,500 102,018
1,869,391 1,377,478
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 36. HttFEMRAREEH
An analysis of other payables is as follows: H A BN FRIBEAITT
0 2020
i =
000 RMB(000
= ARBTFT
Accrued payroll and welfare FET & AR A 185,833 181,591
Other tax payables HAb ERFRIE 465,254 495,198
Interest payable P12 20,708 29,336
Deposits received from distributors ey 58P N EAth 7 WER A 1R &
and others (note) (BfHeE) 256,781 307,043
Accrued commission EEtRE 125,800 88,104
Accrued transportation cost FEFT 3 BAK AN 59,907 61,362
Accrued utilities JERTKEE 54,007 49678
Accrued other expenses FERTE b2 276,518 297,046
Other HAh 11,871 7,106
1,456,679 1,516,464
Note: Hfat

ST EERE S HBAEITEE - §EEREELRE
BRI RREREREES -

The amounts mainly represented the security deposits from distributors as guarantee of the
credit limit granted by the Group and their service quality.
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37. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

38.

37.

SNAaR

R At
31 December
0 2020
R g N E T
F M+ —A=+—H
RMB RMB'000

F ARET T

BNER

Current:

lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries #4B&EN T - $REEF =0 &%

HAibAREm

and other related products

564,883 182,463

The Group receives payments from customers based on the billing
schedule as established in the contracts. Payments are usually
receive in advance for selling lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion
batteries and other related products to customers.

Revenue of RMB182,463,000 (2020: RMB680,331,000) recognised in
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities, which

AREERES U%ﬁiﬁ'}ﬂﬁl%%ﬂ@ﬁﬂ&ﬂl%’&
He MEPHERBINED  ERETEL
REMAEREE BT SR H&%‘JH?X °

REEZHERHUA A R 182,463,0007T (=
T _FF: AR®e80,331,0007T) EBAEE

was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of NEEHEE  sTAFUENBESERS -
the year.
WARRANTY PROVISION 38. fRiBEIE
0 2020
3 —E-TF
B’000 RMB'000
K ARBT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERENDTE 541,830 484,240
0 2020
< —= —ng
B’000 RMB'000
K ¥ ARETTT
At beginning of year ) 484,240 494,402
Provision for the year FARE 691,424 533,475
Utilisation of provision B EE (633,834) (543,637)
Atend of year RER 541,830 484,240

The warranty provision represents management'’s best estimate of
the Group's liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on
motive battery products, which is based on the past warranty claims
and unit sales history for defective products.
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LEASE LIABILITIES 39. HEAR
0 2020
2= [
B'000 RMB'000
=1 ARETIT
Within one year —FR am 4118
More than one year but not exceeding two years & 38— {8 1N i 8 I F 4,022 4,463
4,463 8,581
Less: Amount due for settlement within one B AR —FREET 27
year and shown under current liabilities AVTEIN=R=GOE /O (441) (4,118)
Amount due after one year — RIS 4,022 4,463

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease

HHERBEMERNMETFEEERERNX

liabilities range from 5.66% to 5.93% (2020: from 5.66% to 5.93%). NI 566%ZE593%(ZF_FF : NTF566%
E593%) °
BORROWINGS 40. &8
0 2020
: —E-FF
000 RMB'000
R ARBTFT
Secured borrowings (note i) BEBEE (FED) 3,522,304 4,298,476
Unsecured borrowings EEAEE 2,627,165 1,992,056
6,149,469 6,290,532
The borrowings are repayable as follows: ARATEHEENEE
Within one year —FA 4,698,121 4,848,346
More than one year but not exceeding —F LA BT EAMRE
two years 974,348 807,080
More than two years but not exceeding MDA BB iE R
five years 477,000 635,106
6,149,469 6,290,532
Less: Amount due for settlement within one B AR —FRERELZS
year and shown under current liabilities RRB) & ERFIE (4,698,121) (4,907,346)
Amount due after one year — 1R B HR) SR 1,451,348 1,383,186
Total borrowings BmEE
— at fixed rates —EB 4,148,530 4,957,932
— at floating rates — 5 2,000,939 1,332,600
6,149,469 6,290,532
Note: Bist
(i) Included in total amount of secured borrowings, the Group's bank borrowings of 0} KEE A B HE G BB EERIA R 94,700,000 7T

RITIEE AR BB R 72 FEER AR RIELR o

RMB94,700,000 are also guaranteed by the non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries of the Company.
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40. BORROWINGS (continued)

41.

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging
from 1% to 8.78% per annum (2020: from 1.88% to 6.52% per annum)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Interest on HKD borrowings at floating rates is charged at 2.75% over
3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate. Floating interest rate
borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from 3.70 % to 7.89%
per annum (2020: from 4.05% to 7.00% per annum) for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank borrowings
are set out in note 47.

40. fE&(48)

HE-_E-_—Ft+-_A=+—BItEE ¥
BEERNTF1%E878% (T F : F
FZAT T 1.88% & 6.52%) HIEF KT8, o

FEAREEENFSZRTEARRITAM
WIEERRTE - FEBLEEMNFEIES
BABBRITRAZERBM275%TE - HE
T FA-A=t+—HIFE  FEE
BN 370 2789% ( —FE —_ZTF : FFf|
RN T 4.05% Z 7.00%) BFERZT B -

AREEHEMRITEENEBERRFTIR
BaE47 °

DEFERRED INCOME 41, BERA
Government
grants
B 48 By
RMB'000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_TF—H—H 279,497
Additions NE 32,107
Released to other income (note 7) sEAE A YA (FiFE7) (45,396)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZF+_-_A=+—H 266,208
Additions RE 11,863
Released to other income (note 7) sEAE A YA (FiFE7) (51,111)
At 31 December 2021 RZE—_—F+-_A=+—H 226,960

Deferred income represents the government grant received for the
acquisition of relevant assets.
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42. SHARE CAPITAL 42. X
The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows: RRATHRARFFIFATN :
Number of shares Shares capital
G:4v g A= | Ex
usD’000
FET
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each BiR001 ETTH L
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZTEZTF—H— El
and 2021 —ECRERIT-—F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREARE :
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each %001 ETA T B
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF—H—H-
and 2021 —TERERIT—F
+=ZHA=+—~H 1,104,126,979 11,041
RMB'000
AREFTT
Presented at 31 December 2020 and 2021 RIBE-EFN T —F
+ZA=+—HMZ% 74,704

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the current year.

BEARNRZHBRRNAFERE -
SBEERANRFH EHES ©

HeE
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 43. LR SERHARE S
The Company’s share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was adopted ARBIERRERT S ([ZarE ) BERE - £
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and ZEMARNEENEERESIREEE R
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the BiZTe o AR ESEREERES (S
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including FEARRNBNEMBARINES )R ERE
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares LAREEAR R ©

in the Company.

The share options granted shall vest in accordance with the P B AR A IR IR TR R FE - &8
timetable below, each with an exercise period commencing from T EH A BB R HEEREHE(=
the relevant vesting date and ending with eight years after the date ZE—NENWAWPA: - —E—N\EFE+=H
of grant (4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019): Zt+—BRZZE-AE=ZAZTHA)EN
Fik
(1) 32,500,000 share options granted on 4 April 2018 (“April 2018 1 R-ZZE—N\NEFTMAMNAELEHN
share options”): 32,500,000 fE R RE ([ = F — N\F I A
FERRRE]D) -
(@)  10% of the total number of the share options granted @ FTEREEREAEMN 0% R
shall vest on 4 April 2018 T \FHANBHB
(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted (o) AT BB AR B 20% 1A =
shall vest on 4 April 2019 T-NFHANESB
(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted ©  FTIHBEARE BB 70% R =
shall vest on 4 April 2020 TTFNANBRE
(2) 35,750,000 share options granted on 21 December 2018 Q) RZE—NFE+-—_A=-+—BELEH
(‘December 2018 share options”): 35,750,000 ERRE ([ ZE—NE+=
AR
(@)  10% of the total number of the share options granted @ AERLEREAZHNI10%ENR=
shall vest on 21 December 2018 T-NF+ZA=Z+—HEB
(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted (b) I H R AR R AR BH 20% 1 P =
shall vest on 21 December 2019 T—NF+_A=-+—HEB
(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted © FERLEBEREALZEN70%ENR=
shall vest on 21 December 2020 ToRFF_A=+—HEB
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(3) 30,650,000 share options granted on 25 March 2019 (“March
2019 share options”):

(@)  10% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 25 March 2019

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 25 March 2020

(0  70% of the total number of the share options granted
shall vest on 25 March 2021

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by employees and Directors during the year:

3)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-_A=t+—HIFE
43. IR BERHTRE S (18)

RZE-NF=A-1+HBEFELHED
30,650,000 IEREHE ([ = —NLF=A
FERRAE]) -

(@ FIREBREABEI0%EN =
Z-NF=ZA-THBER

(b) AT EERRHE A A 20% i A —
E-_EF=A-_+HHEB

© FIiREEREASA70% 5K =
E-—F=A-1+HAHEB

TREBEBREFRFNFHAQAME
wz®

April 2018 share options ZZ-\FMARRE 3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000
December 2018 share options “E-\ET-AERE 35,750,000 - - - 35,750,000
March 2019 share options ZZ-NE-RERE 30,650,000 - - - 30,650,000
69,900,000 - - - 69,900,000
Held by: BUATATHE :
Directors EE 7,400,000 - - - 7,400,000
Employees B8 62,500,000 - - - 62,500,000
Bxercisableat theend of theyear — ATREAR{TIE 69,900,000
Weighted average exercise price ~ IMETISITIE(E
(HKD) (BT 3.164 - - - 3.164
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 43. LI BERMMRES (IR)
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share TEREZRREREHAETEENEFMFARAER
options held by employees and Directors during the prior year: FE 7 B
QOutstanding at Exercised Cancelled Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
1 January during during the during during 31 December
2020 the year year (note) the year the year 2020
R-F_2F R-T_2F
A6 SRy t=A=t-8
RAITE ERfife (FzE) EmRN ER3IE RAITE
April 2018 share options —Z-\EW AR RRE 32,500,000 = (29,000,000) = = 3,500,000
December 2018 share options - \F+-RERE 35,750,000 - - - - 35,750,000
March 2019 share options “T-NE=AEkE 30,650,000 - - - - 30,650,000
98,900,000 - (29,000,000) - - 69,900,000
Held by: BATATHE :
Directors B 7400,000 - - - - 7400000
Employees [E& 91,500,000 - (29,000,000 - - 62,500,000
Bxercisableattheendof theyear — ATRERAT(E 48445000

Weighted average exerciseprice~~ MTETTEE

(HKD) (A1) 3507 - 433 - - 3164
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2020, 29,000,000 share options granted on 4 Wiet - B2 =—F=—FF+-A=+—HIFE AR A
April 2018 was cancelled by the Company and the Company accounted for the 2 #429,000,000 17 B = F —/\F P A /4 A 1% 4 49
cancellation as an acceleration of vesting in accordance with IFRS 2. FERRKE + K1 AR 15 B B B 7 2 25 2 BI 3 2 5% 17

B HARRBINREE

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 4 April 2018, 21 RZZE—/\FMAMAB - —F—N\F+=A
December 2018 and 25 March 2019 are RMB41,230,000, —+—HEZE-NF=ZA-T+HAELHN
RMB32,669,000 and RMB25,135,000, respectively. These fair values BRI 2 (A A E S Bl A AR 41,230,000
were calculated using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model 7T« AR # 32,669,000 7T & A R ¥ 25,135,000
were as follows: TLo ZEAVFENERAZERNEXGTE - %

B ABIENAT -

4 April 21 December 25 March

2018 2018 2019

—E-N\F —E-N\EF —E-hEF

mMAMA +—A=-+—H =A=-+3AAH

Grant date share price B R (E HKD4.183 HKD3.05 HKD3.09
4183 787T 3.05 87T 3.09%87T

Exercise price 1IEE HKD4.332 HKD3.114 HKD3.09
433287 311438 7T 3.09%87T

Expected life TEHASEHA 8 years 8 years 8 years
84F 84 8

Expected volatility TEHR R 18 47.5% 45.8% 45.6%
Dividend yield A% B 2 2 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 48 [ B | =R 1.84% 2.00% 1.50%
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Volatility was estimated on the share price movement of the
Company for an observation period that match with the life of the
share option. Dividend yield is based on management estimate at
the valuation date. Risk-free interest rate was estimated based on the
yield of the Hong Kong Government Bonds with a maturity life
closest to the life to expiration, as of the option grant date.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB2,332,000 (2020:
RMB28,473,000), which included the expense in relation to the
cancellation of share options of RMB nil (2020: RMB4,080,000) for the
current year in relation to share options granted by the Company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest ultimately. The
impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS
The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme which are
calculated based on specified percentage of the employee’s basic
salaries during the year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme ("MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and under the control of an independent MPF service
provider. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for both years , which
represent contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans, are set out in note 11.

43.

44.
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LIRgfn BB RER TR H (1)

IR TIAR IR AN 2 A BB 7 B2 R AR 4 HAAR AT
MBI IAMNE S fE5T o BB IR
EEREENMLER G - ERERMETD
RERBRER L AR MFRsEasH
FHNBBBRTESFNRE R MGG o

ANEBGE AR TR L A B I EERE R 5
S EBAREE2332000(ZTE=2F : A
R 28,473,0007T) « BIEEHEBRERSZA
REBEZT(ZE=24F : ARM4,080,0007T) °

REREMR > AEEETEBRHRZKRKET
FENBRERE MG o BRIGTE

(E) RBEAFER - WA AR B
o
R FIRT BIBERR

ARAHEMBARNES S EBFE:

REBNBZRABHNEHKE - AAF
TEMBARARERFEET AN LLAZ
RRRMFEIHFMERBNES - AEE
HIRKRE N BIROME — B ERRIBZAT BIE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ #ﬁB&EA¢W%$ 7 < Y
REBDHFE

AEBERBEBOBBRBIMERER AN K
- E%ﬁéé%%%%ﬁ%&j—ﬁﬁ
HERES B ([REEE]) - SHEIEE
HEAKEEENFFE  YABIBESR
HHERERE - REBESEORA - B
T RERE R BARRUEEN L R RAZET
R - AEEHBRBESAINME—EEIR
RIRLET EIEH PR RO SR -

R EFERERANEH T (AAKER
AHEIRBIRT B RO L R B % FRT IR
MR
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45. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
Acquisition in 2021
On 9 December 2021, the Group has acquired 100% equity interests
from an independent third party of a certain company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC with limited liability. The total cash
consideration paid is RMB17,857,000. Following the acquisition, the
entity becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

45.

KE—KBELT

—E_—FHIEE
RZZE-_—F+_-_ANA  AEEEEBL
F=H R — BRI REEKLHBRA
A100% PRI - ENMESREBLEEAAR
#517,857,0007T - WHEEAK 12 R BN A
AEBHEZEWBAR -

REERHEANEERBEN R FEN
T

RMB'000

AREFIT

Property, plant and equipment Y - = MR 34,497
Right-of-use Assets FREEE 57,860
Interests in a joint venture REEEERNER 1,026
Inventories FE 359
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 51 K H A JE IR R TR 18
Bank balance and cash RITHER RIS 4,590
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR R B2 At JE A< SR IE (80,493)
17,857
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. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 45. WiE—RME LT (48)
Acquisition in 2021 (continued) S —Fruk s (i)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: UGB B EE4E B 28 :
RMB'000

AREFTT
Consideration transferred Frese KB 17,857
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired B PR BB EFEN A TE (17,857)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W FTEE g 2 =
The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been UGBEMFERK AN TE KX - AERNEERPRER ©
recognised in profit or loss.
Net cash outflow on acquisition BB T RYE 2 7% i FEE

RMB'000

ARBTT
Cash consideration fully repaid TEERHEENRE 17,857
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances acquired B TR e RIRSSE WSS (4,590)
Net cash outflow W& F R 13,267
If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the financial Y BRI EF ST - AEBWA R
year, the Group's revenue and profit before tax would have been Fr 25 A AR G 9 Bl 3 A R % 29,394,488,000 7T
RMB29,394,488,000 and of RMB827,031,000 respectively. & AR ¥ 827,031,000 7T °
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not HEERMEHRGPAR  WIELTERRES
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the T —F—-A—HEKZEENBERLTAS
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition B ERHERIRARGE RS  MESR
been completed on 1 January 2021, nor is it intended to be a TEORIRIRZEAS o

projection of future results.
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition in 2020

Zhejiang Tulante was established by the Group and a third party in
December 2017, the Group held 57% equity interest in Zhejiang
Tulante and accounted for as interest in a joint venture. In August
2020, the Group acquired additional 30% equity interests in Zhejiang
Tulante from the joint venture partner for a consideration of
RMBS5,000,000. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Zhejiang
Tulante became a subsidiary of the Group. Zhejiang Tulante is
principally engaged in the storage batteries manufacturing and was
acquired so as to continue the expansion of the Group's principal
business. The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

45, IeiE—RKMHE LT ()
—E_EFHE
MITEHESERAEER —BE=FR_%
—tF+ AR - AEEF AN TERE
HI57% % - WIEAR —RAEEDENER
AR -RZZ_ZTFNA AEBREEE
U AT BB R RSB I 30% A HE - RIEEA
AR #5000,0007T ° STEAUKEETE - T EIRS
BRAASENNBAR - WNTEMEEE
RESERETED - WEWRBENEERE
NEBEMFEZER - WEDHEAREEES
ES PN

RUERHRANEERBENRFED

are as follows: N
RMB'000
ARETFIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 14,435
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 3,705
Inventories T8 1,990
Other receivables H A U GRIR 827
Bank balance and cash IRITHEBRIRS 850
Trade and other payables FE1ST B 5 BR 51 I E A FE - 5RIE (5,140)
16,667

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB827,000, which is equivalent to the gross
contractual amounts of those other receivables acquired at the date
of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
nil.
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45. WrRE—XME LT (1)

Acquisition in 2020 (continued) —EEFRUE (i)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WBHTELREE
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Consideration transferred FresR KB 5,000
Plus: fair value of previously held equity interest o AERB IS D S e A EE
in the acquire 9,500
Plus: non-controlling interest 0 RS 2,167
Less: net assets acquired B T A EFE (16,667)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

WBRELRE

The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been
recognised in profit or loss.

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition

WEEERERN AL A EX - BEPMERTHER ©

WIBFTEL R 2 HAFHE

RMB'000

ARET T

Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired Fri IR & IR & S EM AR 850
Less: Cash consideration paid (note) B BENBEEeRE () =
850

Note:  The consideration of RMB5,000,000 has been settled by offset the Group’s amount
due from the then joint venture partner, which was recorded in “prepayments and

other receivables”.

Included in the profit for the year is RMB572,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Zhejiang Tulante, and revenue for
the year includes RMB787,000 generated from Zhejiang Tulante.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, revenue for
the year of the Group would have been RMB27,306,825,000, and
profit for the year of the Group would have been RMB721,694,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

BtaE - 1B A K% 50000007 B B 557 5 B fE KA
Bra e BB FRRBEMET - ZHEE LA [FE
130 E R 2 fh fEM KA

FRFERENTE B EEREINEREG
AR #5720007C © FRUWAEIEITTE S
LM AREE 787,000 7T ©

MR —E—EF—A—HEK ' A58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the current year, the Group disposed 90% and 42% equity
interests in Beijing Weihua High-tech Technology Co. Ltd. (“Beijing
Weihua") and Anhui Chaowei Environmental Protecting Technology
Co., Ltd ("Anhui Huanbao”) to the independent third parties for total
cash consideration of RMB150,000 and RMB45,700,000, respectively.

The net assets of these subsidiaries at their respective dates of
disposal were as follows:

46.

HEME AT

RAFE  AEERBIE=HHELRE
ESREEARAR ([t REZE]) RZHE
BIRABEARAR( ZHEIRR]) 0% &
2% M - REREDHIAARE 150000
TC M A R ¥4 45,700,000 7T °

ZEWBATNES S HE SR EEEE
T

Beijing Anhui

Weihua Huanbao Total
EREE REBR #st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Consideration: 4-
Cash received [ 150 45,700 45,850
Total consideration received BUREREE 150 45,700 45,850
Analysis of assets and liabilities EERHEHEER
over which control was lost BESH
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE M RE 25 382,804 382,829
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 761 761
Inventory BE 251 198,741 198,992
Trade receivables FEUNE ZEE TR 161 238,767 238,928
Bank balance and cash RITHEB MRS 396 927 1,323
Trade and other payable JE B SRR E A e
FIE (558) (627,516) (628,074)
Borrowings BE = (118,000) (118,000)
Net asset disposed of FriE&EFE 275 76,484 76,759
Gain(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries H EMiE 2 EIIk £ (B518)
Total consideration RIERE 150 45,700 45,850
Net assets disposed of Frit & & EFE (275) (76,484) (76,759)
Recognition of investment ERR—KE 2 RN Al
in an associate & - 6,884 6,384
Non-controlling interests JEI AR AE RS 28 37477 37,505
(Loss) gain on disposal HE (E18) Wi 97) 13,577 13,480
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising HEN B 2 BT E £/
on disposal of subsidiaries BRREA () RE8E
Cash consideration received DBUIR S RE 150 45,700 45,850
Less: bank balances and cash B TR ERITEGREIES
disposed of (396) (927) (1,323)
(246) 44,773 44527
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48.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 47. REEH

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's assets were RIFEHR  BETAEBEEECHEER 1
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The BAEBEREITEENER AEBRE
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at WMEMRNBEEREENRERBENT :

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 2020
- ] —E-FF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBTT
Buildings EF 648,808 862,668
Right-of-use assets FREEE 89,844 119,629
Deposits for borrowings BEEZS 43,904 79,986
Receivables at FVTOC| BAFES AR EERER
FEW TR IE 1,413,237 631,655
Restricted bank deposits Z R HIRITIF K 1,143,032 1,332,206
Inventory FE 133,852 -
Note: Hfat
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged part of equity interests in Henan Zhengxiao Ro-FE-——F+—_H=+—H  ZREFHB LI THIFN
(as defined in note 53) (2020: the Group had pledged part of equity interests in Henan (EZERMF53) s 5 g (ZE=FF - ZEBE KA
Zhengxiao (as defined in note 53)) in order to obtain bank borrowings. S IER(EZE M 553 R 7 RIE) » LAJESIRTTIEE -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 48. BHFKIE
0 2020
5 —EBFF
B’000 RMB'000
=1 ARETFR
Contracted but not provided for: BRI #){B R B4
— acquisition of property, — WM - WE REE
plant and equipment 112,888 194,512
— acquisition of intangible asset — W EREE 7,690 8,025
— capital contribution to associates — ABERNTEE 6,400 23,200
— capital contribution to a joint venture —FA—REEEFFE 174 22,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 49.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from

MEEIBMEEARZHIE

TERFNAGEEREEHMELCAR(E
RAS LIRS BEZY)  BMEDTBHAE
ENBEERRERESIRKRESRERER
SRFARERERTHER/BRELZDNF
RenEmafE-

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising financing activities are those for which cash flows
were or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
q Dividend Dispo 0 orelq D D
0 0 a psid D g 0
5000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RVB 000 RMVB 000
Borrowings EE 6,290,532 340,012 - (118,000) - (3,075) 6,509,469
Dividend payabletonon-contling ~ FEATHBAAZHERRER
shareholders of subsidiaries LIRS - (35,451) 35,451 - - - -
Dividend payable EfIRE - (107,479) 107,479 - - - -
Lease lbilties HERR 8,581 (4,498) - - 380 - 4,463
Amounts due to elated parties R FE 10,010 163 - - - - 10,173
Interest payable EfIFIE 29,336 (350,170) - - 341,542 - 20,708
6,338,459 (157,423) 142,930 (118,000) 341,922 (3,075) 6,544,813
At At
1 January Financing Dividend Lease Interest 31 December
2020 cash flows claimed modified expenses 2020
RIEZTE k2
-A-B  HERERE BEERRE BETRE flgRx  TZA=t-8
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Borrowings e 4,090,600 2199932 = = = 6,290,532
Medium-term note )t 648,365 (6498%) - - 1525 -
Corporate bond tREH 416991 (417804) - - 813 -
Dividend payable to non-controlling ERHBAAERRRR
shareholders of subsidiaries )& - (113,727) 13727 - - -
Dividend payable EffkE - (83083) 83083 - - -
Lease labilties HEafk 15731 (6,209 - (1,598) 633 8581
Amounts due torelated parties JEfs s a0E 17,046 (7036) - - - 10010
Interest payable JEI8 38526 (386,753) - - 377563 29336
5207259 535434 19,810 (1,59) 380554 6,338459
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50.

51.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which mainly
comprises bank borrowings, net of restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt.

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

50. BemEER

AREERRESIREAREEBIHE
% AHERELEBRRATE Ak
RSB ALE R o A E R B S AR
FEMHTE -

AEENEARBRIEFEY  ETEER
BIRITIEE - HBRZREIRITERRIBITE
BRRE  UEARAHEAARGEEZ(E
hEEEBEITRARER)

EXTHRTEARNRE - fEARETH — 3P
n o BREERESNARESEEANMERE
o REBEEENHEBER - AKEEBIK
RS~ BT B RO AR EITHE
R EHEBEARRE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 51. #MT R
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) &MIAEH
0 2020
i ===
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Financial assets SMEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BT EF AR
(RRAFEFFAER)
— Mandatorily measured at FVTPL — BHIEA T EF AR 214,500 275,123
— Derivative financial instruments —TEEmI A 1,392 =
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT ENSREE 7,010,521 6,549,850
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BATEGAEMEERE
HfEm T A 5,300 5,300
Receivables at FVTOC| BNV EF AR EERE
) FE LR IE 1,660,973 1,087,511
8,892,686 7917,784
Financial liabilities EMAR
Amortised cost B A 11,044,691 11,162,754
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, receivables at FVTOCI, financial assets
at FVTPL, derivative financial instruments, loan receivables,
trade receivables, other receivables, restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, amounts due from/to related parties,
borrowings, trade payables, bills payable, other payables.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk, other price
risk and commaodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices.

(i) Foreign currency risk management

The Group has certain foreign currency bank balance,
cash and bank borrowings denominated in HKD, USD,
EUR and CAD, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. &R TR ()
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) &MEMREEBMRBRE(HE)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) 45 B s (4E)
(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SMNERREE ()
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency RRERIR - NEBE AINESHE
denominated monetary assets at the end of the NEBEERMEZINMT

reporting period are as follows:

0 2020
5 —B_FF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Assets BE
HKD BT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 12,873 23,494
usD ET
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 13,634 37,310
EUR BT
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 11,842 6
Loan receivables JEWE K 4,608 4,608
CAD s
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR NI 6,265 =
Liabilities afR
HKD BT
Bank borrowings RITEHE 51,439 25,249
usD =
Bank borrowings RITEE 149,191 198,650




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in HKD,
USD, EUR and CAD against RMB.

The Directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate is 5% for RMB against
HKD, USD, EUR and CAD respectively (2020: 5% for RMB
against HKD, USD and EUR respectively), which is also
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel.

For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB1,446,000 (2020: decrease RMB384,000 in
the post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2020: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against HKD.

For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB5,083,000 (2020: decrease RMB6,492,000 in
the post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2020: 5%) strengthen of
RMB against USD.

For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of RMB against EUR,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB617,000 (2020: increase in the post-tax profit
for the year of RMB173,000) and there would be an
equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit and
the other equity for the year for a 5% (2020: 5%)
strengthen of RMB against EUR.

For a 5% weakening of RMB against CAD, there will be
an increase in the post-tax profit for the year of
RMB235,000 and there would be an equal but opposite
impact on the post-tax profit and the other equity for
the year for a 5% strengthen of RMB against CAD.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. €M TR (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) &MEMREEBMRBRE(HE)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) h iR ()
(i) Interest rate risk management Gi)  FIRE R EFE

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed-rate loan receivable, loan to associates, fixed-
rate bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The cash flow
interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to the
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of borrowing rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group's RMB
denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash
and variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and a 27 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on variable-rate
bank borrowings are used which represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates.

annranancn  ooen N
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
for bank balances and cash with all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by
RMB3,003,000 (2020: RMB2,914,000).

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/lower
for variable-rate bank borrowings with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB3,814,000 (2020: RMB2,636,000).

Other price risk

The Group is principally exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities measured at
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted
in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the management of the
Group focus on investment in batteries industry sector
or other related manufacture industry where the
management has extensive experience.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date. For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 1, the
sensitivity rate is increased to 60% in current year as a
result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 60% (2020: 60%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by RMB96,525,000 (2020: increase/decrease by
RMB136,484,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of equity securities measured at FVTPL.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(iv)

Commodity price risk

Commaodity price risk refers to the price fluctuation on
net outstanding position in future contracts it holds as
at year end, where the company profit or loss will
fluctuate in accordance with the movement in the
prevailing price.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to commodity price risk at the
reporting date. For sensitivity analysis of derivative
financial instruments with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is
increased to 5% in current year as a result of the volatile
financial market.

If the prices of the respective derivative financial
instruments had been 5% (2020: nil) higher/lower, the
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
would increase/ decrease by RMB70,000 (2020: nil) as a
result of the changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. €T A (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (o) IEERBEERREFN
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties SERBIEAEBR HEFARGE
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial & ,\’]Eff’rrﬁl$’§ £l Hﬂfﬁﬁﬁ?{?@%m
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are R REBHEBMEERKREZR
primarily attributable to trade receivables, receivables at Q FEUE Z R Bz”&quﬁafk/ﬁ\ﬁﬂ
FVTOCI, other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from 2 EUESHI EU RIE - E A U RIE -
related parties, restricted bank deposits and bank balances. EUE R - FEUEEE S I8 - PR H

RITHFRSIRITHERR

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its AEAEREEERR  AEBEZE
operation management committee to develop and maintain AR EEEREHEUHITASEE
the Group's credit risk gradings to categorise exposures ZEERBRITE - IRELHR R AN G
according to their degree of risk of default. B\ 548 o
The following table shows the Group's credit risk grading T%EIJ,T\$’E BEEHEsHEENEZE
framework in respect of financial assets: M sT A% FEZR
Internal credit Other financial
rating Description Trade receivables  assets subject to ECL
M BB {5 SRR L FEM 52 5 AR 3% HttmEERRAER
BiRHa&mMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
the contractual payments are not past due Not credit-impaired
or within a reasonable period since due
dates
iV RGHEFENRAREK - BEHNKKREE 2HEHEEHE NEARBEEESR
SRR R EHEA — EBEERE
Fair risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
risk since initial recognition through Not credit-impaired ~ Not credit-impaired

information developed internally or external

resources
h &R BBARNMINEERIIGENGHES HIREHREEEE HESREEEE
[\ B ¥R TER IR KR 15 N — EEERE — EBEERE
Substantial risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
— impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BRERR EBEBRNEEDFEERE ZHEMCEEERR 2HRHAGEERE
— B fEERE —EfEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off  Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

s BIERBARNEBABARENRRE - M 7% & FE M % & B 3
$§.’%l$ﬁ\f‘?f9’ Heg W E5RIR
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51. & T A ()
15 55 PR By ik (BT 4 (48)

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (c)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

TRAVASEANGBRBEEEHER
MEREEMERNEERR :

Internal
31 December 2021 Notes credit ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross amount
R-S-—%F
+=-A=+—H MiEE MEBEEER NREANZMABERSR RE
RMB'000
AR®TRT
Trade receivables 28 Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,675,470
FEM 5 5 AR % Pid & RHFAMERSIR(RHER)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 73,044
Pi &E RMFHEREGER(SEEEE)
2,748,514
Loan receivables 25 Lowrrisk 12-month ECL 78,040
kR & R b= 12 AREHEGRA
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 51,233
EXEE RMFAHEREGR(SEREE)
129,273
Other receivables 30 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 137,977
HtufE=RE & R b= 12 AREHEGR
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 519,347
rh ¥ R B RHMFAHESSR (REREE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 83,046
EXR B 2HRHMEEGR(BEERE)
740,370
Amounts due from 52 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 49,112
related parties :9:1 5 12 FHEEEE
FEURAR 5 R IE Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 27,846
P & B B% RMFAMERGR (RESEE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 346,998
EXR RMRMERGR(SEREE)
423,956
Receivables at FVTOCI 29 Lowrrisk 12-month ECL 1,660,973
BAFEAAREMZE {6 3 B 128 AMEEGR
1y &= B FE W SR IR
Restricted bank deposits 33 Lowrrisk 12-month ECL 1,143,032
ERFMITHER 1B R b= 12 AREREGR
Bank balances 33 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 2,860,613
RITHEER 1B R Bz 12ER RMEREGIR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(ZE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment

&R TR (8)
(o) 5% MB% B il (B 5T i (#R)

(continued)
Internal
31 December 2020 Notes credit ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross amount
RZE_TF
+=ZA=+—H Mizr ASBEETR 1218 A sk 2 BFE A E B E e FENE
RMB'000
AREFT
Trade receivables 28  Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,298,987
FEWE 5 BRTX k3 2 HTEEE BB 1E (BB ERE)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 134,867
k3 2> HFEEEEE (BEERE)
2,433,854
Loan receivables 25  Low risk 12-month ECL 49,592
JEUE K VN s 2EAEBREEERE
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 69,863
EpNET A >HFEEEEE (BEEERE)
119,455
Other receivables 30 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 299,261
H h pE W kIR K B 2ERAEBREEERE
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 14,669
A b 2> HFEEEEE (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 56,554
ESNEN >HBEHEEER(BEERE)
370,484
Amounts due from 52  Low risk 12-month ECL 210,456
related parties [E9E 1218 BB EifE B &R
JE Uk BE Bt 5 FR0E Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 162,885
B & E kR 2 HRHBEEER (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 68,313
ESPNEN 2> HEEEEER (BEEERE)
441,654
Receivables at FVTOCI 29  Lowrisk 12-month ECL 1,087,511
TE’A?TET%)\EI@%E 1 2 B 1218 A e E E E e
U 2 B FE KUK
Restricted bank dep05|ts 33 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 1,332,206
PR HIERI T W e R2EABEREEBE
Bank balances 33 Lowrisk 12-month ECL 2,552,548
RITAEER K B REABEREEEBE

Note:  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for the debtor in
severe financial difficulty, which are assessed for impairment individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings to assess ECL

on trade receivables collectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally
assesses the credit quality of the potential customer and
define appropriate credit limits. Management also closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counter parties and customers.

The Group performs impairment assessment of lifetime ECL
on trade receivables. Except for the debtors in severe financial
difficulty, which are assessed for impairment loss individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings
based on the key market of the customers to assess ECL on
trade receivables collectively. The provision rates are based on
debtors’ aging because trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics and
their aging are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The following provision matrix details the risk profile of trade
receivables. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
show significantly different loss patterns for different customer
portfolio, the provision for loss allowance based on debtors’
aging is further distinguished between the Group's customer
portfolios of different risk type. The estimated loss rates are
estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. &FT A (&)

(c)

15 5% B B ik (L A £ ()

W E 5 R

EERMNEMHELA  AEEEAR
HEREBEEPHEELIR  YEE
HENEERBE - EEETETRER
ERE ZEFEEER - Bt s -
ARABEBEERRAKEEZEERRE
AIERE

AEBEZEWEZERYEEERR
BAOKTZER - ARRIDDBNZ
BARGHTREF -

AEEZEMEREEEEHERE
ZERFCETTREN G - REREEY
KR #1879 (B 1) 77 080 (B 5 1R =T
o AEBERBEPNEIEMSE
REAGENENREREEHEWES
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BEXDEREBANKER  RES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
(continued)

51. @M T A ()

(o) 5% MB% B il (B 5T i (#R)

At 31 December 2021 (RMB'000): RZEZ—F+_A=+—RH(AR¥K
T
90d
90 B A A
Ri%iE Ri#%E Ri%iE R i {2 =
Primary market customer (note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.21% 7.58% 70.60% 100.00% 7.69%
—GmsEF (M) METIEREEERR
Total gross carrying amount 299,597 25,557 4,868 17,735 347,757
RHELE
Lifetime ECL (3,625) (1,936) (3,437) (17,735) (26,733)
2HRHEEER
Subtotal 295,972 23,621 1,431 - 321,024
Pt
Secondary market customer  Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.30% 6.67% 45.57% 90.56% 12.52%
(note) METHRBEEERE
ZBmngp () Total gross carmying amount 998,378 401,732 159,914 105,826 1,665,850
RHEELSE
Lifetime ECL (13,017) (26,795) (72,868) (95,839) (208,519)
2 HBHEEER
Subtotal 985,361 374,937 87,046 9,987 1,457,331
Pt
Other (note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.06% 13.03% 49.80% 100.00% 35.51%
Eft (32) METHRBEEERE
Total gross carrying amount 290,078 141,117 34,039 196,629 661,863
RHEELE
Lifetime ECL (3,081) (18,391) (16,952) (196,629) (235,053)
e R
Subtotal 286,997 122,726 17,087 - 426,810
it
Total 1,568,330 521,284 105,564 9,987 2,205,165
#it
Note:  Primary market customers consist of the manufacturers of electric bikes, Hiat: —RTTEEFEEERHTERER  —

secondary market customers consist of customers in the replacement motive

battery market, while other customers mainly consist of manufacturers of

new energy motor vehicles.
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51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z-—F+_A=+—HLFE

51. & T A ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERBEERREERFS(E)
(continued)
At 31 December 2020 (RMB'000): RZZEZZF+-A=+—H(AR%
T ¢
Within 90 days Within 1 year 1-2 years Over2 years
(not-credit (not-credit (credit (credit
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
90HM 15/ 1225 jabks
(BEEHE) (BEERE) (BEERE) (BEERE) a5t
Primary market customer (note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 121% 8.08% 51.72% 100.00% 1036%
—msER (M) METIRSEEERR
Total gross carrying amount 171,109 22,155 1,949 1719 212332
REELEE
Lifetime ECL (2,070) (1,790) (1,008) (17,119) (21,987)
LHRHEERE
Subtotal 169,039 20365 941 - 190,345
gt
Secondary market customer  Weighted average expected credit oss rate 127% 4.25% 31.69% 100.00% 6.29%
(note) METIRSEEERR
—Bmngp () Total gross carrying amount 873225 308534 95930 2793 1325612
REELE
Lifetime ECL (11,112) (13958) (30404) (27923) (83397)
2 HRHEERS
Subtotal 862113 314576 65,526 - 124215
gt
Other (note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 201% 3443% 93.10% 100.00% 33.55%
Eft (35) METIESEEERR
Total gross carrying amount 464,962 69432 66,380 160,269 761,043
REELSE
Lifetime ECL (9,366) (23.908) (61,799) (160,209) (255342)
2HRHEERE
Subtotal 455,5% 45,524 4,581 - 505,701
Pt
Total 1,486,748 380,465 71,048 - 1,938,261
#it
Note:  Primary market customers consist of the manufacturers of electric bikes, Hiat : —RTTEEFEEEHHTERER  —

secondary market customers consist of customers in the replacement motive
battery market, while other customers mainly consist of manufacturers of

new energy motor vehicles.

RITGEFEEERE BT S E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
(continued)
In addition, as at 31 December 2021, debtors of trade
receivable with carrying amount of RMB73,044,000 (2020:
RMB134,867,000) are assessed for ECL individually and loss
allowance of RMB73,044,000 (2020: RMB134,867,000) is
charged against the balance.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that

has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

51.

&mIA(\)
() {E%MBR B (EEF 4 (1)
o RZFZ—F+ZA=1+—H "

FERMEE A AR 7304400 (= F
—TF . AR#134867,0007T) Z FEU
BZEFEBAEANTEEHBEES
B WEZESTBREEREARE
73044000 T(ZE T F: AR
134,867,000 7T) ©

TRETSREGETAERH R

BEEREHMEREEER 2 -

approach.
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HEA 2HEA
ERER ERER
(I\EERE) (BEHEREE) #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2020 R-E_2F—H—H 83,767 349,042 432,809
Changes due to financial instruments ~ A — A —BER &R T A
recognised as at 1 January: FrEi %) -
— transfer to credit-impairment —EREEEERE (73,903) 73,903 =
— impairment losses recognised — BRERRMEEE - 24,956 24,956
— impairment losses reversed — B ERERERE (9,864) (8,864) (18,728)
— write off — MisH - (5,648) (5,648)
New financial assets originated HEEENEREE 62,204 62,204
As at 31 December 2020 gt J <}
+=RA=+—H 62,204 433,389 495,593
Changes due to financial instruments B — A —BER SR T A
recognised as at 1 January: FrEk s -
— impairment losses recognised — ERRREEE - 85,310 85,310
— impairment losses reversed — B EREEE (62,204) (42,195) (104,399)
New financial assets originated S EANSREE 66,845 - 66,845
As at 31 December 2021 R-E_—%F
+=-A=+—H 66,845 476,504 543,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly
due to:

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. @R T A ()
(o) IEERBERRETM ()

Y ESERFERREESHTEAN

I
]

IH

I|¥
]

Settlement in full of trade debtors with ZEE4EEZ 5
a gross carrying amount of JE LT BR Kk 4R BR TED 1L 688,750 49,381
2020
—ZE-THF
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
ZHTEEE B A IOk )
Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
EEERE EEERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Settlement in full of trade debtors with EREAEEE 5
a gross carrying amount of JE W BR SR 4R AR T 1B 328,800 8,864




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

:I:—?

——f+-A=+-AILFEE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loan receivables

In determining the ECL, management has taken into account
the cash receipts and the financial position of the
counterparties, adjusted for the factors that are specific to the
counterparties and the general economic conditions of
industry in which the counterparties operates, in estimating
the possibility of default of the loan receivables as well as the
loss upon default and determines the loan receivables to the
counterparties are subject to immaterial credit loss.

Other receivables and amounts due from related parties
The ECL on other receivables and amounts due from related
parties are assessed individually based on the counterparties’
current past due exposure, past due history, and taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort.

Other receivables

For other receivable, the Group has recognised ECL of
RMB59,890,000 (2020: RMB18,474,000) during the current year,
which is mainly due to increasing credit rate of a debtor with
gross carrying amount of RMB206,559,000 (2020:
RMB18,052,000). The Group has taken into account the cash
receipts from the debtor and the financial position of the
independent third party, adjusted the factors that are specific
to the independent third party and general economic
condition of the industry in which the third party operates and
assessed that the amount due from independent third party is
subject to a loss allowance of RMB36,846,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
—F A=+ —ALEE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

BHEZZTZ

51. & T A ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) {EERERREFM,(E)
(continued)
Amounts due from related parties FE K BF T 5 1E
The following table shows the movement in ECL that has TRVIRNE B FE UK B 5 R
been recognised for amounts due from related parties: TEEEEEEES)
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
12{8R 2R 2R
FRREE EEBR EEBR
BR (BEEHEEE) (BEHRE) #&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-_Z5—8—H 5221 28,755 30,653 64,629
Changes due to financial R—A—BRREmIA
instruments recognised BHHEE)
asat 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised — B HEBi{E &1 981 9,721 15,721 26423
— Transfer to credit-impaired —ERTEERE = (9,721) 9,721 =
New financial assets originated ¥ RAR S EIEE 1,657 - - 1,657
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-Z2HF
+ZHA=+—H 7,859 28,755 56,095 92,709
Changes due to financial R—A—BHREmIA
instruments recognised BHHEE)
asat 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised  — & 2R E & - 8,695 212,174 220,869
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EREEEERE - (28,755) 28,755 -
New financial assets originated ~ #IZRA KNS REE - - - -
As at 31 December 2021 -
+—A=+—H 7,859 8,695 297,024 313,578

BRENERERAR / 2021 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year

ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZE--—F+-A=+—HBILEE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related parties (continued)

The Group has considered the historical default rate, financial
position, equity interests, the available and supportive
forward-looking information, undistributed retained earnings
in these related parties and expected future earnings that
would be distributed by the entities in connection with non-
trade amounts due from/loan to associates and joint ventures,
and concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding non trade amounts due from/loan to associates
and amount due from joint ventures to be material. For the
purpose of the impairment assessment, these non-trade
amount due from/loan to associates and joint ventures are
considered to have high credit risk as there has been material
increase in the risk of default as compared to prior year.
Accordingly, a total of RMB220,869,000 loss allowance has
been recognized in current year's profit and loss.

Receivables at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other than the balance of
receivables at FVTOCI whose carrying amounts best represent
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group also include issuing banks fail to settle the bills that
have been transferred to collecting banks or suppliers through
discounting the bills to collecting banks or suppliers with full
recourse as described in note 29.

The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills
and therefore the Directors considers the credit risk arising
from receivables at FVTOCI as well as the endorsed or
discounted bills is insignificant.

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks. However, credit risk
on restricted bank deposits/bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
and the Directors consider the ECL for restricted bank
deposits/bank balances to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Non-derivative liabilities

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings from time to time.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. @B T A ()

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 51. &M R (1)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RENEERBE ()
Non-derivative liabilities (continued) FITEEE ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To ZRBEMERAESHIRESR  WMF
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the ERERZEFE  MEBRAKTT
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end HEHESRHRHEE -

of reporting period.

Weighted ~ IEEETUE ota ota
average 0 6mo 6 discounted arrying
interest rate demand orle 0 ea ea ashflo amo
i 6f8 F iR
RociEa BEXER | 6-12{8 R ; ; § fod HGEE
% RMB RMB000 B RMB000 B RMB'000 B
31 December 2021: ZBC-F+CR=t-R:
Fieckate borrowings EekE 444 - 1682686 1958693 578722 4515 4204576 4,148,530
Variable-tate borrowings 258 15 - 697071 547515 449056 418899 2,112,541  2,000939
Tradepayables EfE5ER - 2,711,383 - - - .M 27138
Bils payable EfiZE - - 1,869,391 - - - 1869391 1,869,391
Other payables -0 GEv - 289,360 - - - - 289360 289360
Amounts due o relted paries EfERA3E - 25,088 - - - - 25088 25088
Leaseliabiltes LG 5% - 37 19 4,258 - 4785 4463
3005831 4249445 2506398 1,032,036 493414 11,307,124 11,049,154
31 December 2020; ZBIEETCRST-R:
Fixeckate borrowings E5EE 435 9000 25080 161177 6365 BT 51080 4957932
Varigble-tate borrowings 28kE 498 S IBSSA AR 3T 1300 A48 1332600
Trade payables DS = 453488 2180413 - - - BWT 2630
Bils payable EfiZE - - 1374 - - - 1348 1377478
Other payables EfERE - G S Digel - SR 86T
Amounts due to related partes EREE 7 B, 21,168 : . - - 21168 21,168
Lease fabiites BEaR 586 1304 694 2119 4705 - 8842 8581
R4 TIAM6 QM50 BI4TA S0I6 1ATAT 171
The amounts included above for variable interest rate 1% 1| = 485 B B 3R 4 HA SR A5 T M S =
instruments are subject to change if changes in interest rates HAERARE L FETAENSEER
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the BEH & o

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

51.
(d)

(e)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

51. & T A ()

Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REVE SRR ()
Derivative financial instruments TESHEIT A
The following table details the liquidity analysis for derivative TRFMTE T ERE L BERHITE
financial instruments based on contractual terms. The table CERMTEMRBEST - ERER
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross inflows BEIEAR AR CGRE) 258 A R IR %58
and (outflows) and the fair values on derivative instruments EENSTETEATFEEmMEL - f4FE
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable or Mk EWSEIIEBEER  IIRED
receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been SREZ2EREHARETEFEND
determined by reference to the marked to market commodity mBIREETE o
price at the end of the reporting period.
0
S B 3 A
¥ 3{EA K B A & A % ¥
000 B'000 000 000 000

Net settled: PiEE
Futures HE

— Outflow — - - - - -

— Inflow — WA 1,392 - - - 1,392
Net FE 1,392 - - - 1,392
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) &MTAMNLATFEEE
This note provides information about how the Group WA ER A EES TEaE
determines fair value of certain financial assets. ERA T EIZHER -

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The management of
the Company has delegated a team, which is headed up by
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Where observable
inputs are not available, the Group also considers to engage
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation, if
necessary.

AEEBETEMIARATENE
EM B E Mg - ARBERED
RRBARESFEERSH B -
NETEERAFENEE HERMR
BARE -

Bt R FER  AREEREEAS
MTEAY B A MR BEENEE
Kiist &R F(E - F I seE B AR Al
BRGABBYLRATAIBEREE AR
B WMEZIEGABERERAZE W0
BURE  AEENTEEERRBF=
BERNGEERMETHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

51. @M T A ()
(e) &MITAMATFHEHEE(HE)

RELEMEERZ N FETBHEE
BEMEEREMEEN A FE

basis
Fair value as at
RUTEMZAFE
Financial assets December 20 31December2020  Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs
SMEE ZZ-TF ATEER HERTREEHANE
+-A=1+-A
Financial assets at FVTPL Listed equity securities Listed equity securities ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
BATEG A\ BRNSREE in Hong Kong and inHongkongand ~ F—# ERTENEANRE -
the Mainland of China: the Mainland of China:
Manufacturing industry Manufacturing industry
RMB214,500,000 RMB275,123,000
REBRPERG LS| NEERPEAM T
CREESG RER| RAES 2EX
ABR#%214,500,0007 |  AE#2751230007C
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Unlisted entities: Unlisted entities: ~ Level3 These investments are not publicly traded in an open
BATEG AR MEEKER RMBS5,300,000 RMB5300000  E=# market. Therefore, the fair value of these investments were
EHIH FLITER: FLMEE: determined with reference to the issue prices for recently
AE%5,300,000 7T ARM53000007C issued shares of each investment or discounted cash flow
method, taking into consideration any adjustment factors
between the date of recent issuance and the year end.
ZERBVEEDRMHRS « Bt ZEREND
TEAZRREM BT ROMETEITRR S
REE  BERTRRTAREZFRBANEFHA
Aslightly increase in the adjustment factors would result in
a significant increase in the fair value measurement of
these investments, and vice versa.
HRAREN AR CESFREZ A TENBAR L
Rz
Receivables at FVTOCI Bills receivable: Bills receivable: ~ Level2 Discounted cash flow method was used to capture the
BATEF AL 2 EREN RMB1,660,973,000 RVB1087511,000  H=#R present value of the expected future economic benefits to
MR kR EWEE : be derived from the ownership of these receivables at
AE#1,660,973,0007T | AR 1,0875110007C FvTod.
WFRRSREERGREZZRATET AL S
AR R T E MR AR ER e 2 B8 o
Derivate financial instruments Future contracts: Future contracts: ~ Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
TESBTIA RMB1,392,000 notapplicable ~ F—#4R ERMBHEAGRE -
REEH: KREH : TER
AB%1,392,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during 2021

and 2020.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

. BT R (&)

() &MTIAMAXTFHEAE ()

R_BE-_—FR T _FTF F—H
R BEIEEE -

F=BRAFEFEZHEK:

Unlisted equity
investments
classified as

equity instruments
at FVTOCI
SRBELTHE
AARM2EKE
BERIRZ
JELHERARE
RMB'000
ARETT

At 1 January 2020

Purchases

w-—E_=f—H—H 3,500

1,800

At 31 December 2020 and 2021

Ro-E_ESER_ET_—5F
+=—A=+—H 5,300

annranancn  ooen XN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 52. MBEARS
(@) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with (a) AEBRAFEETIIBEHTEEKR
following related parties: R :
Name Relationship
£ [o[E
Zhejiang Doulan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.* Controlled by Zhou Mingming
AL RRE S e R BN AR A A JEIBR R AT 2
Zhejiang Pulangte Joint venture
WL & BAE BERE
MOLL Associate
MOLL = /NC]
Hangzhou Xinglianxing Network Technology Co., Ltd.* Associate
MM E &2 WEERR AR AR e /N
Zhejiang Shidarui Associate
AL S 2 im /NG|
Henan Yilin Trade Co., Ltd.* Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
Al AEE AR AT — KM B A AR FEIEARAR R
Z The English name of these companies are for reference only and have not * ZERRMEXEFEMSE  WREE
been registered. i o

m Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

52. ABH RS (&)

During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) AEBRAFEEHEBE HETINTE
significant transactions with its related parties: KX 5
Trade sales and purchase BEZHERFE
Trade sales Trade purchase
BEHHE B5EE
0 2020 0 2020
—E-FF S TR T
B’000 RMB'000 000 RMB'000
K ARETTT i AREFTT
Entities controlled by the Directors ~ EE#EHI M) T &2 - 25,128 27,969
Associates 9ﬁ%’& Al - 7,576 - 31
Joint ventures B - 2,212 - 258
- 9,788 25,128 28,258

Amounts due from related parties (before ECL)

FER BB 7 5 R (A= B AR AT)

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—T_THF
+=ZA=+—8
Trade Non-trade Trade Non-trade
®5 ES R B9 HEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AERWTT PN RwWN: &
Entities controlled by the Directors 2= S5 Hl|H) Z 52 4,508 - 5,735

Associates i /NC] 8,828 115,256 8,832 129,299
Joint ventures SR 27,397 79,348 27,397 53,921
Others Hth 7,951 - 14,143 20,000
48,684 194,604 56,107 203,220




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 52. MRS ()
AEBERARERE EREH S ETATE
KRG (1)

BB & A TS (B EEE)

(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b)

significant transactions with its related parties: (continued)
Loan to associates (before ECL)

0 2020
0 —EEF
B’000 RMB'000
K 8 ARET T

Loan to associates: ElNCI =
— Non-current portion (note i) — JEBNERER 2 (P 7ED) 161,225 162,885
— Current portion (note ii) — BIHAEE & (B 5Eii) 19,442 19,442
180,667 182,327

Notes: HiaE -

[0) The amounts as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 represent the loan to Fei (i) R-IFE - —FR-_F_TF+_H=+—
Fang Technology Co, Ltd. (“Fei Fang”), an associate of the Group, which is H &% Ba 15 7] 285 B & 2 A1 IF 7 BHE A
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2021, BRABI([FEFTIIEHEEL « RELA
due to increasing crediit risk of Fei Fang, the expected crediit loss allowance of BEREBEEKRERE R-F-—F1=
RMB94,413,000 for this loan has been provided. A=+—H  aARFH =B EREEM -

BBt ZBEA IR EEREEARE
94,413,000 7T °
(ii) The amounts as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 represent the loan to MOLL, (i) W _E - —FER-F_FFL_H=+1—

an associate of the Group, which is unsecured, carrying a fixed interest rate
of 5.0% (2020: 5.0%) per annum with the maturity of 12 months. As at 31
December 2020, due to significant financial difficulty of MOLL, the expected
credit loss allowance for this loan has been fully provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 52. ABA XS (E)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) ANEERAFEEBE FETUATE
significant transactions with its related parties: (continued) AR5 (48)
Amounts due from related parties — analysed for financial FEW B 5 70 B — BB 3 & B 5
reporting purposes: #r:
0 2020
—ETF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Amounts due from related parties J7E Uk R BE: 5 g I8
(trade and non-trade) (B RIEEBS) 243,288 259,327
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (170,968) (44,512)
72,320 214,815
Loan to associates BEESYNGINE E 180,667 182,327
Less: allowance for credit losses B EE R (142,610) (48,197)
38,057 134,130
110,377 348,945
Non-current JEENER 18,616 133,085
Current BNER 91,761 215,860
110,377 348,945




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 52. MBKA RS (#)
(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) RANEBERAFEHEBE FETUATE
significant transactions with its related parties: (continued) KRG (5B)
Amounts due to related parties FEATBE B 75 7% 8
0 31/12/2020
2 —ECERF
H = +=—A=+—H
ade 0 ade Trade Non-trade
25 =g =0 HFEZ
B’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
- s AREFTT AREBTT
Entities controlled by the EEEHNERS
Directors 6,039 1,502 7,313 6
Associates A /N] - 314 - 5,950
Joint ventures aBEbE 8,876 508 3,845 4,054
Other EHfh - 7,849 = =
14,915 10,173 11,158 10,010
The non-trade balances due from/to related parties are U FENEEE A IEE S S A
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. B EENEREREE -
() Compensation of key management personnel () FEEHAENEHS
0 2020
- —_— ? —gi
B’000 RMB'000
R % AREFT
Short term employee benefits EHE B R 7,413 10,784
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRTE S Bk 43 30
Share-based payments PARR (7 A EEREHY 5 51 45 1,626
7,501 12,440
The remuneration of key management personnel is FTEZEEBAENME NELEB/ARK
determined with reference of the performance to individuals RRETISBLETE °

and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 53. ¥ EMELT
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the AREBREZENEBE R RRNRE RN E R E
reporting period are as follows. FnR e
Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activities
EfaL BRORBERS FLOAR+TZA=S+—H  EEXH
IAGEL [oAvaih HMEE BERFES
2020
ZTCZF
%
Directly held
EERS
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI UsD100 100 100 Investment holding
BHENEEERAR EEERARES 1003%7T REER
Leadnew Limited BVI UsD100 100 100 Investment holding
FMERAT] RREARES 100%7T REER
Indirectly held
H&Rs
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BEBN (BE)ARAT BE 10000787 REZR
Moll Grundstticks — und Vermdgensverwaltungs Germany EUR2,002,500 749 749 Property investment
GmbH & Co. KG MOLL G+V =E 2,002,500 BR 7T NERE
Chaowei Power Group Co, Ltd. PRC RMB1,063,800,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Chaowei Power’) (Note i) i AR 10638000007 SEHNED
BREREEERAR([BRHER]) ()
Henan Chaowei Power Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
('Henan Chaowei") (Note i) hEl AR 100000007 SEHNER
ERRERERAR (DI EBe ) ()




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid-up
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of company establishment registered capital
gL ERITRBERE
LAFEER B A HEMEF
Shandong Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000
IIRBRERERAR (M) e AKH 100,000,007
Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000
e ERERAR (i) e AKH 100,000,007
Anhui Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000
(‘Anhui Chaowef") (Note i) i AR 100000007
ZHBRERERAR ([ZHEE ) ()
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Energy PRC RMB150,000,000
Co, Ltd. (Note ) H AR 150,000,000 7C
HTRBE N R ARAR (FizEi)
Jiangxi Xinwei Energy Technology Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000
ITRFTRE R AR AR () hEl AKH 100,000,007
Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB65,500,000
("Anhui Yongheng") (Note ) e AR 65,500,0007T
LROKEB ARHRER A A ([R5 E D ()
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang Power Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000
("Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang’) (Note i) R AR 1000000075
WIRESAGERERAA
(DI REE A ) (M)
Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial PRC RMB83,333,333
Co, Ltd. (Note ) H AE#83333333 7T
AR R TEEBRAR (L)
Jiangsu Yongda Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB80,000,000
("Jiangsu Yongda’) (Note i) HE AR 80,0000007C

TEXETRROBRAR (DTERAGE ) (M)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company as at

31 December
FAFR+=B=+—H
EiERFER

53. ¥EMBELT ()

Principal activities

FERE

100 100
61 61
75 75

100 100

100 100
95 95
51 51
91 91
60 60

Manufacture of motive batteries

BEDNB

Manufacture of motive batteries

BEBNB

Manufacture of motive batteries

BEHBH

Sales of motive batteries and
materials

HEBNE LA

Manufacture of motive batteries

YED T
Manufacture of motive batteries

BEHB

Manufacture of motive batteries

HEHNEN

Manufacture of motive batteries

HEHHEHL

Manufacture of motive batteries

SEHNER
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53.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

53. FEMBLT ()

Issued and fully Equity interest
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activities
EMmE ERTREREE FAART-A=+—A EEEXE
LEER [ Avg ik HEM&EF EiERFER
2020
—Z-EZF
%
Qinyang Libiao Membrane Co, Ltd. PRC RMB63,240,769 85 85  Manufacture of electrode plate
("Qinyang Libiao) (Note i) w AR 63240,7697C dividing paper
WM AZREAR AR (DUBAE ] () SEBRIRERA
Zhejiang Yueda Plastic Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB40,850,000 51 51 Manufacture of plastic battery cases
HOIEE ERMBRAR (FizEi) I AR 408500007C SUEE IR
Hebei Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
MILRRERARA A (M) I AR 1200000007T SEFHEN
Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
(Note i) i AR 100000007 materials
MLETBRERE 28R AR (7 HEBHE MR
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB600,000,000 94 94 Manufacture of motive batteries
("Henan Zhengxiao”) (Note i) A AR 600,000,0007C EHHED
ARRRERERARA A (DIREM)
(BsEi)
Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power Co,, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
WRBRHEERERAR () HE AR 100000007 SEGHEN
Zhejiang Heniu Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
IR RERA R A A (HET) i AE#100000007T materials
HEFNEM R
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Sale PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
Co, Ltd. (Note ) H AR 10,0000007T materials
AR EREREEERAA (M) HEFNEM R
Chaowei Tici (Beijing) Energy Technology PRC RMB100,000,000 90 90  Research and development
Co, Ltd. (Notes ) I AR 100,000,0007C Ha
REER LR SRR AR A A (i)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid-up
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of company establishment registered capital
gL ERTREERSE/
LAFEER B A HEE

Zhejiang Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000
(Notes ) H AR 5000000075
WIBEE N BB R ()

53. ¥EMBELT ()

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company as at

31 December Principal activities
EREART-A=+-H XEXRE
B RFER

100 100 Research and development of solar
energy generating system

P AGRERER S

Zhejiang Anli Energy Co, Ltd. PRC USD35,000,000 85.71 8571  Research and development of
(Notes i) F 35,000,000 75 durathon batteries

IR NERAR AR (D) HERAE

Henan Chaoli New Energy Co, Ltd. PRC RMB30,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
("Henan Chaoli") (Note h AR 300000007T BEE) NEM

AR NMERER AR
(DaraA 1)z

Note: Mt

(i) These companies are PRC limited liability companies. The English names of these (0 ZERNAA/FEER NG  AEXEBEHS

companies are for reference only and have not been registered.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Company's directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 53. FEMEBLT ()
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TREIHIARD G ERERIBERERNIESD
the Company that have material non-controlling interests: NG
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests Profit allocated to
incorporation and voting rights held non-controlling interests Accumulated
and principal by non-controlling interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business at31December 31December at 31 December
ElSIERR RTZAZ+-H#EREE BET-A=+-HALERIE RtZA=+—-HE
MELERR FTEERMN iR ARRFELY EFARERNHE RitFBRER
0 2020 0 2020 0 2020
i 3 B4 —EC%E T_—4 i 3
B'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
L AEBTT G AEBFT
Henan Chaowei PRC 40% 40% 65,052 62,939 522,254 457,201
Bl i
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25% 26,149 26,385 129,687 132413
ZHER h
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40% 7,152 15,204 131,536 124,384
THoKE i
Yangzhou Huaxiang PRC 49% 49% (70,872) (31,650) (144,512) (73,640)
ENER ikt
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (8,665) (68769) 143,780 192,157
BEFERESERIFEANERA
Total @t 18,816 4109 782,745 832515
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's RNEBHAEAIFIEREZNZHB AT
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out BERS A A BRI & a0 T o T 51 BE RS B 75 &k
below. The summarised financial information below represents REEERD B EEBEATHHEE -

amounts before intragroup eliminations.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 53. EEMEBLT ()
Henan Chaowei A ER
0 2020
5 ke 22
000 RMB'000
£ ARBTT
Current assets mENEE 1,300,802 1,102,413
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,013,410 1,010,266
Current liabilities Uik JA=RiT 752,597 571,715
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 255,980 397,960
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ Z"NA RIS AEIEREES 783,382 685,803
Non-controlling interests FEIARAE RS 522,254 457,201
0 2020
: —BEF
000 RMB'000
= ARETT
Revenue A 3,515,328 3,250,825
Expenses 5 3,352,697 3,093,477
Profit and total comprehensive income FRFEER ARG ERE
for the year 162,631 157,348
Profit and total comprehensive income AR FEE AEEFER
attributable to owners of the Company ZHER R BRE 97,579 94,409
Profit and total comprehensive income FEE AR 4 2 FE A A1
attributable to non-controlling interests 2HE =BT 65,052 62,939
Profit and total comprehensive income FEARFEEEmK S AERE
for the year 162,631 157,348
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEE R = AR B - 100,000
Net cash (used in) from operating activities T B (BT 1B IR & % %E (269,022) 307,290
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHTHAIRG F58 (58,672) (235,150)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities RME RS (FTH) IR & /558 346,199 (74,188)
Net cash inflows (outflows) WEMA ) 558 18,505 (2,048)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 53. FERBLT (&)

Anhui Chaowei ZHBR
0 2020
5 —B_FF
000 RMBI000
i ARETT
Current assets MENEE 732,729 580,156
Non-current assets ERMBEE 338,934 335,002
Current liabilities mBAE 335,294 294,392
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 217,621 91,114
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 282 R B A (GRS 389,061 397,239
Non-controlling interests JEI AR R RS 129,687 132,413
0 2020
: —BEF
000 RMB'000
i ARBTFT
Revenue WA 2,425,553 2,305,225
Expenses Sz 2,320,957 2,199,685
Profit and total comprehensive income FRFER ARG BRE
for the year 104,596 105,540
Profit and total comprehensive income RRATEE AEMLTER
attributable to owners of the Company ZER B 78,447 79,155
Profit and total comprehensive income JEVE RS RE o PR (G FR
attributable to non-controlling interests EHE =BT 26,149 26,385
Profit and total comprehensive income FEARFEEEmKSRRE
for the year 104,596 105,540
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEERR R AR B 28,875 -
Net cash (used in) from operating activities eesE B (BT ) T8I & % %E (17,219) 30,398
Net cash used in investing activities KEEETRR G /F5E (8,836) (29,183)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities REEHTE (FTA) IR E5 23,769 (32,230)
Net cash outflows IR B HER (2,286) (31,015)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

53. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

53. ¥ EMBELT ()

Jiangsu Yongda IERKE
0 2020
5 ke 22
000 RMB000
2 ARBTT
Current assets mENEE 482,296 394,733
Non-current assets ERMBEE 196,788 182,573
Current liabilities mBEE 315,036 204,143
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 35,208 62,203
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 782 RIE G A (GRS 197,304 186,576
Non-controlling interests FEIARAE RS 131,536 124,384
0 2020
: —BEF
000 RMB'000
2 ARETT
Revenue WA 2,041,672 2,030,165
Expenses Sz 2,023,792 1,992,155
Profit and total comprehensive income FRFEER ARG ERE
for the year 17,880 38,010
Profit and total comprehensive income AR FEE AEEFER
attributable to owners of the Company FHEWEETE 10,728 22,806
Profit and total comprehensive income FEE AR 4 2 FE A A1
attributable to non-controlling interests 2HE =BT 7,152 15,204
Profit and total comprehensive income FEARFEEEmK S AERE
for the year 17,880 38,010
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEE R = AR B - 8,000
Net cash from operating activities KRBTSR S 558 20,120 53,175
Net cash from (used in) investing activities KEEHE (FTA) RS E5E 55 (10,555)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEETHRIR G F58 (23,289) (48,133)
Net cash outflows IR & O EE (3,114) (5513)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 53. EEMEBLT (&)
Yangzhou Huaxiang # M ER
0 2020
5 —B_FF
B’000 RMB'000
e ARBTT
Current assets mMENEE 144,720 168,625
Non-current assets ERBE E 359,913 360,978
Current liabilities mEAE 777,555 657,888
Non-current liabilities FERBALE 22,000 22,000
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 282 R B A (GRS (150,410) (76,645)
Non-controlling interests SRR S (144,512) (73,640)
0 2020
: —BEF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBTIT
Revenue A 455,834 67,690
Expenses Fisz 600,471 132,282
Loss and total comprehensive expense FNBEELEAERS B
for the year 144,637 64,592
Loss and total comprehensive expense KArREE ANEIGEIE R
attributable to owners of the Company 2T Sz 4858 73,765 32,942
Loss and total comprehensive expense IR i s FE (G B 1R &
attributable to non-controlling interests 2HEMZ B 70,872 31,650
Loss and total comprehensive expense FNEHE K2 ST 4258
for the year 144,637 64,592
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEE R = AR B - =
Net cash used in operating activities K EB TR S F5E (22,352) (53,220)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEETRR G /F5E (55,374) (26,979)
Net cash from financing activities BB RS RS /5 74,050 82,884
Net cash (outflows) inflows Re ORH)mMAFRE (3,676) 2,685




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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54.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

54. BRE LT MBIKRRE GRS

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS BEE
OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REEHR - BEAAR R BN R ER
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: B -
0 2020
—E-TF
000 RMB'000
R AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - B K& - 55
Investment in subsidiaries T E A AR E 418,116 407,123
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUIBTB A FIFRIE 728,404 714,066
1,146,520 1,121,244
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE K B Ath R UK IE 7,050 8977
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABSNEREE 2,320 5414
Loan receivable FEUE 4,607 4,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTBT B A mIFRIE 28,964 28,947
Bank balances and cash ﬁETTmnﬁ%&iﬁﬁ 4,381 13,068
47,322 61,014
CURRENT LIABILITIES REVRE
Other payables EAth e 3IR 6,317 6,337
Short term borrowings HEEE - 20,872
6,317 27,209
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENRERE 41,005 33,805
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EFER &R 1,187,525 1,155,049
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BER R
Share capital %N 74,704 74,704
Reserves s 1,071,122 1,038,646
TOTAL EQUITY s 1,145,826 1,113,350
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREIAR
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBT B A B FRIE 41,699 41,699
1,187,525 1,155,049
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 5. ARFLAFTIMEBERIZREGEE
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS BEE(8)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share

Share Share option  Retained

capital premium reserve  earnings Total
fERE

Bx BRHER R GERTV it
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMBO000 ~ RMBO000  RMB00O

ARBTT ARBTE ARBTE ARETE ARETE

At 1 January 2020 R-—Z-ZF—H—H 74,704 408,237 76,143 459,505 1,018,589
Profit and total comprehensive income £E A8 & 2 E UL 254458
for the year - - - 149,371 149,371
Dividend paid to owners ENEARREARE
of the Company - - - (83,083) (83,083)
Recognition of equity-settled BAR R EEE LA D B
share based payments EREMAR = = 28473 = 28473
At 31 December 2020 RZFZTEF
+=-A=+—H 74,704 408,237 104,616 525,793 1,113,350
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A3 [ & E 5 4258
for the year - - - 137,623 137,623
Dividend paid to owners BERNAARREARE
of the Company - - - (107,479) (107,479)
Recognition of equity-settled BAR L E LA D &
share based payments B - - 2,332 - 2,332
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—F
+=-A=+—H 74,704 408,237 106,948 555,937 1,145,826




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEBEHARBEER

The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December:

TRV AKEREBET _A=1t—HLAEF
EMGRERE  BERABRAME -

0 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZE2TF ZE-hF ZE-NF ZFT—tF
B'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Results F 4§
Revenue I@N 29,488,819 27,304,556 27,181,732 26,948,237 24,654,011
Profit before taxation IR 784,617 1,065,559 805,486 577,709 635,639
Taxation g (249,532) (341,053) (298,831) (200,202) (163,755)
Profit for the year FRHE 535,085 724,506 506,655 377,507 471,884
Profit/(loss) attributable to FEERR RS
non-controlling interests FEEFREE/(B1E) 18,816 4109 (54,685) (35,207) 17,068
Profit/(loss) attributable to AARHER NER
owners of the Company FE/(E58) 516,269 720397 561340 412,714 454816
Assets BE
Non-current assets FnRBEE 6,582,422 7,048,950 7,106,398 7,087,013 6,449,075
Current assets MEEE 13,601,340 | 12164006 10301946 10,616,385 10,556,702
Total assets BEE 20,183,762 19,212,956 17,408,344 17,703,398 17,005,777
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,703,207) (1,668,836) (1,821,312 (2,742,530) (3,343,865)
Current liabilities mEaE (12,099,870)| (11,519516)  (10,171,042)  (10032038)  (8974472)
Total liabilities FEN=E (13,803,077) (13,188,352) (11,992,354) (12,774,568) (12,318,337)
Capital and reserves BEXR
Equity attributable to owners of AREEEA
the Company [E(RER 5,597,940 5,192,089 4,535,187 4,002,668 3,672,614
Non-controlling interests EErl G £ 782,745 832,515 880,803 926,162 1,014,826
Total Equity B 6,380,685 6,024,604 5,415,990 4,928,830 4,687,440
Current ratio (current assets/ RBL R (RBEE,/
current liabilities) RHAG) 1.12 1.06 1.01 1.06 118
Gearing ratio (total bank BARE B R (MBRTT
borrowings, short term financing BE EHRERE-
notes, medium-term note, HHEIZE  hEES
corporate bond, convertible RRESREBERE
bonds and obligations under BTIMER/BEE)
finance lease/total assets) 30% 33% 30% 37% 37%

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
and its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 are set forth on pages
78 to 219, and are presented on the basis set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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